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nElER
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B ¥R

BE=A=1+—H

For the year ended 31 March IEFE 2019 2018 Change &
Operating results (HK$’million) REXE\E(GEET)
Revenue Wz 1,314.4 1,238.4 6.1%
Gross profit EH 279.3 273.0 2.3%
Total profit for the year FEmAezE 122.9 132.1 -7.0%
Basic earnings per share BRERZF

(Hong Kong cents) (M) 6.7 8.7 -23.0%
Financial position (HK$’million) BRI (EEET)
Cash generated from operations KEEENRE 171.5 193.3 -11.3%
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RS 223.8 279.6 -20.0%
Shareholders’ funds BRRE® 549.1 458.7 19.7%
Capital expenditure EZNGE 182.6 11.3 1,515.9%
Key ratios (%) FEE(%)
Gross profit margin ESy P 21.2 22.0 -0.8pts
Net profit margin FFEE 9.4 10.7 -1.3pts
EBITDA/Revenue EBITDA, Wz 12.8 14.9 -2.1pts
Return on shareholders’ funds f& R & & B #H 22.4 28.8 -6.4pts

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present to you the annual report of TIME Interconnect Technology
Limited (the "Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Review
Year” or “FY2019").

Following the Group's successful listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
in 2018, the Group achieved another year of prospects with much
progress made in innovation and supply chain management.
Meanwhile, the Group actively invested resources in strategic
industries with high growth potential, including 5G
telecommunications, data centre and medical equipment etc. We
firmly believe that 2019 would mark as a year of lucrative harvest
for the Group with our ferocious effort to gear up and strong
drive to move forward.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group achieved a
6.1% increase in revenue to approximately HK$1,314.4 million
from approximately HK$1,238.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 (the “Previous Year” or "FY2018"). The growth
was mainly driven by higher sales in telecommunication and
medical equipment sectors. The Group recorded a 2.3% increase
in gross profit to HK$279.3 million in FY2019 compared to
HK$273.0 million in FY2018. Gross profit margin slightly
decreased from 22.0% in FY2018 to 21.2% in FY2019, mainly
attributable to the change in product mix.

After considering the Group’s short term needs and our cash on
hand, the Board has proposed to recommend to Shareholders the
payment of a final dividend of HK2 cents (2018: HK1 cent) per
share, amounting to a total of approximately HK$36.8 million.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

OUTLOOK

In spite of the weakened business sentiments caused by trade
disputes between the United States and China, the Group’s
turnover recorded an increase in FY2019. This clearly
demonstrated the outstanding management capabilities of the
Group. To maintain our excellent performance and achieve
sustainable growth in the long run, we will continue to put great
efforts on product development, customer maintenance and
expansion, and production capacity enhancement.

In the recent years, we see a new world is coming with the next-
generation 5G network being realised gradually. The demand on
mobile network, Internet of Things (loT), infrastructure products to
transport big data is expected to be highly increased. These new
technologies and the growing trend of big data processing are
expected to drive the demand of building new hardware that
requires the cable assembly products. In light of this, we remain
optimistic on the continuous growth of the telecommunication
and data centre sectors.

For the fast-growing medical equipment sector, it has made
greater contribution to the Group’s revenue in FY2019. We
believe this sector will keep its dynamic pace of growth,
considering the arising demand from the medical equipment
market, which is driven by the aging population, people’s
improving health awareness and etc. To catch up with the trend,
we will continue to solidify the collaboration with our existing
medical equipment customers, explore more notable customers
and enhance our research and development (“R&D") capabilities,
50 as to launch top-grade products as such.

In the coming year, we will remain cautiously optimistic when
making business strategies, in view of both the encouraging
prospects of telecommunication, data centre and medical
equipment sectors; and the volatile global economic and political
environment caused by the trade disputes between the United
States and China. We have been seeking for measures to mitigate
the impact of trade war on our businesses. For example, we
changed the supply source away from China for the certain major
components of products to be shipped to the U.S. and procured
recognition ruling from the U.S. on specific products to avoid the
additional tariffs.
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APPRECIATION

Looking forward to 2019, the Group will continue to adhere to its
professional practices and efficient operations to grow our existing
businesses through continuous integration of enterprise resources
and product innovation. At the same time, we will seize more
profitable investment opportunities, to generate possible
additional revenue and business diversification. We aim to
consolidate and expand the Group’s competitive advantages,
creating long-term and high-value returns for shareholders.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
thanks to the Board, the management team, business partners
and all staff for their contributions.

Lo Chung Wai Paul
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER W&

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The trade and tariff disputes between the United States and China
caused the overall slowdown of global macro-economy. In the
face of challenges and difficulties, the Group’s turnover growth
during the year has not been greatly affected, thanks to its unique
customer profile and sensible business strategies.

As a reputable supplier of customised wiring components, the
Company has given unremitting efforts in providing high-quality
products and services for its customers. During the Review Year,
the Group has continued to invest resources in product
development and further enhance its R&D capabilities. It has
launched more 5G next-generation products to form a product
mix of diversified products and solutions. The Directors believe
that the continuous innovation and outstanding product mix will
elevate the Group’s overall competitiveness, set it apart from the
peers and leverage the expansion of the Group’s market share.

The Group has kept expanding its customer base to capture the
rising business opportunities from the communication equipment,
data centre and medical equipment industries. During the Review
Year, the Group has captured new customers in the PRC market
and further improved the business relationships with its existing
international customers. In FY2019, the Group achieved much
progress made in innovation and supply chain management. The
Group has received various recognitions from its customers on the
Group's top-class products and services, such as two supply chain
awards — "Excellent Supply Performance Award” and “Excellent
Digital Collaboration Award” from Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd.
In the fast-growing medical equipment sector, the Group has
garnered the “Excellent Cooperation Award” from GE Healthcare
Group, being the only winner of this award amongst the suppliers
of wiring components. This was the first award the Group
obtained in the medical equipment industry, reflecting its rapid
development in this market sector.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS RexE
Financial Overview B 7 B
For the year ended 31 March HE2=A=+—HILFE 2019 2018 Change # &)
HKS$’million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEET BHE#ET

Revenue &= 1,314.4 1,238.4 76.0
Gross profit EF 279.3 273.0 6.3
Gross profit margin EF R 21.2% 22.0%
Other income and other gains and H U A K Efb iz

losses N 1B (4.9) 11.8 (16.7
Total operating expenses KL EEE (126.8) (95.5) (31.3)
Total operating expenses as a RS BEE (R IS

percentage of revenue Botk 9.6% 7.7%
Operating profit EERR 147.6 189.3 41.7)
Operating profit margin R 11.2% 15.3%
Imputed financial guarantee income & B IS &R A - 8.4 (8.4)
Listing expenses kX - (24.4) 24.4
Finance costs RhE AR (1.6) (2.3) 0.7
Profit before taxation BRF AR R 146.0 171.0 (25.0)
Taxation FIE (23.1) (38.9) 15.8
Effective tax rate BRI X 15.8% 22.7%
Profit for the year FERF 122.9 132.1 (9.2)
Net profit margin (Note) SERRE (f17F) 9.4% 10.7%

Note:
the year.

Revenue

Net profit margin is derived as profit for the year divided by the revenue for

The Group's revenue for FY2019 increased by 6.1% to
HK$1,314.4 million from $1,238.4 million in the previous financial
year. The increase in revenue was mainly driven by the higher sales
in telecommunication and medical equipment sectors.

et - JFME R DA R IR A S AR R B S

iy 58

AEBRZZT-NBBRFENYREH E—FK
F/E1,23848 B TIEMN6.1%E1,31448
EAT KEERFERBNMMEERESS
B = sHE R R ©

Market Sector HEA 2019 2018 Change &
HKS$'million %  HK$'million %  HK$'million %
BE#ET % BEET % BEET %
Telecommunication B 650.9 49.5% 534.1 43.1% 116.8 21.9%
Data centre gighi 462.9 35.2% 571.6 46.2% (108.7) -19.0%
Medical equipment BELE 138.0 10.5% 62.1 5.0% 75.9 122.2%
Industrial equipment T#%E 62.6 4.8% 70.6 5.7% (8.0) -11.3%
Total @it 13144 1000% 12384  1000% 76.0 6.1%
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EEERR DT

Telecommunication sector: It recorded an increase of revenue
from HK$534.1 million for the previous financial year to HK$650.9
million for FY2019, which represented an increase of 21.9%. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the growing demand for new
5G products from its major customers in the sector, which
remained as the main sales growth driver of the Group’s revenue
in terms of amount and percentage.

Data centre sector: The revenue recorded a decrease of 19.0%
from HK$571.6 million for the previous financial year to HK$462.9
million for FY2019. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decline in demand for products from the Group’s major customers
in this sector.

Medical equipment sector: The revenue achieved a significant
growth rate of 122.2% from HK$62.1 million for the previous
financial year to HK$138.0 million for FY2019. Such growth
represented the highest growth rate among the Group’s market
sectors and the increase was mainly attributable to the robust
demand for products from both existing customers and new
customers.

Industrial equipment sector: The revenue dropped 11.3% from
HK$70.6 million for the last financial year to HK$62.6 million for
FY2019. The decrease was mainly due to the turmoil from the
Sino-U.S. trade war.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for FY2019 was HK$279.3 million, an increase of
HK$6.3 million or 2.3% compared to the HK$273.0 million
recorded in the previous financial year. Gross profit margin slightly
decreased from 22.0% to 21.2%. The change in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the change in
product mix. Cost of materials as percentage of the Group’s
revenue was decreased as compared to the previous financial year
as a result of its material cost savings program during the year.
But for the direct labour costs and manufacturing overheads as a
percentage of revenue, they were higher than last year due to the
labour costs and depreciation increase.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

Operating Profit/Margin

Operating profit (excluding the listing expenses, imputed
guarantee income and finance costs) for FY2019 was HK$147.6
million, which represented a decrease of HK$41.7 million or
22.0% as compared with the previous financial year. Operating
profit margin also decreased from 15.3% to 11.2%. The ratio of
EBITDA to revenue dropped from 14.9% to 12.8%.

Other income and other gains and losses decreased from a gain
HK$11.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to a loss
HK$4.9 million for the FY2019. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to exchange loss of HK$9.8 million recognised in
FY2019, which arose from the Group’s operations in the ordinary
course of business, as compared with an exchange gain of HK$9.7
million in the last financial year.

The total operating expenses for FY2019 were HK$126.8 million,
an increase HK$31.3 million or 32.8% over the last financial year.
Total operating expenses as a percentage of Group’s revenue
increased from 7.7% t0 9.6%.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from HK$20.2 million
to HK$23.2 million during FY2019, an increase of 14.9%
compared with the last financial year. It was mainly attributable to
the increase of staff cost, travel and entertainment, freight and
transportation cost. As a percentage of Group’s revenue,
distribution and selling expenses increased from 1.6% to 1.8%.

Administrative expenses increased from HK$34.4 million to
HK$57.9 million over the last year. The increase was mainly due to
the increase in staff cost, legal and professional fee, and
depreciation. The staff cost increased due to headcount increase
in I.T., salary and bonus increase, and the increase of share option
expenses. The legal and professional fee increase was mainly due
to expenses incurred in relation to the compliance of listing
requirements and the acquisition of new factory. Administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from 2.8% to
4.4%.

During FY2019, the research and development expenses were
HK$45.7 million, which represented an increase of 11.7%
compared with the previous financial year. It was mainly
attributable to the increase of staff cost, which including
headcount increase and salary increment. Research and
development expenses as a percentage of Group's revenue slightly
increased from 3.3% to 3.5%. The Group continuously expanded
the size of its R&D team to enhance its R&D capabilities in respect
of launching new products and technologies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER W&

Finance Costs

The finance costs mainly represent bank loan interest for bank
borrowings. In line with the decrease in bank loan, the finance
costs decreased by 30.4% from HK$2.3 million for the last
financial year to HK$1.6 million for FY 2019.

Total Profit for the Year and Earnings Per Share

Total profit for the year of the Company for FY2019 was
HK$122.9 million, a decrease of HK$9.2 million or 7.0% as
compared to the last financial year. Net profit margin dropped
from 10.7% t0 9.4%.

Taxation represents the tax expenses arising from the assessable
profit generated by the Group in Hong Kong and PRC. Taxation
was provided at the respective tax rate of 16.5% and 25% based
on the profit from operating activities. Taxation charges decreased
from HK$38.9 million in the last financial year to HK$23.1 million
in FY2019. The effective tax rate decreased from 22.7% to
15.8%, due to overprovision tax amounting to HK$3.8 million in
prior year and the additional tax deduction on R&D expenditure
claim in the PRC amounting to HK$5.6 million in FY2019.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for FY2019 were HK6.68
cents as compared to the basic earnings per share of HK8.68 cents
in the previous financial year.

Dividends

The Directors recommend to Shareholders the payment of a final
dividend in respect of FY2019 of HK2 cents (2018: HK1 cent) per
share, amounting to a total of approximately HK$36.8 million.

Segment Information
Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed on
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will devote to strengthen its
competitive advantages, namely cutting-edge innovation and R&D
capabilities; in-depth industry understanding; high-quality and
diversified product mix as well as long term and stable relationship
with customers. Especially, the Group will continue to put
resources on new product development and customer base
expansion, and pursue strategic industries which it believes to
have high growth potential, such as the telecommunication, data
centre and medical equipment sectors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

According to a report released by Global System for Mobile
Communication Association and Global TD-LTE Initiative, China is
expected to become the world’s largest 5G market by 2025,
accounting for 430 million 5G connections, or one-third of the
global total. All three Chinese mobile operators China Mobile,
China Unicom and China Telecom are currently conducting live
5G trials as part of a multi-year plan that includes research and
development, and a network deployment strategy with a view to
a large scale commercial launch by 2020, according to the report
released at the 2018 Mobile World Congress Shanghai. With the
5G network deployment pushing forward, the demand for optical
fibre cable are believed to grow outstandingly and the Directors
are confident on the Group’s future performance in the
telecommunication and data centre sector as its customers are the
primary network equipment suppliers to the three nationwide
mobile operators.

For the medical equipment sector, the Group has achieved great
progress in the past one year. In addition to the substantial
revenue growth recorded, the Group also successfully secured
new customers in this sector and got recognition from its existing
renowned customer GE Healthcare Group, reflecting its rapid
development in this sector. The Group expects this sector to
maintain a strong growth momentum in the coming year in view
of the constant increasing demand for medical care services. In
this occasion, the Group will continuously expand its R&D team so
as to enhance the R&D capabilities in respect of launching such
medical-grade products and technologies.

The recent escalation of the trade tensions between the United
States and China has brought more uncertainties to the global
economy. The heavy additional tariffs that may be raised by the
United States would negatively influence different industries once
it is adopted. Revenue of industrial equipment sector becomes
difficult to predict, the Group will pay close attention to the
changes in relevant circumstances. In the meantime, the Group
will strive to grasp different business opportunities in order to
minimise the risks and uncertainties involved in the unstable
economies.

BIEZHREEBARRIHE MTD-LTERERERE
BREMORS  J=_F_1F - ¢lﬁ%h
RAZKE&EARSGTMG - SGEEEEAIR
Eiﬁm%m*“z—omﬁmmﬂﬁ&@ﬁ
Te HBBHMFRE  FRE=-ABREBEEDT
E%E) - PEEERPREEE A ELET
SGHIE SR (EABREMEERNNZFHE
M—3D)  REHGESBESRE  BER_Z
“EFRIHEARERR - BBESGHEKIEN
i BEXEESHNEREeEEERE M
HREEFA-ARERHELENBBRE
FEHRER EFHAEEEAREBER LY
BB RBITMED °

HEERHEIIME AEEERBE—FH
BERERE - BRBEHRESABIERN  AEE
RN FMEZDEOHER - WESHBEN
% % B GE Healthcare Group B2 1] » [ ik Zx &

B D B RAR - ERE BRRERSH
FTRAEIEIN - AEETEHZ D #H R R FR

ﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁﬂ FEUERT » NEE G H#
BiRRERMEER - DMRTHELBERBIER K
ﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁ%uﬁ

MHIREESERAE  REREESRESL
THEEM - ERATRE MBI ENEINGEH —B
ESEM  BETRTEENEATE - %
RED NN EBBE TR AEBBR
BT HEBERIENEE - ﬁ%ﬂ%'$ﬁl%5
ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬂ%%%@ BEHEFERPOTEBEL
EIRE R R RS X EE T o

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER W&

To meet with the increasing demand as aforementioned, the
Group is making great efforts to enhance its production capacity
and look for more space for the production. On 24 September
2018, the proposed acquisition of a parcel of industrial land with
two industrial buildings (the “Target Property”) of Huizhou Light
Engine Limited (94% equity interest owned by United Luminous,
which in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul, the
Chairman, a non-executive Director and a controlling shareholder
of the Group) has been approved at the extraordinary general
meeting by the Independent Shareholders, at the consideration of
HK$166.8 million. Such acquisition would increase more than
120% of production capacity for telecommunication sector, data
centre sector and medical equipment sector. The acquisition has
been completed on 25 December 2018, and the Group plans to
utilise the enlarged capacity by stages within three years, 24
production lines will be schedule installed in the coming twelve
months. The Directors believe the acquisition of the Target
Property would add stability to the Group’s sustainable
development in medium term.

With regard to the additional tariffs that may be raised by the
United States on certain Chinese imported goods, the Group has
been taking measures to mitigate the impact of trade war on its
businesses since 2018. In April 2019, the Group has changed the
supply source away from China for the certain major components
of products to be shipped to the United States for avoidance of
the additional tariffs. Besides, the Group also procured from the
U.S. Customs and Border Protection the “Country of origin and
Marking Ruling” for the Group’s fibre cable assembly products in
February 2019. Accordingly, the fibre cable assembly products will
not be subjected to additional tariffs when importing into the
United States in the future even though the major components of
the fibre cable assembly products are purchased from China. In
this connection, the Group has preliminarily assessed that the
additional tariffs will not have a material adverse impact on its
businesses in the United States in the current fiscal year 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 March 2019 were approximately
HK$549.1 million, which represented an increase of 19.7% from
HK$458.7 million in the last financial year. The increase was
mainly due to the profit attributable to equity shareholders for the
current year and difference in the foreign currency exchange rate
from converting Renminbi into Hong Kong dollars as recorded in
the financial statements of the PRC subsidiary following the
currency appreciation of Renminbi during FY2019. Shareholders’
funds per share was HK$0.30, same as last financial year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$223.8 million, representing a decrease of 20.0% as compared
to HK$279.6 million as of 31 March 2018. It was mainly due to
HK$104.8 million was utilised from the net proceeds of HK$126.6
million received from the listing, and the increase in cash
generated from operating activities during the current year. As at
31 March 2019, the Group's bank loan was HK$49.2 million, an
increase of 18.6% from HK$41.5 million in the last financial year.
The Group maintained sufficient banking facilities and did not
have any outstanding long-term bank borrowings as at 31 March
2019.

Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8  AEERTLEH
RIS A238FEAET BW_E—\E=H
—+—HBM2796BEEE L L200%  £E
BB A TR TSR E SR 1266 B 8
BITHEMI048EEBT UERAFEARK
EEHELENRSEMAR - R_E—NLF=
B=+—8B AEERFTERAEL92BES
TR E—UVRFEFENMNSEE B TIE M
18.6% °c NEBEMHRFATHIRITHE R
—NEFEZA=Z+—HITETMHREENRE
SRITIEEK ©

REMBRERBIN

For the year ended 31 March BE=ZA=1+—HLFE 2019 2018 Change # &
HK$’million HKS$ 'million HK$ 'million
BEEET BHEET HEET
Operating profit eyl 147.6 189.3 (41.7)
Listing expenses EshilsFa - (24.4) 24.4
Release of prepaid lease payments BARTEREER 0.5 - 0.5
Depreciation and amortisation T N g 19.6 1.3 8.3
EBITDA (excluding imputed financial ~ EBITDA (0B 8 & 81 7%
guarantee income) PRI 167.7 176.2 (8.5)
Interest income FEWA (1.3) (0.5) (0.8)
Gain on disposal of tangible assets HEBREENNRZ - (0.4) 0.4
Write off of inventories MEEsE 3.0 2.6 0.4
Share based payments LARS 7 2 EREE 1 5k 3.8 - 3.8
Working capital change LEEeE 1.7) 15.4 (17.1)
Cash generated from operations REEELENERSE 1715 193.3 (21.8)

The Group’s cash generated from operations for FY2019 was
HK$171.5 million, a decrease of 11.3% as compared to HK$193.3
million in the previous financial year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in EBITDA in FY2019 and the change
of working capital as compared with the previous financial year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Working Capital Change EEESEH
As at 31 March R=ZA=+—H 2018 Change # 2019
HKS$’'million HKS$'million HK$'million
H&EET B&EBT BEETT
Stocks FE 195.3 (8.7) 186.6
Trade debtors FEURBE1H 237.7 (73.5) 164.2
Other debtors, deposits and Hib U - e &
prepayments TR 39.6 (6.0) 33.6

Trade creditors FETER IR (328.3) 72.3 (256.0)
Other creditors and accruals HEN T RESTER (36.4) 6.3 (30.1)
Total working capital EEESSHE 107.9 (9.6) 98.3

Stock as of 31 March 2019 were HK$186.6 million, decreased
from HK$195.3 million as of 31 March 2018. The turnover days

was 67 days, increased 7 days from last financial year.

RZE-—NFZA=Z+—HHNEHFA1866H
ERAT B N\F=ZA=+—H#H1953
BEBSTERLY - AEEHHA67TH  ®E—
HIERIEM7 B -

As at 31 March R=A=+—AH 2019 2018

HKS$’million HK$’million

BEET BEET

Stock B 186.6 195.3
Average stocks as a percentage of Cost of FHEFELHEEERKA

Goods Sold Bkt 18.4% 16.5%

Turnover days IEEA=E -} 67 days 60 days

67 H 60 H

Trade debtors as of 31 March 2019 were HK$164.2 million,
decreased from HK$237.7 million as of 31 March 2018. The lower
trade debtor balance as at 31 March 2019 was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue in the last quarter of financial year 2019
compared with the previous financial year. Debtors’ turnover days
continuously improved from 65 days to 56 days. The improvement
on turnover days was mainly due to the early payment from its
major customer of telecommunication sector.

BEFRIERER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

The Group has tight management on credit exposure, and has
delegated a Credit Team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced. The overdue balances greater
than 30 days accounted for 1.2% of the gross trade debtors as of
31 March 2019.

AEBHEERRETHERER  WIEKEE
l%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz#m EEE it I
REHMEERRF - MRAERIUREEEIKRE
BHER - N AEBRESREHRRFTE
SRINEEN I E S - AR W E
CHEREXTTREEBE RtMs EFR
B AEBNEERBRBEZERE - R-2ZT—A
FZAZ=Z+—8  @HHBIB30 B EAERE
JEWBRTEEEEAM1.2% ©

As at 31 March W=A=+—AH 2019 2018

HK$’million HK$ million

BEET B&ET

Trade debtors and bills receivables EWERE R ERERE 164.2 237.7
Average trade debtors as a percentage of FHREKERBGE RGBS

revenue 15.3% 17.7%

Turnover days IEEEA=E 56 days 65 days

56 H 65 H

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments as of 31 March
2019 were HK$33.6 million, decreased from HK$39.6 million as
of 31 March 2018. It was mainly attributable to the decrease of
value added tax receivables.

Trade creditors as of 31 March 2019 were HK$256.0 million, as
compared to HK$328.3 million as of 31 March 2018. Creditors’

—NFZA=Z+—HHHEMEKRXK - &
ERBAREA3IASETL F:%—AE
—A=+t—H®396E&BTAMEYD
A FE UK I (B R Rl D P ER o

R-ZE-NF=A=+—BNENKRIEA256.0
BEBTT ﬁ:%—ﬂi_ﬂ_+—aﬁns3

turnover days improved from 99 days to 103 days. BEBIT  BNFNEAEBEHMHOBNE

103 H »

As at 31 March R=ZA=+—H 2019 2018

HK$’million HK$’'million

BEETT B &EET

Trade creditors and bills payables BRERENEZRE 256.0 328.3
Average trade creditors as a percentage of FHEMERBEEEERKAR

Cost of Goods Sold Bkt 28.2% 27.0%

Turnover days JESE =k 2 103 days 99 days

103 H 99H

Other creditors and accruals as of 31 March 2019 were
HK$30.1 million, decreased from HK$36.4 million as of 31 March
2018, which was mainly due to the decrease in general accrued
charges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEER W&

Capital Expenditure

For FY2019, the Group invested HK$182.6 million in the purchase
of tangible assets including machinery and equipment, leasehold
improvements, office equipment, as well as the improvement of
manufacturing working environment and the acquisition of
factory building through acquisition of a subsidiary.

Charge on Group Assets

Save for the bank deposits that were pledged in order to secure
the bills payables issued by the bank under the general banking
facilities granted to the Group, as at 31 March 2019 and 2018,
banking facilities extended to the Group were not secured with
the Group’s assets. Pledged bank deposits amounted to HK$18.0
million and HK$16.3 million as at 31 March 2018 and 2019
respectively.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated as total debt (summation of amount
due to ultimate holding company, and unsecured bank
borrowings) divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%. As at
31 March 2019, the Group's gearing ratio was 9.0% as compared
to the last financial year 9.1%.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange on 13 February 2018. There has been no
change in the capital structure of the Group since then. The share
capital of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s issued share capital was

HK$18.4 million and the number of its issued ordinary shares were
1,840,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 January 2018 (the
“Prospectus”) with the actual business progress for the period
from the date of listing (i.e. 13 February 2018) to 31 March 2019
is set out below:

Business plan as set out in Prospectus

BREEMBNEETE

EREREERRBEREER

BAAFEHAZZE - \F—A=1THNEBEK
ER(BRERMFREZESKEZHE FTHA
BHEIZE-NF_A+T=R)E=Z—hLF=
A=+ —BHHERERERELEN T
T

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2019
BE-Z-NEF=ZA=+-—HNERXKER

Pursue strategic industries which we the Group believes to have high growth potential:

EIRFEEARAESEREHEMIEITE -

The Group plans to intensify its presence in the
telecommunication, data centre, and medical
equipment sectors by dedicating sufficient
resources, including the purchase of new
laboratory and testing equipment, and the hiring
of experienced and talented personnel to join its
R&D team and to strengthen its product
development capabilities. The Group plans to
invest and spend approximately HK$8.6 million in
further strengthening its R&D capability.

Up to 31 March 2019, the Group has utilised HK$2.5
million of the net proceeds for the new testing equipment
and hired 17 experienced personnel in order to
strengthen the Group’s R&D capabilities. The remaining
balance of the net proceeds will be expected to utilise
after the completion of the production plant acquisition.
BEEZE_ZT-NF=ZA=+—0 REEDHTAAZE
MBA2.5BEBTTAERIBFE  WIEMA172ELR
AR - (b RSB - 88 TS IRF5E
TR TR B E EME R EA -

o AKEFIEBBLTHERKE NRAEM
BT OREBRERETE  BRBENEREM
RIBERME - BB BRI 880 A B R INAE
HEE AR EMMEEN - AREEIRE
FMER#)8.6 A& BTHKE —FRICEFEEEN -
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Business plan as set out in Prospectus

BREREMBVELTE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Actual business progress up to 31 March 2019
BE-_Z-hEF=ZA=+-HNERELER

Enhance and increase the production capacity:

A IEIERE -

o The Group plans to acquire new production
facilities to aim at high level of automation yet
capable of assembling a wide variety of cable
assembly products. The Group plans to invest
approximately HK$96.1 million for the production
capacity expansion (HK$88.6 million for the new
production facility and HK$7.5 million for the
related production machinery) and HK$15.9 million
for the automation expenditures.

e AEEGFENBLEERE SEHEHECHR
AR -ZIEREHERNSEEBERE - K
SEFEKRENGINBEETIERAER A
(88.6 BB BTLIENMEERMBRISAEET
e EE#SE A X598 8B TiEEEt
2 -°

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has spent HK$6.2
million and HK$3.2 million for the production machinery
and automation process in order to meet the demand of
existing production capacity. In addition, the Group has
acquired a parcel of industrial land with two industrial
buildings of Huizhou Light Engine Limited at the
consideration of HK$166.8 million, where HK$88.6
million was paid by the net proceeds from the listing, and
the balance was paid by internal resources. The new
factory would offer more than 120% of the increased
production capacity in terms of increment in gross floor
area for production, and the Company plans to utilise the
enlarged capacity by stages within three years following
completion. The new factory will be utilised for
telecommunication, data centre and medical equipment
sector.

RZZB-NAF=ZR=+—RH AKEZXH62BES
TR32ABETIELEERE LB IRFZA - K
BMAERFTHK I AEBZARE166.8B 58
TT(HP 8.6 BEBILIA L MPTS IR FREEN - ik
BRI AR BN E R ) WIB BN T L BRI AR A A
B — R TR M@ mIE TR AR 8 TRUE A A ER
EEEBSERIL N 120% + AR EHEIRUBETEK
BRE=FAIERMNBEANER - FTIHMEANE
A BERORBEREREDE

Strengthen established customer relationships and continue to expand customer base:

IMERBEFHRLFERER I EFE -

e The Group plans to spend approximately HK$1.9
million to set up regional representative offices or
centre in key strategic locations where potential
customers are located to support its future
business development and to enable the Group to
respond quickly to the needs of customers in
different regions.

s AEEHBNENIIOBEATEEBERPIE
MR RRE IR ERIGREBRBEIF L - A
FFHARRERER LB AEE R AR ER
wRNELHR -
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group has spent HK$0.2
million for setting up a regional representative office in
Shanghai where will take care its potential customers in
eastern and northern part of China. The Group plans to
hire 2 to 3 new sales personnel in order to provide
services to strengthen the Group’s salesforce.
RZZE-NF=ZA=1+—0 FAEECIHEE02EES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES AND USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
LISTING

During FY2019, the Group was committed to expand its
production capacity by acquiring a new production factory,
purchasing of production equipment and upgrading of existing
production and quality equipment, which is in line with the use of
proceeds from the listing that was set out in the Prospectus. The
net proceeds from the listing of the Company were HK$126.6
million (after deducting underwriting fees and related expenses).
The use of the net proceeds from the listing as at 31 March 2019
was approximately as follows:

BEXREE  IREERLTHAESREF
BERR

RZZE-NFRFE  NEBBHIEFRER
LR ERMHE EMASRERRBANLEE
I BELEREBEMAARBREEEREER
#He KRR ETAEHRIBEFELAI1266EEB
T (ENBREHEBRAMEARAY) - RZT—N
FZA=Z+—HB " LTHABEREFENARK
BT

Percentage

of net Net Amount Amount
proceeds proceeds utilised remaining

LTS FIR Fris R
Use of proceeds FBRERE FBHEESL FBHE CBHRASE R
%  HK$'million  HK$'million — HK$'million
% BHEET BHEET BE#T
New production facility FTHEERME 70.0% 88.6 88.6 -
R&D equipment e 6.8% 8.6 2.5 6.1
Production machinery AR 5.9% 7.5 6.2 1.3
Automation process B8t TR 12.6% 15.9 3.2 12.7
Marketing development HIHERE 1.5% 1.9 0.2 1.7
General working capital —REEES 3.2% 4.1 4.1 -
Total et 100.0% 126.6 104.8 21.8

As of 31 March 2019, the Group had not provided any form of
guarantee for any company outside the Group and has not been
involved in any material legal proceedings for which provision for
contingent liabilities was required.

As at 31 March 2019, the capital commitment of the Group is as
follows:

R-ZF-NFZA=1T—0 AEEXLERX
& BLASMERI A RIMERZ A AERER - REE
BEREREEFAMARKABBEIEL R -

RIF-NAF=ZA=1+—H  AEEHNERK
EmT

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRAYER T ERRRES
acquisition of property, plant and g mRIEE BB E
equipment contracted but not provided iR &R ER AR
for in the consolidated financial
statements 3,595 3,287
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES AND PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investments held, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associations for FY2019. There is no other plan
for material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2019.

MATERIAL EVENT SINCE THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there has no other important
event affecting the Group since 31 March 2019 and up to the
date of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors believe that there are certain risks and uncertainties
involved in the operations of the Group, some of which are
beyond the Group’s control. The Directors believe the most
significant risks relating to the business are as follows:

— a significant portion of the Group’s revenue during the
Track Record Period was derived from a limited number of
major customers, especially the Group'’s largest customer, as
such, the Group are exposed to the risk of customer
concentration and the Group’s revenue may fluctuate
significantly in the event the Group’s orders from major
customers vary by a large extent;

— the orders from US customers may be impacted by the list
of products with Chinese origin announced by the United
States of America on 15 June 2018;

—  the Group may experience labour shortage or unrest or may
incur high labour costs;

—  the Group are exposed to credit risk of its customers;
—  fluctuations in the prices of the Group’s major raw materials
or commodity prices could materially and adversely affect

the Group's business, financial conditions and results of
operations;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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— if the Group fail to attract or retain its key managerial and
technical personnel, the Group may compromise its ability
to maintain strong relationships with its customers and
suppliers, develop new products and effectively carry on the
R&D and other efforts.

A detailed discussion of the risk factors is set forth in the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Most of the Group’s receipts and payments are denominated in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and Euro. The Group’s
management monitors the risk of related foreign exchange
exposure by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts.
Foreign currency exchange rates are volatile and may have an
impact on the Group’s results. The Group’s management
evaluates the Group’s foreign currency exposure on a continuing
basis and takes actions to minimise the Group’s exposure
whenever necessary.

Treasury Policies

As an internal treasury policy, the Group continues to implement
a prudent policy on financial management policy and does not
participate in any high risk speculative activities. However, the
Group’s management monitors exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise. Save for the net proceeds from the listing, the Group
will also monitor and maintain a Hong Kong dollar cash balance in
order to minimise the need for unnecessary foreign exchange
conversion which may result in exchange loss.

The reporting currency of the Group is presented in Hong Kong
Dollars, as the Directors consider that it is more relevant to the
users of the consolidated financial statements as the Company
listed its shares on the Stock Exchange.

EMPLOYEE

As of 31 March 2019, the total headcount for the Company was
approximately 2,033, compared to 2,168 in the previous financial
year. Fair and competitive remuneration package and benefits are
offered to employees as well as discretionary bonuses and share
option. Various types of trainings were provided to the employees.
Total employee benefit expenses including Directors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31 March 2019 were approximately HK$201.6
million, as compared to approximately HK$156.7 million in the
financial year 2018. Remuneration is determined with reference to
performance skills, qualifications and experience of the staff
concerned and in accordance with the prevailing industry practice.
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In additional to salaries and wages, other employee benefit
expenses include double pay, bonus, incentive allowance, medical
insurance, housing fund and other social insurances, as well as
share option. The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme to
offer valuable incentive to attract and retain quality personnel. The
remuneration of the Directors is reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and approved by the Board. The relevant Director’s experience,
duties and responsibilities, time commitment, the Company's
performance and the prevailing market conditions are taken into
consideration in determining the emolument of the Directors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group has a strong, long-established relationship with its key
customers, which include leading telecommunication equipment
and network solutions provider in the PRC, global internet-related
service providers and multinational medical equipment
manufacturers that have extensive international coverage. The
Group has developed multi-products strategy and also
strengthened its scope of services to its global customers. The
Group will continue to diversify its customer base and the
Directors believe that the extent of customer concentration is likely
to decrease in the future.

The Group maintains long-term relationships with suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group has no concentration or a high level of
dependency on a small groups of suppliers. The Group carefully
selects its suppliers based on certain assessment criteria, such as
overall track record, scale and expertise, cost, product quality and
quality control effectiveness, reliability, price, delivery punctuality,
historical relationship with the Group, financial condition,
reputation and aftersales services. During the selection process,
the Group generally carries regular on-site examination of its
potential suppliers to ensure that they meet its selection criteria.
The Group carries out evaluation of the performance of its existing
suppliers and identifies better third party suppliers from time to
time to replace the suppliers who fail to perform to its satisfaction.
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The Group recognises and supports the culture of attracting,
motivating and retaining talents. The Group provides competitive
compensation and benefits for its employees. Remuneration
packages are generally structured by reference to market and
individual merits. Salaries are normally reviewed on an annual
basis based on individual performance and financial performance
of the Group. Those employees with outstanding performance are
also awarded discretionary bonuses. The Group promotes open
communications, encourages continuous learning and supports
different kind of training on leadership development programme.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to creating a sustainable and greener
environment and continues to explore ways to reduce carbon
emissions, conserve energy and reduce wastage. The Group has
implemented various environmental and sustainability initiatives in
its factory and offices, such as replacing all lighting systems in the
Huizhou factory with LED lights; adopting heat recovery system to
recover the residual heat from the air compressor to heat up water
supply in dormitory; encouraging video and phone conference to
minimise carbon footprint created by business-related travel. Being
a responsible social citizen, the Group has been actively involved
in charitable activities in the communities and cities where its
factories are operating, and encouraging the employees to
participate in in-house or external community activities. During
FY2019, the Group has been participating various environmental
and social related scheme and awarded a lot of certificates, such
as EcoPartner and 5 Years + EcoPioneer of the Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards; Good MPF Employer; Better
World Company; Happy Company; Industry Cares; Social Capital
Builder Award; 10 Years + Caring Company; 9th Hong Kong
Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Logo and Meritorious Family-
Friendly Employers Award — Special Mention (Gold). The
Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(collectively the "ESG Report”), which discusses in detail its
initiatives on environmental and social aspects and their
performance, is set out in the ESG Report section of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company upholds high standards and meets relevant
requirements under applicable laws or ordinances when
conducting its business. The Company did not identify non-
compliance or breach of relevant standards, rules and regulations
during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon (# X &) (“Mr. Cua”), aged 57, is the
chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and an
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Cua was appointed as
Director on 15 June 2017 and re-designated as the Chief Executive
Officer and executive Director of the Company on 10 July 2017.
Mr. Cua is responsible for overall corporate management,
operations and business development. He also plays a critical role
in formulating the strategies and driving the sustainable growth of
the Group with new opportunities. Mr. Cua has gathered
extensive experiences in the electronics and cable industry in the
PRC since the 1980s. Prior to joining the Group in 1992, Mr. Cua
started his career with Gold Peak Group (i.e. Gold Peak Industries
(Holdings) Limited (“Gold Peak”) and its subsidiaries). From 2007
to 2014, Mr. Cua was a director of Lingsen Precision Industries,
Ltd., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation
(stock code: 2369).

Mr. Cua obtained a Master of Business Administration in October
2005 and was further awarded honorary Doctorate of Laws (LL.D.)
in May 2015 from The University of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr.
Cua was honoured with the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong in December 2001 and became as awardee member of
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. Mr. Cua is one of the
founding members of the China Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs
Association (“COCEA") and has been a member of COCEA since
January 2008. He has also been elected as a council member of
International Cablemakers Federation since 2014. He is currently a
member of Hong Kong-Shanghai Economic Development
Association, the director of Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship
Association and the executive committee member of Hong Kong
Electronic Industries Association and Hong Kong Electronics
Industry Council.

Mr. Wong Chi Kuen (E & ) (“Mr. Wong"), aged 54, is the
chief financial officer (the “Chief Financial Officer”) and an
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s finance, compliances, operation and
administration. Mr. Wong was appointed as Director on 15 June
2017 and re-designated as the Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director on 10 July 2017.
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Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong in June 2002. Mr. Wong is
currently a fellow member of the Association of International
Accountants and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was also admitted as
International Accountant (FAIA) jointly by Association of
International Accountants and China Association of Chief Financial
Officers in 2016.

Mr. Wong has over 21 years of experience in management
accounting and operation management. He is particularly familiar
with accounting and enterprise resource planning management
system in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Wong worked for Linkz
Industries (the controlling shareholder of the Company) from 1994
to 2007 with last position as chief accountant. From 2007 to
2010, Mr. Wong served in LTK International Limited (a subsidiary
of Belden Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange of New
York (stock code: BDC), with his last position as the finance
director of OEM business group. Mr. Wong re-joined Linkz
Industries as financial controller in July 2010 prior to becoming the
Chief Financial Officer of the Group in July 2017.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul (Z{H)&) (“Mr. Paul Lo"), aged 70, is
the chairman (the “Chairman”) and non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Paul Lo is responsible for the overall strategic
management and corporate development. He was appointed as
Director on 15 June 2017 and re-designated as the Chairman and
non-executive Director on 10 July 2017.

Mr. Paul Lo has over 41 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He has extensive experience in global marketing and has
been instrumental in the corporate and business development of
the Group, particularly in the formulation of corporate strategies
as well as market positioning of significant products. He is one of
the co-founders of and served as an executive director for Gold
Peak, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from 1977 to 2011. From July 1990 to August 1997, Mr. Paul Lo
was a director of GP Batteries International Limited, a company
listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (stock code: GD8). From March 1998 to
December 2014, Mr. Paul Lo was a supervisor of Lingsen Precision
Industries, Ltd., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation (stock code: 2369). Mr. Paul Lo is currently the
general councilor of the Sixth Council of Guangdong Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and the Vice President of
the Seventh Council of Huizhou Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment of China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Hin Shun ({f£815) (“Mr. Ho"), aged 54, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director on 24 January 2018. Mr.
Ho is responsible for providing independent judgment on the
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 21 years of experience in
sales and marketing on electronics components and substantial
management experience in multinational corporations.

Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor of Science in Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1987. He further obtained
his Master of Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 1994.

Mr. Luk Wai Shing (BE{ZFX ) (“Mr. Luk”), aged 50, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director on 24 January 2018. Mr.
Luk is responsible for providing independent judgment on the
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct of the Group.

Mr. Luk had worked for Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
("NCB"”) from 1992 to 2017 and held a number of positions
during his course of employment at NCB with his last position
held as chief relationship manager in cross-border business team.
Mr. Luk’s responsibilities in NCB included business development,
marketing, customers relationship and compliance.

Mr. Luk obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1992. Mr. Luk has
been a certified financial planner accredited by the Institute of
Financial Planners of Hong Kong since October 2010.

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric (BR£15) (“Mr. Eric Chan"), aged 53,
was appointed as the independent non-executive Director on 24
January 2018. Mr. Eric Chan is responsible for providing
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Mr. Eric Chan obtained a Master of Management Sciences from
University of Hull in December 1992. Mr. Eric Chan has been a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since February 1996 and a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January
1998.
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Mr. Eric Chan has served as an assistant accounting manager at
FTB Packaging Limited from April 1993 to August 1996 and a
finance controller at Asia Management Services Limited from
November 1996 to November 2002. Mr. Eric Chan has also been
a financial controller at Chen Hsong Holdings Limited (stock code:
57), a company listed on the Main Board, since January 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Yi Fu ((k—3X) (“Mr. Chu"), aged 53, joined the Group in
April 2018 as the General Manager of TIME Interconnect
Technology (Huizhou) Limited (“Huizhou TIME"). He is also
currently a director of Huizhou Chuangxiang. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the overall manufacturing operation of
the Group, driving new initiatives to ensure that the factory’s
operation can align with the strategic development of the Group.

Mr. Chu has over 17 years’ working experience in various cable
companies covering the domains of engineering, sales and
marketing as well as factory management. During March 2007 to
December 2008, he was the general manager of Shanghai LTK
Electronic Cables Limited, a subsidiary of Belden Inc. (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of New York (stock code: BDC)). Mr.
Chu obtained an EMBA from Fudan University, PRC in June 2010.

Mr. Chan Ting Hei (BREFE) ("Mr. Chan”), aged 55, joined the
Group in 1992 and is currently the Assistant General Manager of
Supply Chain Management of the Group and a director of
Huizhou TIME. Mr. Chan is primarily responsible for overseeing
the supply chain management and purchasing functions of the
Group.

Mr. Chan has over 29 years’ working experience in the cable
industry covering the domains of sales and marketing, purchasing,
supply chain management and factory management. Mr. Chan
obtained a Master of Science in Management of Manufacture
from Coventry Polytechnic (now known as Coventry University) in
October 1989, a Master of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia in September 1999 and a Master of
Arts in International Business Management in November 2001
from the City University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Zhan Yangwang ( 5% EE) (“Mr. Zhan”), aged 46, joined the
Group in 2012 and is currently the Assistant Financial Controller
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
functions of finance, accounting and internal control of the
Group.

Mr. Zhan has over 23 years’ working experience in the accounting
and finance field. Mr. Zhan obtained an Associate Degree of
Industrial Management Engineering in Industrial Accounting from
Nanchang University in July 1995 and a Master of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
November 2010.

Mr. Zhou Yinfa (FE$R %) ("Mr. Zhou"), aged 54, joined the
Group in 2005 and is currently the Assistant General Manager of
Project and Administration of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the functions of human resources,
infrastructure and automation projects of the Group.

Mr. Zhou has over 30 years' working experience in various cable
companies. During August 2002 to September 2005, he was the
assistant general manager of Huizhou GP Wiring Technology
Limited (a subsidiary of Gold Peak). Mr. Zhou obtained a Bachelor
of Engineering from South China University of Technology in July
1988. He has been qualified as an electrical and mechanical
engineer since March 1995.

Mr. Li Yuezhong (ZE ) (“Mr. Li”), aged 49, joined the Group in
2003 and is currently the Assistant General Manager of Overseas
Sales of the Group. He is primarily responsible for driving overseas
business, developing new overseas customers and markets,
formulating and implementing sales plans and maintaining
customer relationships as to drive the sustainable growth of the
business.

Mr. Li has over 26 years' working experience in various cable
companies. He obtained an Associate Degree in Secretarial Studies
from Xiangtan University in August 1993 and a National
Marketing Manager Qualification Certificate from the Marketing
Professional Committee of China Business Manager Association in
July 2004.
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Mr. Tan Dehua (FEfE%) (“Mr. Tan"), aged 56, joined the Group
in 2002 and is currently the Assistant General Manager of
Manufacturing and Production Technology. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the production and manufacturing
engineering of the Group.

Mr. Tan has over 26 years’ working experience in the
manufacturing sector, covering the domains of production, quality
and factory management. He obtained a Bachelor of Engineering
from Central South University (formerly known as Central South
University of Technology) in July 1987. Mr. Tan has been qualified
as a geotechnical engineer since October 1992.

Mr. Zhong Xilin (8 Z#) ("Mr. Zhong"), aged 39, joined the
Group in 2003 and is currently the Assistant General Manager of
Domestic Sales of the Group. He is primarily responsible for
identifying new customers and markets, formulating and
implementing sales plans and maintaining customer relationships
as to drive the sustainable growth of the business.

Mr. Zhong has over 19 years’ working experience in the cable
industry. He completed a professional training in Plants Protection
from Hengyang City Agricultural School in July 1999.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Hoi Ying (R1&Z) (“Ms. Ng"), aged 32, was appointed as
the Company Secretary of the Company on 1 March 2019.

She obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration
(Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Ng has over 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial reporting. She worked as senior auditor of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu from September 2008 to November 2011. From
November 2011 to October 2014, Ms. Ng worked as a senior
accountant in Asia Maritime Pacific (Hong Kong) Limited, a
privately-owned shipping company. From October 2014 to
October 2018, Ms. Ng worked as finance manager of Ngai Shun
Construction & Drilling Company Limited, a subsidiary of Boill
Healthcare Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1246), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She is currently a company
secretarial manager at Blooming (HK) Business Limited, a company
primarily engaged in corporate advisory and company secretarial
services.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sales of
cable assembly products (the “Core Business”). Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year is set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 28 December 2018. Details of the Dividend Policy is disclosed
as below.

The Company adopts a general dividend policy that aims to
provide shareholders of the Company out of the Group’s profit
attributable to shareholders in any financial year, subject to the
criteria set out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the discretion of the Board and subject to all
applicable requirements (including without limitation restrictions
on dividend declaration and payment) under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia:

o the Group actual and expected financial performance;

. shareholders’ interests;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

o the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and financial covenants to which the Group is subject;

o possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;
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o the Group's expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

o liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;

o taxation considerations;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions;

o general business conditions and strategies;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any, with
respect to the Company'’s shares on a per share basis.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the form of
shares subject to and in accordance with the procedures set out in
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

Except for interim dividend, any dividends declared by the
Company must be approved by an ordinary resolution of
shareholders at the general meeting and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to
time pay to the shareholders such interim dividends as appear to
the directors to be justified by the profits of the Company
available for distribution.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserve the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Pursuant to the Code Provision E.1.5 under Appendix 14
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report,
the Company should disclose the policy on payment of dividend in
the annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of this annual report. The state of affairs
of the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2019 are set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position and Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. The Directors
do recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2 cents
(2018: HK1 cent) per share, amounting to a total of approximately
HK$36.8 million (2018: HK$18.4 million).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBER

The forthcoming annual general meeting is scheduled to be held
on Wednesday, 28 August 2019 (the “2019 AGM"). For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 23 August 2019 to Wednesday, 28 August 2019, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the
2019 AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch share
registrar of the company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22
August 2019.

In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will also be
closed from Tuesday, 3 September 2019 to Thursday, 5
September 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares in the Company will be registered. All transfer
of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 2 September 2019. If the
resolution of the proposed final dividend is passed at the 2019
AGM, the proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or
before Wednesday, 25 September 2019.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the five financial years is set out on page 208 in this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in Note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement of
changes in equity and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to owners comprising share premium account and
accumulated profit, amounted to approximately HK$272 million.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 24
January 2018 (the “Scheme”). The terms of the Scheme are in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and other relevant rules and regulations. Further
details of the Share Option Scheme are set forth in the section
headed “Statutory and General Information — E. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus and Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction of which the
Company is incorporate, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 March 2019 amounted to HK$57,500 (2018: HK$2,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, upon the date of listing, a non-
exempt continuing connected transaction has been entered into
and will continue to be carried out between the Company and
Linkz Industries.

Linkz Industries, through Time Interconnect Holdings Limited
(“Time Holdings”), holds 1,175,070,000 shares (representing
63.86% of the Group’s enlarged total share capital) and remains
as the controlling shareholder. Mr. Paul Lo, considered himself
and his shareholdings in Nickson Holdings Limited (“Nickson
Holdings”), holds the controlling shares in Linkz Industries
representing indirectly control 38.2% of the Group’s enlarged
total share capital. Therefore, Linkz Industries is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Linkz Industries, with its subsidiaries conducted a business in the
manufacture and sales of a range of products including
networking cables, LED video display screens as well as leasing of
LED video display screens.

The related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

Linkz Industries Framework Agreement

The Group has entered into the agreement between the Company
and Linkz Industries prior to the Listing for a term ending on 31
March 2020, for (i) the Group will sell a variety of cable assembly
products, in accordance with the specifications and requirements,
to Linkz Group; and (ii) the Group will purchase copper cable
products from Linkz Group.
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Linkz Group has been providing materials to the Group for almost
ten years and maintaining a track record of providing reliable,
efficient and satisfactory cable materials to the Group. Compared
with other cable manufacturers, Linkz Group demonstrates to
always meet the Group’s requirements and technical specifications
on cable supplies and that the Group experienced no material
dispute in regard to the delivery and quality of its products.
Therefore, by riding on the reputation of Linkz Group as an
experienced and reliable manufacturer of LED video display
screens and networking cables in the PRC, the Board believes the
said agreement will strengthen the business profile and also the
sales of the Group.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
consider that all of the continuing connected transactions above
and their respective annual caps are fair and reasonable, and that
such transactions have been and will be entered into the ordinary
and usual course of the business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms, are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of
the Group and Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Save disclosed above, details of all the fully exempted and non-
exempted continuing connected transactions are set out in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements that falls under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of the
Group’s aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately HK$546 million (41.5%), while the
percentage of the Group's total turnover attributable to the five
largest customers in aggregate was approximately HK$1,120
million (85.2%,).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentage of the
Group's purchase amount attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately HK$132 million (12.8%) of the total
direct costs for the period, while the percentage of the Group'’s
total purchase amount attributable to the five largest suppliers in
aggregate was approximately HK$380 million (36.7%) of the total
direct costs.

None of the Directors of the Company, or any of their close
associates or Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this annual report were as follow:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon "t (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen Mete2

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul "t 3 (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ho Hin Shun

Mr. Luk Wai Shing

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric
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In accordance with the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company, at each annual general meeting one third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All
Directors appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and all
Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Any Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation
in the three years preceding the annual general meeting shall
retire by rotation at such annual general meeting.

Notes:

1) Mr. Cua Tin Yin was appointed as the Director on 15 June 2017 and was re-
designated to be the executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on 10 July
2017.

2) Mr. Wong Chi Kuen was appointed as the Director on 15 June 2017 and was
re-designated to be the executive Director and Chief Financial Officer on 10
July 2017.

3) Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul was appointed as the Director on 15 June 2017 and
was re-designated to the non-executive Director and Chairman on 10 July
2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in
the execution of their duties in their offices.

Such provision was in force during the year ended 31 March 2019
and remained force as of the date of this annual report. The
Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHE

READNBDABERAANAR > RNEERER
BEAgL EREEINZ=02-EFEHF
BRE MABEFARIB=FWEEE—
R ZERTEEFMHEER  AIRKRREBS
RELBERET FIBBHESGZ AT IARME
RERNES  AEHREEEZEREERRE
RERIE WAIRZAG LERET  MAA
BESe R IERREEFTEHMEXNENE
= HAMEETERREFASETRL
WA & BB RSB -

RIRRBEFASN = FIEHERENEMNE
EARZBERBFERE LWERE

izt -

1) FARARER-Z—LFRATEARZEREERR
—EHE L AT RATRARTERRITRAER -

2) BEERAER _F-—LERNATAREZEREERN
TELFLATHBERRTEEFRERUBE -

3) EMEEER_T-LFANA+HEBEZEREFER
“EtE LA TRBPEIRIFNTESRERE -

BERERX

RIBARBIABERAMNMAR  BRERR
AR BEFRENARBEERGMERSR
BRE - AERET SRR EF S EFEM —
RATRERBRBUABEFABEZN
—IERAA RS B BK  BERAXM

X1

BRGRXNBE_T-NF=_A=T—"HL*F
EEM  YNAFHRABEFBEL - KRARN
FAERBLEFRESRSMBEEERR
REZRHUSERRE

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETHS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended 31 March 2019.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Director’s Report — Related Party
Transaction and Continuing Connected Transaction” above and in
the sections headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had entered into
any contract of significance with the Company’s controlling
shareholders or their subsidiaries, or any contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by the Company’s controlling shareholders or their
subsidiaries, during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” below and the share option
scheme disclosures in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

ESRBEHN

5 35 AN 2% ) o {6 I 2 R B4 2T ST T4
HEEE CRE R B AN BI TR — F A A
B ERRBA D -

ESRERSHzER

MEEENARA - HER QA S E RN E
RAMNBE-_T-NF=ZA=+T—BLFERN
RIMIHAKEERM S BEANEMNEG LT
HERUREHREEAELRS

ERBRRNREHHER

BEXEZEHE — BB NEERE
X5 —ERBREIRA [ EZERAR AR ]
K [FHEMRER S METPAREEI KRR
HAE ] P88 2 ) 150 8 B A % B4 PR BSOOR sl LY
BABRIMERERA LB BARRIZERER
Rl E B AR RA A B S E AR E A AR
HARTS 2 T EREL

EEREROUEREZNETR

BRTIXEFEREITRAERED - HEEK
I RERENERNRE | —BRARESE MR
B BHRMEE 25 TE M B UES B ERE F1R
S REREMKRE  BEEFMESIRES
B HIACB AR 18 5RH) F R A FE U A
RAEIRRAD MM ES ~ RKATEEFAZFER - MA
NEER AR TEELEALEREEETR
EREAEANE B FER -



COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the controlling shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) or their respective close associates has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has or may have
any other conflict of interests with the Group which would be
required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Non-Competition Undertakings

In order to avoid any possible future competition between the
Group and the Controlling Shareholders, namely (i) Mr. Paul Lo, (ii)
Nickson Holdings, (iii) Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited
("Gold Peak”), (iv) GP Industries Limited (“GP Industries”), (v)
Linkz Industries, (vi) Time Holdings, (vii) Linkz Management (Note)
(i.e. consists of two senior management members of Linkz
Industries, namely Mr. Sy Yuk Tsan, and Mr. Wong Wai Hung);
and (viii) Time Management (i.e. consists of two senior
management of the Group, namely Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon and
Mr. Chan Ting Hei) (each a “Covenantor” and collectively the
“Covenantors”), have entered into the deed of non-competition
(the "Deed of Non-competition”) with the Company (for itself
and as trustee for its subsidiaries) on 24 January 2018. Pursuant to
the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Covenantors has
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for
itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries) that, during the period that
the Deed of Non-competition remains effective, he/it shall not,
and shall procure that his/its associates (other than any member of
the Group) not to develop, acquire, invest in, participate in, carry
on or be engaged, concerned or interested or otherwise be
involved, whether directly or indirectly, in the Core Business that is
in competition with or likely to be in competition with the existing
business activity of any member of the Group.

Each of the Covenantors further undertakes that if any of him/it or
his/its associates other than any member of the Group is offered
or becomes aware of any business opportunity which may
compete directly or indirectly with the Core Business of the Group,
he/it shall (and he/it shall procure his/its associates to) notify the
Group in writing and the Group shall have a right of first refusal
of take up such business opportunity. The Group shall, within six
months after receipt of the written notice (or such longer period if
the Group is required to complete any approval procedures as set
out under the Listing Rules from time to time), notify the
Covenantor(s) whether the Group will exercise the right of first
refusal or not.
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The Group shall only exercise the right of first refusal upon the
approval of all the independent non-executive Directors (who do
not have any interest in such opportunity) and approval by the
Board/or Shareholders as required under relevant laws and
regulations and in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company in effect at the relevant time. The relevant
Covenantor(s) and the other conflicting Directors (if any) shall
abstain from participating in and voting at and shall not be
counted as quorum at all meetings of the Board where there is a
conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest including but
not limited to the relevant meeting of the independent non-
executive Directors for considering whether or not to exercise the
right of first refusal.

During the year, the Company had not received any information
in writing from any of the Controlling Shareholders in respect of
any new business opportunity which competed or might compete
with the existing and future business of the Group which were
offered to or came to the knowledge of the Controlling
Shareholders or their associates (other than any member of the
Group), and the Company has received an annual written
confirmation from each Controlling Shareholder of the Company
in respect of him/it or his/its associates in compliance with the
Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed and were satisfied that each of the
Controlling Shareholders of the Company had complied with the
Deed of Non-competition.

Note: Mr. Li Ping Kuen and Ms. Lo Ching Yee re-designated as the senior
management of TIME Interconnect Limited, thus they are no longer consists
of the Linkz Management.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements. The emolument of the number
of the highest paid individuals who are not the Directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in Note
10(B) to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019 falls within the following band:
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Number of Senior

Management
Emolument Band < & E BREBEEAZ
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 07T % 1,000,00078 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 1,500,000 78 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /87T % 2,000,000 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 87T % 2,500,000 78 7T 1

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once for each
year to discuss remuneration related matters (including the
remuneration of Directors and senior management) and review
the remuneration policy of the Group. It has been decided that
Remuneration Committee would determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of the Group's retirement benefit plans are set out in Note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts, no other contracts concerning the
management and/or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or subsisting during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of each of
the Directors and the chief executive in the shares of the
Company, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed companies (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange are set out as follows:

() Long Position in Shares of the Company

EERESTHRAERKRSG HERSD
REEENEZRXR

RZZF-NF=ZA=1T—H > EFRARAR
BITBABRARBREERBREE(EE
RES MEEEROEXVER) i - HEEERN
KiERERT  BEREES MHEFPIZE XV ER
F£7 K87 BAME AN R KB R A e R 28 Ok
BR(BEERERZ B RIIZFHRXEER
EFERBRRBEENERLRR) - RARER
7 M HAE 1511 26 352 (R B Re 0 ax I Pt & e il
WE L KRR - SRBE EWAR RIS+ AE
EHRARNEFTETEF R HHRESTH ([
PR AN ARNR B RE R ra e MR R
W

() REQXTARGHEFE

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature held/interested interest
i HEEREEN
EEHA 51, HE BHEAE BTt
Mr. Paul Lo (Note) Interest of a controlled 1,175,070,000 63.86%
corporation/others
BAPIRS A (MY3F) R EE R HAM 1,175,070,000 63.86%
Note: Hiat -

Mr. Paul Lo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Nickson
Holdings. Nickson Holdings and Mr. Paul Lo hold 20.14% and 39.68% of the
issued ordinary share capital of Linkz Industries, respectively, and Time
Holdings is wholly-owned by Linkz Industries. Accordingly, Mr. Paul Lo, is
deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Time Holdings for
the purpose of the SFO.
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Long Position in Shares of Associated Corporation
of the Company
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Approximate

Name of associated Name of Number of shares percentage of

corporation Director Nature of interest held/interested interest
i HEREN

AL E &R ExpnE ERME R E BMOEZEDL

Linkz Industries Mr. Cua (Note) Others 12,838,618 0.70%

BRIE I 5E 4 (ffat) Hity 12,838,618 0.70%

Note: Mt -

Mr. Cua is one of the senior management members of the Group, holding
1.09% of the issued ordinary share capital of Linkz Industries. Mr. Cua is also
holding 0.011% of the issued share capital of Gold Peak.

Long Position in the Underlying Shares of the
Share Options Granted under the Share Option
Scheme

MEERARESREEEREZ - HABATECDHTE
BIRANZ1.09% ° FISEA TR A S IL D ETRAZ0.011% °

() BEBERESIRHOBRENEBER

HHFRE

Number of the

Approximate
percentage of

underlying shares the total issued
interested and shares
nature of interests (%) *
HERITRMOBEN
BEEZNEBRS BAOBE DL
Name of the Directors EENA HEERERME (%) *
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Cua e 10,488,000 0.570
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen HERELE 9,528,000 0.518
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Paul Lo BITELEAE 1,824,000 0.099
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Ho Hin Shun AR 5T A& 1,824,000 0.099
Mr. Luk Wai Shing P& A % A& 1,824,000 0.099
Mr. Chan Chung Shun, Eric PR B S 1,824,000 0.099
* The percentage was calculated based on 1,840,000,000 shares in * Ao IRE-ZE—NAF=A=+—HEETH

issue as at 31 March 2019.

1,840,000,000 & i {n 5+ & »
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the following persons/entities (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or were
deemed to have an interest or a short position in the Shares or the
underlying Shares of the Company which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO,
or who were directly or indirectly, to be interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or
any other member of the Group:
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Long Positions in the Shares
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RO HWEFR

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature held/interested interest
e Lok 33:
=L 5,/ HE R EE BMAOESEEDL
Time Holdings Beneficial Owner 1,175,070,000 63.86%
EDEAA

Linkz Industries (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 1,175,070,000 63.86%

BRTEMET) RYE A B

Ms. Ho Hsiu Lan (Note 2) Interest of spouse 1,175,070,000 63.86%

FEBLR L (FiE2) Fo Bt

Nickson Holdings (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 1,175,070,000 63.86%

NI (faE3) SR o

GP Industries (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 1,175,070,000 63.86%

GP T (Hfat4) YA E s

Gold Peak (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporation 1,175,070,000 63.86%

T (AFaES) R LB s

Datatech Investment Beneficial Owner 204,930,000 11.14%

EDHEAA

Mr. Kwong Ping Man (Note 6) Interest of controlled corporation 204,930,000 11.14%

B LA (frat6) YA E s

Ms. Chan Kit Sum (Note 7) Interest of spouse 204,930,000 11.14%

BRR L (HaE7) Fo Bt

Notes: Hiat -

1) Time Holdings is wholly-owned by Linkz Industries. Therefore, Linkz Industries 1) Time Holdings 4B T2 2 &% A - Bt - BIFESFR
is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Time Holdings HAE 50 - 485 T2 W8 A3 E 1ER Time Holdings 154
for the purpose of the SFO. HIFT AR A HERS o

2) Ms. Ho Hsiu Lan is the spouse of Mr. Paul Lo. Accordingly, Ms. Ho Hsiu Lan is 2) MEELTARMESLENEE - Bl BIEEELEH
deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares in which Mr. Paul Lo is EEE o AIEEL TS AREEERBHRELLEES
interested for the purpose of the SFO. HESEFT B IR D R A AERS -

3) Nickson Holdings holds 20.14% of the issued ordinary share capital of Linkz 3) N EE RS ALE S T¥2014% 2 3T @B A M
Industries, and Time Holdings is wholly-owned by Linkz Industries. Therefore, Time Holdings H48E T2 2 & A - Bt - BEELER
Nickson Holdings is deemed to, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares HE P - H AR AR B E V51X Time Holdings #74
held by Time Holdings for the purpose of the SFO. HIFT AR5 A RS o

4) GP Industries holds 38.13% of the issued ordinary share capital of Linkz ~ 4) GPT 35 A4%E% T%3813% XTI A M
Industries, and Time Holdings is wholly-owned by Linkz Industries. Therefore, Time Holdings H48%E T2 2 & A - Ft - BEELER
GP Industries is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by HE G0 - GP T ¥4 15 A3 & {ER Time Holdings £ 8 BY
Time Holdings for the purpose of the SFO. AR aRER -

5) Gold Peak holds 85.47% issued share capital of GP Industries. GP Industries  5) 15 GP T ¥85.47% B 34T « GP T35 548%

holds 38.13% of the issued ordinary share capital of Linkz Industries, and
Time Holdings is wholly-owned by Linkz Industries. Therefore, Gold Peak is
deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Time Holdings for
the purpose of the SFO.

T 3%38.13% 2 1T & @MRAZ - M Time Holdings H1 48
ETHEZEHA - At BIBEFHRBEEM - €L
R E ER Time Holdingst B MFTA AR 1D R B 2 o

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETHS

6) Mr. Kwong Ping Man beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of
Datatech Investment Inc.. Therefore, Mr. Kwong Ping Man is deemed, or
taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Datatech Investment Inc. for
the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Kwong Ping Man is the sole director of Datatech
Investment Inc..

7) Ms. Chan Kit Sum is the spouse of Mr. Kwong Ping Man. Accordingly, Ms.
Chan Kit Sum is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares in which
Mr. Kwong Ping Man is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
substantial or significant shareholders or other persons, other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ Report — Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had or were deemed
to have an interest or a short position in the shares or the
underlying shares of the Company which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register of the Company remained to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or who were directly or
indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company or any other members of the
Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 50 to 66 of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2019.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

6) BB IR St 4 B 251 8 Datatech Investment Inc. f9 2 Z0E 2%
ﬁﬁx$ Eitt + IRIEFEHF R EEEG - BRSEERER
A3k E B Datatech Investment Inc. #8 89 BT B9
B o BV SE A & Datatech Investment Inc. A ME— &
.

7) RELATRBEXEENLE - Bt REZES KD
BIEP - BRBLLXIHERIIREFERBRASELEHS
%mﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁqﬂfﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ

B EFEEN RZE—-hLhE=A=+—
H #BEFTERIASFRERBIEMAL
(REX[EFTegHRE — EEREaTHAR
W%ﬁ m%%@&&%%m%é&ﬁﬁj—
S EEENEERARRESTRAE
&MMK$ 7%hﬁjﬁmk@¢'%ﬁﬁw
REHEBREESRBEKMEXVIBE2 X3
D EBEE SR M AN A B M B A P BE O A 2 R
KA HEBRRARRIRIEEH & EE KD
F36IEBEFHECLHANERSRIAR
BEKEERFEWARAAAERIBR TER
RAHAEBEEREMKERFTRERE L%
EREAAERIRAEE 10% sk bA FAIRERS -

BE HEFIEEARQAF LHRES

REBEEZT-—NF=ZA=1+—RHLFE AR
RINEAMMBARMERE - HExELT
fAIARRAR ETHES -

TEER

N RN A%%ﬁ““ EE’J§¥’|§§7§Q$$$&%
50E 66 AMTEE AT

P& 3= 89 15 o

BRAFHRAAFEZEEIN REE=ZFT—NLF=A

A e ot
-



SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on information
available in the public domain concerning the Company, at least
25% of the Company’s issued share capital were held by the
public as at the date of this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to reappoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Time Interconnect Technology Limited
Cua Tin Yin Simon

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 June 2019
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, healthy corporate culture, successful business
growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company acknowledges the need and importance of
corporate governance as one of the key elements in creating
shareholders’ value. The Company is also committed to achieving
high standard of corporate governance that can protect and
promote the interests of all Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability of the Company. For corporate
governance purpose, the Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2019, to the best
knowledge of the Board, the Company had complied with all the
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiry, all Directors have fully complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code and there was no
event of non-compliance throughout the period.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions,
oversees the operations and monitors the financial performance of
the Group. The management is delegated power and authority
given by the Board for the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group. The management is accountable to the
Board for the Company’s overall operation. Under the terms of
reference, the duties of the Board in respect of corporate
governance are as follows:

1) to develop and review the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management;

3)  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the Directors and the employees of the Group;
and

5)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and disclosure in
the corporate governance report of the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors
and the Board is accountable to shareholders. The management
and control of the business of the Company is vested in its Board.
It is the duty of the Board to create value to the shareholders of
the Company.

Executive Directors
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ho Hin Shun

Mr. Luk Wai Shing

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Biographical
Details of the Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to
31 of this annual report.

The proportion of which is higher than what is required by Rule
3.10A, 3.10 (1) and (2) of the Listing Rules whereby independent
non-executive Directors of a listed issuer represent at least one-
third of the Board. The three independent non-executive Directors
represent more than one-third of the Board and at least one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. With the various
experience of both the executive Directors, the non-executive
Director and the independent non-executive Directors and the
nature of the Group’s business, the Board considered that the
Directors have a balance of skills and experience for the business
of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 December 2018 which sets out the basis
to achieve diversity on the Board. Details of this policy is disclosed
as below.

1.  Purpose
The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

2. Vision
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

3. Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the
Company will consider board diversity in terms of, among
other things, gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how. All
Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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4. Measurable Objectives
Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, expertise, skills and know-how.

5. Monitoring and Reporting
The nomination committee of the Company
(the”"Nomination Committee”) will disclose the
composition of the Board annually in the corporate
governance report and monitor the implementation of this
Policy.

6. Review of the Board Diversity Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

7. Disclosure of the Board Diversity Policy
A Summary of the Board Diversity Policy together with the
measurable objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and the progress made towards achieving
those objectives will be disclosed in the annual corporate
governance report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 28 December 2018 which sets out the approach to
guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors. Details of the
Nomination Policy is disclosed as below.

1 Purpose
1.1 the Nomination Policy aims to set out the approach to
guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors.

1.2 the Nomination Policy aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company'’s business.
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2  Criteria
The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and
recommend candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by
giving due consideration to criteria including but not limited
to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(a)

(9)

diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background,
expertise, skills and know-how;

sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties; their
services on other listed and non-listed companies
should be limited to reasonable numbers;
qualifications, including accomplishment and
experience in the relevant industries the Company’s
business is involved in;

independence;

reputation for integrity;

potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring
to the Board; and

commitment to enhance and maximise shareholders’
value.

3  Re-Election of Director at General Meeting

3.1

3.2

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and
recommend retiring Director(s) to the Board for re-
appointment by giving due consideration to the
Criteria including but not limited to:

(@) the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director including his
attendance of Board meetings and, where
applicable, general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board;
and

(b)  whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to
satisfy the Criteria in section 2.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.
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Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board
for the appointment of a Director in accordance with the
following procedures and process:

(a)

the Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and size of
the Board, develop a list of desirable skills, perspectives
and experience at the outset to focus the search
effort;

the Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from an independent
agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the
Company with due consideration given to the Criteria;

the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it
deems appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, such as interviews, background checks,
presentations and third-party reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold a
meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the
Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the
proposed appointment and the proposed
remuneration package; and

the Board will have the final authority on determining
the selection of nominees and all appointment of
Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the consent
to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director,
as the case may be) to be filed with the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong.
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Responsibility
The Board will be ultimately responsible for the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will assess and report annually,
in the corporate governance report, on the composition of
the Board, and launch a formal process to monitor the
implementation of the Nomination Policy as appropriate.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will launch a formal process to
review the Nomination Policy periodically to ensure that it is
transparent and fair, remains relevant to the Company’s
needs and reflects the current regulatory requirements and
good corporate governance practice. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Disclosure of the Nomination Policy

8.1 A summary of the Nomination Policy including the
nomination procedures and the process and Criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend candidates for directorship during the
year will be disclosed in the annual corporate
governance report.

8.2 In the circular to shareholders for proposing a
candidate as an independent non-executive director, it
should also set out:

o the process used for identifying the candidate
and why the Board believes the candidate
should be elected and the reason why it
considers the candidate to be independent;

o if the proposed independent non-executive
Director will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, the reason the
Board believes the candidate would still be able
to devote sufficient time to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the
candidate can bring to the Board; and

. how the candidate can contribute to the
diversity of the Board.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in
the Board as they bring an impartial view on the Company’s
strategies, performance and control, as well as ensuring that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account. All
independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic, professional qualifications or related financial
management experience. None of the independent non-executive
Directors held any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director has
entered into a service contract with the Company on 10 July 2017
and signed letters of appointment with each of the independent
non-executive Directors on 24 January 2018. The service contracts
with the executive Directors and the letter of appointment with
each of independent non-executive Directors are for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. The service
contracts and letters of appointment are subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts may
be renewed in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company and the applicable Listing Rules.

According to the Article 108 of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation at every annual
general meeting of the Company, provided that every Director
shall retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at
annual general meeting at least once every three years. Article
112 of the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company provides that any Directors who are appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting after their appointment, and are subject to re-
election by shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric will retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 28 August 2019. Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Chan
Chung Shun Eric, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
separate ordinary resolutions will be put forward to the
shareholders of the Company in relation to the proposed re-
election of Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric as the
independent non-executive Directors.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The initial term of office of each of the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) is three years,
subject to re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The role of chairman remains separate from that of the chief
executive officer to enhance their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility. Mr. Paul Lo was the Chairman
and Mr. Cua was the Chief Executive Officer.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample
continuing professional development for the Directors for a sound
and effective internal control system and corporate governance. In
this regard, the Group has always encouraged the Directors to
attend relevant training courses to receive the latest news and
knowledge regarding corporate governance.

The Company updates Directors on the latest developments and
changes to the Listing Rules and the applicable legal and
regulatory requirements concerning good governance practices.
Reading materials on regulatory updates were also provided to the
Directors for updating their knowledge on relevant issues. The
Company will, if necessary, provide timely and regular trainings to
the Directors to ensure that they keep abreast of the current
requirements under the Listing rules. The Group has also adopted
a policy to reimburse the Directors for any relevant training costs
and expenses incurred concerning corporate governance and
internal control.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.time-
interconnect.com. All the Board committees responsibly report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance,
at the Company’s expense.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the CG Code which included developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and disclosures in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 January 2018. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric,
the independent non-executive Director, and other members
include Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Luk Wai Shing, the independent
non-executive Directors. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in
that at least one of the members of the Audit Committee (which
must comprise a minimum of three members and must be chaired
by an independent non-executive Director) is an independent non-
executive Director who possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting related financial management
expertise.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
financial information and reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to
review and comment on the Company’s 2018 annual results and
2018/2019 interim results as well as the Company’s internal
control procedures and risk management system.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
comply with applicable accounting standards, Listing Rules and
that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24 January
2018. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ho
Hin Shun, the independent non-executive Director, and other
members include Mr. Luk Wai Shing and Mr. Chan Chung Shun
Eric, the independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Wong Chi
Kuen, the executive Director. The written terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on the
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration packages and emoluments of
Directors and senior management and considered that they are
fair and reasonable during the year ended 31 March 2019. No
Director nor any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 24 January 2018.
The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Luk Wai Shing,
the independent non-executive Director, and other members
include Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric, the
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Wong Chi Kuen, the
executive Director. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
and assess the composition of the Board and independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on appointment of new Directors of the Company.
In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee considers candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional skills and/or
qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from
time to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly for considering, reviewing and/or
approving matters relating to, among others, the financial and
operating performance, as well as, the overall strategies and
policies of the Company. Additional meetings are held when
significant events or important issues are required to be discussed
and resolved.

During the year, the Chairman held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the executive
Director present.
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Details of all Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings and
Board Committees’ meetings held during the year ended 31
March 2019 are as follows:

BE-E-NEZA=+—ALFE 28
EHEEEEeRNESZEGERNFER
I

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Exe ENZEe® FMzZEe REZEE
3 f L-E =f ] RRAE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held
HE/BTAENRY
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon RIRAEE 12114 - - - 22
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen BEREE 14/14 - 4/4 22 20
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul AhEEE 11714 - - - 12
Independent non-executive Directors B HEH{TEE
Mr. Ho Hin Shun EELE 714 212 4/4 212 212
Mr. Luk Wai Shing 3t 7114 22 4/4 22 22
Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric BREEE 714 22 4/4 22 22
COMPANY SECRETARY NEMWE

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Board by ensuring the Board policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters.

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Tam Kwai
Heung ("Ms. Tam") as its Company Secretary. On 1 March 2019,
Ms. Tam resigned from her role as the Company Secretary. Ms.
Ng Hoi Ying (“Ms. Ng”) has been appointed as the Company
Secretary and in replacement of Ms. Tam. Ms. Ng possesses the
necessary qualification and experience, and is capable of
performing the functions of the Company Secretary. Mr. Wong
Chi Kuen, executive Director of the Company is the primary
contact person who Ms. Ng contacts.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Tam and Ms. Ng
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to update her skill and knowledge. The biographies of Ms. Ng is
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of
the audit and non-audit services were as follows:

BIZEEME

RAFE  BEZEIEEERG I HEN T
NABINEIZ BT IEE) 0 BAEIR S SETAIITZ
BemT -

Remuneration
paid/payable

Services rendered FriR L0 BR A5 B ENHE
HK$'000
FET
Audit services ENZR
— Statutory audit services — EEEZRE 1,410
Non-audit services IEEZ RS
— Review interim report — B RS 250
1,660
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT R ERAEF

As one of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and voting.
All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company'’s website after the relevant Shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board on
requisition of Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company or by such Shareholders who
made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the case may be)
pursuant to Article 64 of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company. Such requisition must state the
object of business to be transacted at the meeting and must be
signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company or the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such article for convening an
extraordinary general meeting. Shareholders may put forward
proposals with general meeting of the Company by sending the
same to the Company at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send
their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for
overseeing the Company’s internal control, financial control and
risk management system and shall monitor its effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted by
the Board at least annually.

Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud, the Company has established a risk management
procedures which comprised the following steps:

— Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could
affect the achievement of goals of the Group;

—  Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk
according to its likely impact and the likelihood of
occurrence;

— Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to
mitigate the risks.

Risk identification and assessment is performed or updated
annually, and the results of risk assessment, evaluation and
mitigation of each functions or operation are documented in the
Risk Registry to communicate to the Board and Management for
reviews.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions has been carried out by an independent
consultancy company with staff in possession of relevant expertise
to conduct an independent review.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report
issued by the independent consultancy company and the
Company'’s risk management and internal control systems in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 and considered that
they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and concurred the same.
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Under Code Provision C.2.5, the Group should have an internal
audit function. The Company has no internal audit function
because the Company has maintained an internal control system
and its implementation has been considered effective by the Audit
Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee has
communicated with external auditors of the Company to
understand if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless,
the Company will review the need for one on an annual basis.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has in place a policy on disclosure of inside information
which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information.

The policy provides guidelines to the Directors, officers and all
relevant employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards
exist to prevent the Company from breaching the statutory
disclosure requirements. It also includes appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential
inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

o define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable
them to assess inside information and make timely
disclosures, if necessary;

o controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to
public;

o procedures of communicating with the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors, analysts, etc.
in ways which are in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Group has also established and implemented procedures to
handle enquiries from external parties related to the market
rumours and other Group’s affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy
with objective of ensuring that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate
with the Shareholders as follows:

(i)  corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are issued in printed form and
are available on the website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.time-interconnect.com;

(i)  periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i)  corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum
for the Shareholders to make comments and exchange
views with the Directors and senior management; and

(v)  the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves the
Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquires to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there is no significant

change in the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of business
practices in relation to environmental protection, social
responsibility and related governance. With a view to uphold
stakeholders’ confidence and understanding in the Group's efforts
in achieving environmental protection, social responsibility and
corporate governance, the Group’s measures and performance on
sustainable development topics are disclosed in a transparent and
open manner below.

Reporting Year

All information in the ESG Report reflects the performance of the
Group in environmental management and social responsibility
from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).
The Group will continue releasing an ESG Report annually for
public review, in order to improve the transparency and
responsibility of information disclosure.

Reporting Scope

The ESG Report covers the environmental, social and governance
performance (the “"ESG performance”) of the headquarter in
Hong Kong and the production facilities in Huizhou. After the
comprehensive completion of data collection system and the
Group’s deepening in its environmental, social and governance
work, the Group is able to disclose various environmental, health
and safety Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs") for all sites
operated during the Reporting Period.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” ("ESG
Guide"”) of the Stock Exchange set out in the Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Listing Rules. The ESG Report provides a simplified
overview on the ESG performance of the Group. The information
in the ESG Report is derived from the Group'’s official documents
and statistics, as well as the integration and summary of
monitoring, management and operational information provided
by the Group.
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Materiality Analysis

Each year the Group conducts a materiality analysis to illustrate
the topics it believes are of the greatest interest to its stakeholders
and its business. The Group uses the outcomes of this assessment
to identify material issues that enable the Group to determine the
strategies, goals and actions.

The Group integrated a series of material issues based on media
reports, business conditions, global standards and initiatives. In
which, 17 issues were selected as 2019 material issues through
internal discussions. These issues were prioritised according to
their impact on stakeholders and the business.

The materiality outcomes are led by a group of top management
as well as employees from relevant departments and considered
the Group's policies, sales, cost, reputation, impact and
regulations.

Figure 1: Materiality analysis outcomes
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Interests and concerns

M=K EAE

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Product safety and quality management
EnkzhEEER

Business model and innovation

FE R R AR

Intellectual property protection
B EE R &

Labour practices

BIER

Occupational health and safety
BERELRZE

Human rights

AR

Supply chain sustainability support
B AT H5 AR 1 S S

Human capital

ANER

Privacy, data security and freedom of expression
LR BEBEZELEWAR

Ethical business practices

ERRT

Responsible sourcing and manufacturing

BEERBRAE

Circular economy

BRI E

Product stewardship

EmEE

Climate stewardship

RIRE

Waste and hazardous materials in supply chain
HEEPNEREY G EE
Water and waste water management
KRR ER

Energy Management

BERERE
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Stock Exchange has set forth four principles for reporting in
the ESG Guide: materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency,
which should form the basis for preparing the ESG Report. As the
Stock Exchange emphasises, stakeholder engagement is the
method by which materiality is assessed. Through stakeholder
engagement, companies can understand wide-ranging views and
identify material environmental and social issues.

For the Group, stakeholders refer to groups and individuals
materially influencing or affected by the Group's business. The
Group's stakeholders include employees, management and
Directors, as well as external stakeholders such as clients, business
partners, investors, regulatory authorities and various types of
community groups. In the past year, the Group communicated
with the key stakeholders through a variety of methods. While
preparing the ESG Report, the Group commissioned a professional
consultancy firm to conduct the materiality analysis in the form of
management interview. With expert advice, the Group identified
the material aspects for the ESG report and these will in turn
guide the formulation of the Group’s sustainability roadmap.

Figure 2: Stakeholders and engagement methods
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XBERAR ERREEEEAN T ETE
ZUESN - REBEERER  AKEBH LR
B oHERERBREMEBEENEH AU
SRR E S E Al AR RERENES -

B2 FERSELR

Engagement channels
SHERE

Email, direct dialogues, telephone or
meetings as required in daily operations
HESETMENES  BEHE -
BREBENERE
e Customer visits or meetings
BEREFTSEE
e Customer service hotline
BRI EAR
e On-site visits at factory
TITREMSE
e On-site visits at customer office or factory
EPMAERTREMDE
e Annual business review
FEEB DR
e Customer audits
BEF&EZ




Stakeholders

K&

Customers

5F
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Interests and concerns

MR EEE

Financial performance
5RIA

Technical capability

FAirge

Production control

A E PR

Supply chain management
HregEEE

Inspection capability
Document and record control
A B RE S AT
Compliance and risk control

B R KRS

Mutual growth

HEER

Explicit product specifications
BRREE MR AR

Payment as per contractual terms
RIRE KRR
Financial position

BAISAROS

Payment method

AR

Order volume

AEE

Order seasonality
RIEZEEE

Order profitability

RIE AT M

Engagement channels
SEEE

R - HEREARS

Trade fairs and forums

TERE KRB

Annual and interim reports
FERFHHRE

“Purchase Order Portal” platform

[ZREERIEFIF] ¥ &

Email, direct dialogues, telephone, or
meetings as required in daily operations
HESETMENESE  BEHE -
BREBBENGRE

“Supplier Portal” platform
[EmfFE ] Fa

Supplier service hotline

e 7 AR TS 2R

On-site visits at factory
IHmEM2E

On-site visits at supplier factory
HEE THEM2E

Annual supplier assessment
HEmFERG

Trade fairs and forums

TERE KRB

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Stakeholders
BHE

Employees
(including senior
management and
Board of
Directors)

(==
(BEEREEE
REES)

Shareholders
and Investors

BRRERREE

Interests and concerns
Mz R EE

Compliance with applicable laws and
regulations

BTERERIER

Respect for human rights

BE AR

Fair treatment and equal opportunities
AEHBRFSHE

Work condition and welfare
TR R B A

Career growth and personal development
BERRLEAERE

Occupational safety and health
BERRERE

Work-life balance

T A E ) i

Remuneration and benefits

e INEER

Job satisfaction

TEREE

Operation in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations
EENEEREREIER

Return on investment and dividends

B B AR E

Business performance and financial results
EBRANVBER

Strategic plans and corporate sustainable
development

REERENEEARHEER

EBR#HARAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

GOVERNANCE REPORT

Engagement channels
SERE

Email, direct dialogues, telephone, notice
board and meetings as required in daily
operations

HELETMFINEL  BERYHE -
BEER  ETREEE

Weekly e-Newsletter

BBREFEA

Social events with employees

HifE B2 EMRRE

Occupational health and safety training
and other in-house training

B R R R 2 R A EBIE
New employees orientation

i B ARSI

Performance appraisal

KRBz

Team building activities

B EREE

Whistleblowing policy

BIRBR

Town hall meetings

BETXRE

Human resources policies and practices
ANEIRBUER M IE B

Staff handbook

8 T FM

Annual General Meetings
BREBERE

Annual and interim reports
FERPEBRE
Announcements and circulars
NE R

Investors enquiries channel via the
Group's website and investors
relationship company
FRRAEEBULRIREEBERFNKR
BEESHRE

Annual newsletters

FEB
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Interests and concerns

MR EEE

Stakeholders
B6oE

Bank
BT

Operation in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations
REERERIERNEE

e Business growth

EBIRE

development
RO B R E A FE R
e Strong security structure
BAMH L 2R
e Stable ownership structure
B RERBHIRE
e Timely information on financial
performance

BRI LEEA

e Operation in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations
REERERIERNEE

e Support to civil society
X EE R

e Environmental protection
RERE

e Local community activities involvement
BibitBESN 2R

e Business ethics

[EEZEEE

The business of the Group affects different stakeholders, and
stakeholders have different expectations on the Group. The Group
will maintain communication with stakeholders continuously,
collect opinions of stakeholders through different forms more
extensively, and make substantive analysis more comprehensively.
At the same time, the Group will enhance the reporting principles
of materiality, quantification, balance and consistency, in order to
define content of the ESG Report and presentation of the
information that is more in line with the expectations of
stakeholders.

e Strategic plans and corporate sustainable

R - HEREARS

Engagement channels
SEEE

Email, direct dialogues, telephone and
meetings as required in daily operations
HELEPMENER  BEHFE -
BEBRALER
e Bank service hotline
R1TIRAG 2 AR
e On-site visits at the Huizhou factory and/
or Hong Kong head office
BMIRE,HESEREEEHDE
e Annual business reviews
FERBOE
e Annual and interim reports

FREETHAHRE

e Email, direct dialogues, telephone and
meetings
BH - BEEHE BEREBERSE
e Updated news and correspondences
from media
PR B SR8 B BT M@ A
e Donation and sponsorship
BREER
e Participation in local community activities
and volunteering work
DEE L RIEE N ERE TIE
e ESG reports
R @ RkERRE

AEENEBZETRFKNE  MHEDEHAE
SELETAME - NEEK RSN ERES
B WEBTRATAERZHKRESNENE
ROSHOMBEENELZE - AR AEEE
MmEERMN - 81 FE R —-BENERR
A MERERNEHMENSTA - AERE
HeEMERARENATREANZT -
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Emissions

Emissions from vehicle usage and air travel

During the Group's operation, the usage of private cars and
forklift generate the emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur
oxides (SOx), and particulate matter (PM). Also, the business air
travel by employees generates carbon dioxide (CO,). The
approximate amount of CO,, NOx, SOx and PM produced from its
operation in Hong Kong and the PRC are shown in the table
below:

Figure 3: Types of cars and air emissions

RERE

BB

BEWEARMEREEENEERY
RAKENEEBREY  ERLKERERE
EREAY - AW R ER o BEHh -
BTRILREABEE _AH - TRATR
BPNEERTPEEEEEN ALK AR
1t - mefY RBERYRNE

3 EEWMNERBERER

2019 2018

Number of Cars Number of Cars

Types of Cars HEFER HEREHE BHEEE
Private Cars FLRE 6
Forklift fEE 1 1
Volume (Tonnes) Volume (Tonnes)

Air Emissions E=RBERY £ (W) = (18)
NOX REtw 0.02 0.02
SOx k=Rl 0.0005 0.0005
PM R 0.002 0.001

Compared to the last financial year, the total amount of air
emissions (NOx, SOx and PM) between 2018 and 2019 are nearly
the same, although the total number of private cars has increased
from 6 to 8. The emissions for both years remain at a reasonably
low level.

In respect of reducing the NOx, SOx and PM emissions, the Group
is committed to reducing and ensuring the efficient usage of
private cars. The Group has implemented the following measures
5o as to achieve the environmental friendly approach: i) avoid peak
hour traffic; ii) encourage the use of public transport; iii)
encourage the use of bicycle; and iv) utilise the vehicle usage by
carpooling with different staff.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the environmental laws and
regulations in respect of both emissions from the course of
operation and vehicle usage.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

HE-EAFRFEERL —T-N\FH_-F
—NFEZENZERBRY (RELY - RALD
RFERY)) BEETHEF - BELRKELHAG6
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REEAEARF -

SR DR ALY - A R BERY BT
ARBEBEORBL REREREALR
B o RmERRERTE - ARECD B TER
D#ELNBREREAE ) HBEAQHK
R i BEERBITE RV ZRHETRET
PFEAZRAER -
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the course of operation, there are greenhouse gas
emissions principally resulting from electricity consumed in the
production facilities in Huizhou and air travel. In respect to the
approximate indirect amount of CO, generated from its electrical
usage and air travel, the figures are shown in the table below:

Figure 4: Greenhouse gas emissions

BEREBIHER

REEBRED  AERBHMNIBERRAE
MEERBOFEERMERE - BEEENER
R i 22 b F2 AT EE A B9 — AL Bk O R 40 R B Bk IR
ENBEIIIR X

2019 2018
Volume (Tonnes) Volume (Tonnes)
Greenhouse gas emissions B E R £ (M) = ()
CO, emissions A bR
Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions 52 — BRI
— generated from the use of electricity in — BN EEREERSE
the production facilities in Huizhou HFESE 3,891 3,899
Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions #ls3 — AR
— air travel — MZEIRIZ 87 35
Total st 3,978 3,934

Compared to that of the last financial year, the total amount of
CO, emissions between 2018 and 2019 are nearly the same that
the CO, emissions in 2019 have increased by approximately 1%,
mainly due to the increase in indirect emissions from air travel.
The reason is that the Group has developed a closer partnership
with customers this year, by having more face to face discussions
and meetings, which lead the Group to gain several supplier
awards from customers. For details, please refer to the section of
“Product Responsibility”.

Noise Pollution

The Group engages licensed third party to perform annual
inspection at the noise level to check whether the Group has
complied with Classification of Occupational Hazards at Workplace
Part 4: Occupational Exposure to Noise (GBZ/T229.4-2012).
Various checking points have been set at different parts in the
production facilities in Huizhou and all results are satisfactory.

The Group is always aware of its noise pollution to the community
around as well as the health condition of its workers. The Group
always commits to maintain communication with the community
nearby about the noise issue. The Group provides appropriate
protective gears (such as earplug and etc.) to its workers in order
to protect their hearing.

HE—ERREEAL —T-N\FE-F
—hFEZEN SRR ELTRER -
“E-NFN RN EE MO 1% T E
F R 2R B i ZE R AR 0 A B R U NPT - [R A
EARERAFERERFEVERTNAEH
% EHEENREHREN: FEMASEEE
BEPHZEMHENRE - BEFIE  F2H
[EmEE] —ff -

R ETH

NEBEEERESE=HHBR I KFLETEE
Bl UBREAEEREET(IIESATRE
BERZSRERRT)FI4BD  BERERE
= (GBZ/T229.4-2012) - REB N E M EE
BT REPPIR S Z AR RS - FTERAER

SANWE -

AEE-BFRRE SAHBAETEARKE
BT ARBERRANTE AEE-—BEZ IR
BRI R RRRE - NEER T AR
HeEnEREERZ2RKE(PIMEES) IR
ETAMES -
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Hazardous Waste and Non-Hazardous Waste
Produced

For the process of manufacturing cable assembly products,
different types of hazardous waste are generated. The Group’s
production process involved the following hazardous waste
produced:

Figure 5: Hazardous waste emissions

Hazardous waste

BERRY

BERRYREEZRENHER

TEESREKERNBESEETRAENESE
BEEY AEENEEREIRATEETER

MR

5: BEBEEMHN

2019
Volume

2018
Volume

=

==}

Mineral oil contaminated waste rags

0.9708 (Tonnes)

)5 R BEEM A 0.9708 (M)
Organic solvents contaminated waste rags 0.1363 (Tonnes)
EHABS R EEEM R 0.1363 (W)
Waste batteries 0.0108 (Tonnes)
BEEEM 0.0108 (mg)
Used containers for chemical materials 4,899 (Barrels/Bottles)
LMK A2E 4,899 (%8,#)

Compared to the last financial year, the total amount of mineral
oil contaminated waste rags, organic solvents contaminated waste
rags and waste batteries for 2019 has been increased due to the
acquisition of a new factory premises in December 2018.
However, the total number of used containers for chemical
materials remains at a reasonably low level.

Apart from that, the Group has also produced some non-
hazardous waste during the course of production. The non-

hazardous waste produced are as follows:

Figure 6-1: Non-hazardous waste emissions

0.0269 (Tonnes)
0.0269 (1)
0.0097 (Tonnes)
0.0097 (&)
0.0033 (Tonnes)
0.0033 (&)

4,932 (Barrels/Bottles)

4,932 (8,/#1)

B —{E B R ARLL - YRS R B R
B BRRBI SR ERMHRERE LN

TNENBEAMEN HERF

—\%

T AUWEER TR EME - 28 PRERE
(L2 R B R BBERNAIBEKFE -

BRI 2 9 -

AEBTREEBRTELS TH#

ERERY - BEEZRVBERAOT :

6-1: EEBERWBMR

2019 Intensity
per total floor
area of factory

(Tonnes)

2019 2018  IRIBIMEEE

Volume (Tonnes)  Volume (Tonnes) EEETERZE

Non-hazardous waste EEEEY £ (mg) 2 (Ig) (W8)
Cardboard 4HIRAA 40.354 55.074 0.0009
Industrial waste TEREEY 89.459 95.105 0.0019

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Compared to the last financial year, the total amount of non-
hazardous waste produced for 2019 has decreased by
approximately 13.6%, despite having a new factory premises
during the financial year. The Group believes it is the contribution
from the implementation of the waste monitoring procedures.

The Group is dedicated to proper management of the hazardous
waste. Specific area is assigned for the temporary storage of
hazardous waste for safety purpose. Licensed third party is
engaged for the collection of the waste for proper handling.

Figure 6-2: Non-hazardous waste emissions

B EMBREEEL BEFEEYNR_F
—NENBINAERD13.6% BERTEK
FERNEHIHYE - AEERR/ERARE
EmHERYEERFEROER -

AEBBRNREEEEAEERY - ~AREE
RZE2NIETE R IEREFRERER
BREE-TREREREYMALETEERE -

6-2 | EEEEREYBER

2019 Intensity
per total floor

2019 2018 area of factory

Volume Volume  IRIZ TIARESE

Non-hazardous waste BEREZEY 2 £ HEETENEE
Used A3 and A4 paper (reams) B A A3IRALHE(S) 2,581 2,774 0.0552
Used toner cartridge (pieces) BEFEANEHa(H) 535 628 0.0114
Used paper towel (boxes/rolls)  BEF BB (&%) 34,080 28,910 0.7290

Apart from reducing the hazardous waste produced during the
course of production, the Group also strives to reduce the non-
hazardous waste, such as the usage of papers, printing toners as
well as paper towels. The increase in paper towels consumed
during the Reporting Period was mainly due to purchase of paper
towels in order to facilitate the commencement of operation for
the new production facility.

Use of Resources

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation and
emissions reduction for green production. The major resources
used by the Group are principally attributed to electricity and
water consumed in the production facilities in Huizhou. The Group
aims to improve its energy utilisation efficiency to achieve low-
carbon practices and emissions reduction throughout its
production and operation, and strive to save the resources.

The Group records and analyses the monthly consumption rate of
water regularly in the production facilities in Huizhou. After
identifying the causes of high rates of water consumption, the
Group will take remedial action to minimise water use. From the
graph below, it shows the monthly water consumption in cubic
meters of the production facilities in Huizhou:

BRDEERETELENEEREYIN  AK
ERBIRNBOEEERY - AR - EHR2
MEEMOER - RBEHERDBEEEE
me ETBHR AW EERENEERER
MATEL

BERER

AREBERZFEMERBINIED  BEREGELE -
AEEFERNERERSEMNEERIEH
FEME DMK « REBERTE T IR = 8ERE M
EFNEFR ARMANEEMEERERERT
FFAESE - S HERER -

AEEFEHRHEMEOTEMNNEERENE A
FEKE - NBRSHKENRER  NEEK
REUERATE - AR K o TREREMNA
HERENEARKE (LK)
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Figure 7: Water consumption by month in cubic meters

®7 : 8AFEKE (LK)

Water consumption (cubic meters)

FkE (ZFXK)

25,000.00
20,000.00
15,000.00
10,000.00

5,000.00

Apr  May Jun  Jul  Aug Sep
mA ®A <A tA NA

= 2019 Water consumption

T -NFRKE

The total water consumption in cubic meters by region during the
Reporting Period is shown in the table below:

Figure 8: Water consumption by region in cubic meters

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

hB +A +-B+zZA —A =ZA =A

= 2018 Water consumption

= )\FRKkE

REIEME - RS0
FHRTR

D E AR FEKE (27 K)

B8 : it E B HIFEKE (LK)

2019 Intensity
per total floor

2019 2018 area of factory

Water Water (cubic meters)

consumption consumption  ARIE T4 2L

(cubic meters) (cubic meters)  EEFTEMNZE

Region hE FKE(ALFK)  FKEGIFHK) (32 F53K)
The PRC s 156,637 169,005 3.35

Compared to that of the last financial year, the total amount of
water consumption for 2019 has decreased by approximately
7.3%, despite having a new factory premises during the year.

The Group determines to maximise energy conservation
throughout its production by promoting efficient use of power
and adopting green technologies. For instance, the Group
continues to upgrade equipment such as purchasing electrical
appliances with high energy efficiency label, lighting and air-
conditioning systems in order to increase energy efficiency. Air-
conditioning systems can be adjusted to a specific temperature,
which allow the users to set at a comfortable temperature and
avoid power waste.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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To identify energy saving opportunities, the Group measures and
records the energy consumption level from time to time. The
monthly electricity consumption in kilowatt hour (kWh) is shown
below:

Figure 9: Electricity consumption by month in kWh

A8 Bl BN BE R -
HFEIRF o

Rig - dERERERS

AR ER [ A By ORI B AR BB TR
BAREE(TRE)&#HIIMT :

B9 BAXESE (TRE)

Electricity consumption (kWh)
B8 (TEH)

600,000
500,000 e
400,000 /\
300,000
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=—— 2019 Electricity consumption

“E-NFREER

The total electricity consumption in kWh by region is shown in the
table below:

Figure 10: Electricity consumption by region in kWh

N

‘\\//

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
+A +—A+=A —B =R =

2018 Electricity consumption

T ) \FHEE

iR E Y MEREE (TRR)EN TEK :
10 : @& D WHEEE (TRE)

2019 Intensity

2019 2018 per total floor

Electricity Electricity area of factory

consumption consumption (kwh)

(kwh) (kwh)  1RiR T AR S

HEE HEE HEETENRE

Region & (TRE) (FERE) (FEEF)

The PRC s 4,650,410 4,493,400 99.48
Compared to that of the last financial year, the total amount of B2 F — A BFEEMHEL > — T N\NFH_ZFT

electricity consumption between 2018 and 2019 are nearly the
same, the greenhouse gas emissions for both years remain at a
reasonably low level.

Apart from the use of electricity and water, the Group has also
used various packaging materials for its operation. During the
Reporting Period, the Group recorded the following packaging
materials usage:

—hFZ B # %%*Eﬂm’%ﬁﬂ EMESEE
VEEREP I ERN A IREKF o

BRATRAK - AEEALSE BT
FBEBEENE - RIBEH - AEBEREN
TREMEER -
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Figure 11: Packaging materials usage

B11: BEMRHAE

2019 2018

Volume (Pieces) Volume (Pieces)
Packaging materials BEME HE () = ()
Paper carton ] 952,193 1,459,899
Plastic bag BRHR 19,458,003 25,589,067
Cable reel AR 245,874 465,170
Total Bt 20,656,070 27,514,136
The Group is dedicated to consuming the least packaging AEER IR EZESREBEMEHERE - A&
materials as possible. It is the Group's practice to implement — [E &)1 Il & i %Eﬁ@i?d‘zﬂ VAR Ay HA F AT
production planning in a timely basis so as to assess the FEREMBNZIOBHHE -
approximate amount of packaging materials needed for the
period.
The Environment and Natural Resources BIENMBRER

To develop a green approach, the Group has developed the
following measures for its daily operation so as to minimise the
impact brought to the environmental and natural resources
consumption.

Water

o Replaced all flushing water pipes in the production facilities
in Huizhou with the pipes of smaller diameter in order to
save water

o Installed automatic water tap in the office of the production
facilities in Huizhou

Electricity

o A heat recovery system is adopted to recover the residual
heat from the air compressor to heat up the water supply in
dormitory

o The production facilities in Huizhou are using LED lighting
fixtures

. Switch off computers, printers, machines and other
electronic devices after office hours or when leaving the

workplace to reduce power consumption

° Installing variable-speed drive (VSD) air compressor

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Other practice

Developed and implemented a management software to
move forward to paperless operation in the production line

Encourage video and phone conference to minimise the
carbon footprint created by business-related travel

Encourage duplex printing

Reuse of single-side used paper

As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting nature and the

environment has become an integral part of the Group's corporate
culture and important value, the Group constantly looks for ways

to maximise benefits with minimal resource consumption and

environmental impact, and continue to strive for sustainable
development. During the Reporting Period, the Group has been
involved in the following programs in supporting the environment:

Participated in Earth Hour 2019 Campaign organised by
World Wide Fund Hong Kong ("“WWFHK") on 30 March
2019 (See Figure 12)

Awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as EcoChallenger and 5
Years + EcoPioneer of the BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards 2018 (See Figure 13)

Subscribed as Silver Membership of WWFHK (See Figure 14)
— partnering with WWFHK driving sustainable business
practices

Arranged a site visit to The Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment Treatment and Recycling Facility (WEEE e PARK)
to understand the operation of the related recycling industry
(See Figure 15)

Donated the used office supplies to Salvation Army on 25
May 2018

Donated the used computers and printers to Fanling
Environmental Resource Centre on 30 July 2018
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Figure 12: Earth Hour 2019 Campaign
B12: 22— AFHIR—/NEIEE

Figure 14: Silver Membership of WWFHK
14 tHRARESEEEISNMARES

NOX DNOH

Silver Member

WWF 4&5=2=2018/198

Apart from that, the Group has set up an environmental system
management task force as part of its effort to develop an
environmental management system that supports sustainable

S

ANCE REPORT

Figure 13: Certificate of EcoChallenger and 5
Years + EcoPioneer of the BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards 2018
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TIME Interconnect Ltd. - TIME Interconnect Technology (Huizhou) Limited
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Figure 15: Site visit to WEEE ¢ PARK
B 15 : E b7 WEEE ¢ PARK
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development, and has obtained the certification of I1SO14001

Environmental Management Systems.

By the implementation of 1SO14001 Environmental Management
System, the Group has given careful consideration to minimise all

significant impacts on the environment resources.

BBEEMISO14001 IRIEERE R - AEBDFH
MEEBREHREEREEERATENH
A e
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SOCIAL

Employment

The Group reckons that employees are the most valuable assets of
an enterprise and also the cornerstone for sustaining corporate
development. It is always the Group’s initiative to provide a fair
and competitive compensation package to attract and retain
quality talents in the form of a basic salary, incentive bonus,
mandatory and voluntary provident fund, and other fringe
benefits. Remuneration and benefits are reviewed periodically. The
Group also has a set of comprehensive human resources
management policy to support human resources function. The
policy includes compensation and benefits, working hours and
holidays, recruitment and selection, performance management,
promotion, staff development and training, employment
termination. During the Reporting Period, 7 staff of the Group
were awarded the Employee Children Scholarship Program.

The Group aims to refrain from any form of harassment and
discrimination with respect to age, gender, race, nationality,
religion, marital status or disability in the workplace. Hence, the
ratio of number of male to female employees shows that the
problem of gender inequality does not existed.

The Group has always strictly observed the relevant legislations in
the PRC and Hong Kong regarding the equal employment
opportunities, child labour and forced labour. The Group abides
by the employment regulations, relevant policies and guidance of
the relevant jurisdictions where it operates, including the
“Employment Ordinance”, and the “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” in Hong Kong; the “Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the “Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China” in the PRC.

The Group has its internal procedures to record employees’
information in order to review employment practices regularly so
as to avoid any non-compliance. Furthermore, the Group strictly
complies with the internal recruitment process during recruitment
to ensure no employment of child labour and forced labour in any
form.
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The factory in Huizhou offers shuttle service that takes employees
between the public transit hubs and their workplaces. The Hong
Kong headquarters arranges shuttle to pick up employees from
public transit hub in Tsuen Wan to work in the morning. The
shuttle service helps attracting more new hires, and they can make
friends with other colleagues and create a sense of belongings.

The Group also strives to establish harmonious labour relationships
and create a happy working environment, promote a positive and
healthy lifestyle, and lift the spirit of local workforce through

establishing “Concentric Culture” with a Chinese slogan: [ 2
g RERLD AR E L. To promote the corporate

culture, the Group publishes WeChat weekly e-Newsletter: New
Horizon ([& X ¥ %) to strengthen internal communication, and
organises diversified employee activities, including internal
basketball competition (See Figure 16); squid fishing at Sai Kung
(See Figure 17) and prize draw from time to time. Also, Spring
Festival Party, cycling at Hong Hua Hu (4L f£ #) of Huizhou,
karaoke competition and regular birthday parties have been
organised at the factory in Huizhou this year. As such, the Hong
Kong headquarters has been recognised as the Happy Company
by the Hong Kong Productivity Council and the Promoting
Happiness Index Foundation (See Figure 18). Moreover, the Hong
Kong headquarters has joined the Good Employer Charter 2018
(See Figure 19) pledging to be an employee-oriented employer
and adopted good human resource management practices
relevant to the following aspects:

Employment practices to care for employees

o Practices to promote work-family/work-life balance

Employee benefits are better than statutory requirements

o Good communication with employees or their organisation(s)

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Figure 16: Internal basketball competition Figure 17: Squid fishing at Sai Kung
B 16 : WEBEIRLLE 17 BENRLED

Figure 18: Certificate of Happy Company Figure 19: Good Employer Charter 2018
B18 : [FOLTEE]EE B 19 : IFEE#E 2018
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RETRBMIDTIFR - TIME Interconnect Limited
being a Signatory of the Good Employer Charter
pledges to adopt employec-oriented good human resource management practices
SIRRE

Commissioner for Labour

(&3

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any AL - AEBW A ERERAERERE
material non-compliance with relevant standards, rules and  B§2:&E N ETHAMEEIEE - A &RIAFH A &L 4
regulations regarding operations and activities, labour practices. TEREN
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Figure 20: Employment KPIs (employee)
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Total workforce structure as at 31 March 2019

B 20 : EEEARENER (BE)
R-ZB-NE=ZA=+-BNARLSE IR
2019 2018

Ratio of Ratio of
number of  number of

Number of male to male to
employees Total female female
Age Age Age bygender numberof employees employees
below 30 30-50 over50 A&  employees BuEE EReg-3-]
Gender 5 30MT  30E508  S0mMLE MESAB EEAAR  AHEER W AHEE
Male S 415 366 24 805
2,033 0.66:1 0.7:1
Female pegid 434 769 25 1,228 '
Total gt 849 1,135 49 2,033
Employee recruited in the Reporting Period RBEHEBENES
2019 2018
Number of Total Total
new number of number of
recruits new new
Age Age Age by gender recruits recruits
below 30 30-50 over50 &MHIESD HEE HIEE
Gender 1 5 30T 30E508 S50mMLE HBEAK BAH BAH
Male B 568 226 10 804
Female pegi 443 485 29 957 1,761 2,201
Total st 1,011 Ak 39 1,761
Employee turnover in the Reporting Period REBEHERERERAR
Staff
turnover 2019 Total 2018 Total
by gender staff staff
Age Age Age RMRIED turnover  turnover
below 30 30-50 over 50 WET BT# BT#
Gender Bl 305 AT 30E505%F  50BEM L MmEAE mEAE mEAE
Male B4 630 243 4 877
1,896 1,938
Female pogis 483 510 26 1,019 ! !
Total st 1,113 753 30 1,896
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Health and Safety

The Hong Kong headquarters of the Group has been equipped
with fire-fighting facilities, e.g. fire extinguishers, smoke detectors
and etc., and participated in the fire drill organised by the Hong
Kong Science Park regularly.

The production facilities in Huizhou engage in manufacturing
cable assembly products. The Group strongly believes that
ensuring stable and safe production is the most important social
responsibility to its stakeholders. Therefore, the Group has always
regarded ensuring safe and stable production as one of the
priorities in its corporate management. Sound management
systems have been established in occupational health and safety in
strict compliance with the regulations on occupational health and
safety in the PRC. Moreover, fire drills are organised by the
production facilities in Huizhou on a regular basis.

Daily operations are inspected by relevant department assigned by
the Group, against the established risk assessment program that
consists of a number of sequential steps such as risk identification,
analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring and reviewing based
on the existing controls and recommendations to reduce those
risks which are not deemed to be under acceptable limits. Any
non-compliance will also be identified and rectified on a timely
basis.

Thus, it is a proof of guaranteeing the establishment of a healthy,
safe and stable working environment effectively.

Every case of injury (if any) is required to be reported to the
Human Resources Department and be assessed individually under
the internal guidelines. The Group is pleased to report that the
rate of accidents and injuries during the Reporting Period was
extremely low with zero fatal accident.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the health and safety laws and
regulations.
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Figure 21: Health and safety KPIs (employee)

Rate of work injury
(per thousand employees)

Number of work injuries
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21 BERZZHERENIER (ES)

2019 2018
Rate of work injury

(per thousand employees)

IEHF IER(BTHEESR) THEX(BTHESR)
5 2.5 *0.5
* The Group has adopted a different calculation method this year. Therefore, * NEFENEBREMATRSE L Bt Y-T—N\4F

the figures for 2018 has been amended in order to be comparable.

Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and professionally
trained employees to its business growth and future success.
Therefore, the Group encourages them to participate in personal
development and job-related training courses. During the
Reporting Period, the Group formulated quality management and
environment management training programs to update our staff
with the most updated standard of ISO9001 and ISO14001, in
order to maintain the highest standard of professionalism by our
employees. These two programs included quality assurance
training in production process, inspection assurance of materials
received from supplier, health and safety precautions in using
production equipment and machinery as well as customer
relationship management.

In daily operation, the Group provides induction training for new
employees and experienced employees act as mentors to guide
new recruits. The Group believes such arrangement can be the
best practice to facilitate communication and team spirit, also
improve technical skills and managerial capability and encourage
the learning and further development of employees at all levels.

To strengthen the team spirit and sense of belongings, the Group
has organised a team building training for fresh-graduated
employees and representatives of different departments that
approximately 40 employees have participated in the training.

The Group also provides relevant training to develop and enhance
our employees in all management aspects, e.g. time management,
team building and motivation, meeting skills and etc., to well
equip them to be the potential leaders and successors for our
management team.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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The Group will continue to intensify its efforts to promote staff
training programs. It believes that by means of offering
comprehensive training opportunities, it could help providing the
necessary protection for talent reserves for corporate
development. The Group annually evaluates the training needs of
its employees to ensure that employees are offered with suitable
and appropriate training according to their job nature and
accountabilities.

Figure 22: Development and training KPIs (employee)

Trained staff in the Reporting Period

AEBKEBEMANEHEREB THEIIEE - K
SERE BRREHtZENFIKE BN
REEXBREHRVENAT RERE - XEE
BEMEREERNEIFE - UHRRRIZES
B TR IS Ko BARL P 18 1R (3 & B g

22  BIIRBRBRENIER (EE)
RBEHENEZIET

Percentage of 2019 Overall 2018 Overall
employees percentage of percentage of
receiving employees employees
Supervisors training by receiving receiving
and general gender training training
Managers staff RERIES S E2E
or above TER Workers Mg BRI EEME
Gender 3] gERHU L -RET IA EEFEEAL EZRBEAL EREAI
Male ol 71% 90% 74% 75%
789 789
Female 1t 73% 91% 80% 80% » .
Average training hours in the Reporting Period R 2 HA B 1Y 35 35 31 B Y
Supervisors Average 2019 Overall 2018 Overall
and general training hours average average
Managers staff by gender training hours training hours
or above TER Workers eV ER¥Y ER¥Y
Gender 3] BERHU L —-RET TA WTIEINEER S IR
Male i 22 hours 38 hours 33 hours 33 hours
. i . . 31 hours 15 hours
22/ 38/|\BF 33/ 33/ 31 15/
Female g3 29 hours 28 hours 29 hours 29 hours N X
29/ 28\ 29/)\E 29/
Labour Standards BIEE

The Group always respects and strictly complies with all applicable
national laws and local regulations as well as relevant labour laws
and regulations in the place where it operates, including the Policy
of Employment of Children under the Employment Ordinance in
Hong Kong. The Group has also developed rigorous and
systematic measures for recruitment and selection, to prevent
itself from illegally hiring child labour and ensure that the
employment is in compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
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The Group arranges the employees’ working hours in accordance
with labour laws.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the labour requirements set out in
relevant laws and regulations.

Supply Chain Management

Optical fibres, copper wires and connectors are the major
materials used by the production facilities in Huizhou in its cable
manufacturing where they are mainly procured in the PRC.

The Group implements supplier management in accordance with
internal guidance which governs the engagement of suppliers.
Suppliers are chosen subjecting to screening and evaluation
procedures, not only based on the quality and price, but also field
visits and investigations are conducted to ensure suppliers
capability in quality assurance, safety and environmental
responsibility. The investigation reviews the production capacity,
technology level, quality assurance capabilities, supply capacity,
safety and environmental management qualifications, and social
responsibility measures. Only the highly qualified suppliers
complied with regulatory requirements are eligible for the
selection of supplier by the Group. The Group also carries out
regular assessment on suppliers’ overall capabilities, assets
position, nature of business, reputation in the industry, quality of
products, goods delivery and compliance with laws and
regulations.

The Group has obtained Quality Management System Certification
(ISO9001) and Automotive Quality Management System
(IATF16949) that are formulated by the International Organisation
for Standardisation (ISO) and International Automotive Task Force
(IATF) respectively. The Group strictly requires employees to
comply with those quality management policies to provide
continual improvement, emphasising defect prevention and the
reduction of variation and waste in the supply chain.

As customers are becoming more concerned about environmental
issues, and stress the importance of using environmentally friendly
materials. As a corporate citizen, the Group will continue to
communicate and stress those environmental issues to its
suppliers. The Group aims at strengthening the cooperation with
suppliers, coordinating with them in product trials, and work with
them to produce socially responsible products.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to pursuing product and service of high
quality by implementing stringent and comprehensive quality
control procedures. The Group has implemented quality control
manual throughout the production process from purchase of raw
materials to product packaging for employees to follow. Raw
materials are inspected to ensure the quality and it is in a good
condition before putting into production so as to minimise
possible disruptions during the operation.

The Group gains the market’s recognition of its competitive
advantages in terms of innovation, strong research and
development capabilities, that lead the Group to be well
recognised by garnering three supply chain awards — “Excellent
Supply Performance Award” (See Figure 23), "Excellent Digital
Collaboration Award” (See Figure 24) and "Excellence in
Collaboration” (See Figure 25) from its major customers of
telecommunication and medical markets with superior services
delivered in the Reporting Period. Particularly, the Group has been
awarded in the Excellent Supplier Award category at the China
and Asia-Pacific Suppliers Conference of the medical customer,
which is the first award obtained by the Group in the medical
equipment industry, and the Group is also the only winner of the
award for the supplier of wiring components.

Figure 23: Supply chain award —
“Excellent Supply Performance Award”
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Figure 24: Supply chain award —
“Excellent Digital Collaboration Award"”
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Figure 25: Supply chain award — “Excellence in Collaboration”
[ 25 : HEfER— [{E 3555165 |(Excellence in Collaboration)

Excellencein Collaboration

CRMR (BN BRAY

TIME Interconnect Technology (Huizhou) Limited

2019.04

The Group has also obtained the ISO13485 Quality Management
System — Medical Services that consistently meets customer
requirements and regulatory requirements applicable to medical
devices and related services. Annual testing has been performed
by the licensed third party to ensure the production facilities in
Huizhou have complied with the relevant requirements.

During the Reporting Period, the number of defective products
produced by the Group was minimal and complaints by customers
in respect of defective products were insignificant.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the integrity of its
corporate culture. Staff members are not allowed to solicit or
accept any advantages. The Group sets out the relevant policies in
the employee handbook and guides employees to abide by the
code of conduct. The code of conduct provides a clear definition
of the provision and acceptance of interests, such as gifts and
souvenirs, and ways to deal with conflicts of interest.

Directors and employees are required to make a declaration to the
management through the reporting channels when actual or
potential conflicts of interest arise. Employees cannot receive any
gifts from any external parties (i.e. customers, suppliers,
contractors, etc.) unless approval is obtained from the
management.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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To show our unwavering commitment to anti-corruption, the
Group has adopted an “Integrity and Honesty Management
System”. Suppliers are required to sign an Undertaking of
Integrity. The Group also regularly sends out the message to all its
suppliers to reiterate its integrity and honesty business philosophy
and secure their alignment with the Group for fair procurement.

The Group has whistleblowing procedures in effect, encouraging
employees and all other stakeholders to report directly to the
Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee about any
misconduct and dishonest behaviour, such as bribery, fraud and
other offences. Furthermore, the Group has specified in the
Employees’ Handbook that the Group is entitled to terminate the
employment contract with any employee who is bribed with
money, gifts or commission, etc., and reserves the right to take
further legal actions against such person.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations regarding anti-corruption and
money-laundering and has no concluded legal case regarding
corrupted practices brought against the issuer or its employees.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that
brings long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders,
particularly to maintain the relationship with interest groups which
are relevant to business operation. The Group has been proactively
collaborating with non-governmental organisations to launch
philanthropy activities in the communities and cities where its
production facilities are operating, and encouraging employees to
participate in in-house and external community activities. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has been awarded by Community
Investment and Inclusion Fund as “Social Capital Builder”. It
recognises the Group's achievements in fulfilling social
responsibility by promoting social capital (See Figure 26).
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Figure 26: Social Capital Builder Award
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Other than that, the Group has also obtained the following

awards:

i) the “10 Years + Caring Company” by The Hong Kong i)

Council of Social Service (see Figure 27),

ii) “The 9th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship i)
Logo” by Hong Kong Productivity Council (see Figure 28);

i) the "Industry Cares” Award presented by the Federation of i)

Hong Kong Industries (see Figure 29);

iv)  the “Better World Company” presented by the Junior iv)
Chamber International Hong Kong (see Figure 30); and

v)  the "Meritorious Family-Friendly Employers — Special )
Mention (Gold)” by Family Council (see Figure 31).

These awards recognise the efforts of the Group regarding social

responsibilities.
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Figure 27: 10 Years + Caring Company
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Figure 29: Industry Cares
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Figure 28: The 9th Hong Kong Outstanding
Corporate Citizenship Logo under the enterprise
category
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Figure 30: Better World Company
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Figure 31: The Meritorious Family-Friendly Employers Award — Special Mention (Gold)
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In addition, the Group has also participated in various charity
activities, including joining the “Elderly Raffle Ticket 2018" and
volunteer work “CFSC b 34t (2 B H 2018 1 7k o 44" about
community caring in Mid-Autumn Festival organised by Christian
Family Service Centre (Figure 32), the Pin Campaign — “World
Sight Day 2018" organised by ORBIS Hong Kong and “Lai See
Appeal 2019” organised by the Salvation Army in Hong Kong; a
walkathon for those students living in poverty and welfare home
visit in Huizhou.

Friendly Employers Award Scheme

TIME INTERCONNECT LIMITED

6 7 A HE 22 98 X
MERITORIOUS FAMILY-FRIENDLY EMPLOYERS

it

B -
i granted this certficate in recognition of its being a winner of the following awards

o AEEFL2ETZEZEZEY  2E2
MMEEBHRRERSHOALGD [HEEZE DL
52018 BE=EH LICFSChEHEBIZH
20187k o H2 | yFEFEE T1E(B32) ~ Bt
HMEAABNEEREZH —EREER
2018« HFE M EHLERN [EOF)22019] -
EEMNAEREBLEBEHTITERRE LRBE
@J °

Figure 32: Volunteer work about community caring in Mid-Autumn Festival organised by Christian

Family Service Centre
32:
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Efforts performed by the Group have been acknowledged to help ¥ RN £ B 20 HHEEN P9 3 Nt 2 AR5 B 1F /0 BLBS
in promoting strategic partnerships among business and social & F - FBARBIZEHLE - EE MIRFIEREH
service partners, increasing the awareness and inspiring corporate  FIEBItEH S EXTEB IO ESTE ©

social responsibility through caring for the community, employees

and the environment.

Moreover, the Group has established the Sustainability Policy  [l4) - KREBEDH|Z] A HERRBE  §Ei
committing to working on environmental protection, social IFIRR HEFERDEEEEE o
responsibility and corporate governance.

Meanwhile, the Group is laying the groundwork to integrate the [ - NEB D (EHH R - A T oS855
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”) into the REBZEHEAEFE M IHERESIBES o
Group's sustainability strategy.

peveLopment O EatALS

NO ZERO GOOD HEALTH QUALITY GENDER GLEANWATER
POVERTY HUNGER AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION EQUALITY AND SANITATION

Lok i

DEGENT WORK AND 1 REDUCED 11 SUSTAINABLE CITIES 1 RESPONSIBLE
ECONOMIC GROWTH INEQUALITIES AND GOMMUNITIES CONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUCTION

M QO

1 GLIMATE 1 LIFE 1 5 LIFE 1 B PEACE, JUSTICE 1 PARTNERSHIPS
ACTION BELOW WATER ON LAND AND STRONG FORTHE GOALS SUSTAINABLE

INSTITUTIONS DEVELOPMENT

G<3ALS

Although the SDGs are not legally binding, the Group has HARIFEERBBRUEERZORN  A&H
identified 5 key SDGs that are highly relevant to its business 2 ¥ #5 # E 5 ¥ @ (E i 2@ ) 1 5 18 B 41 7] %
operation and put substantial efforts that contribute to resolving ~ #&ZE B 1 - WE ) W Bh AR RS -

the related issues.
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Potential impact The Group's status Future direction

BEE REBAMRR KRG ME
QUALITY — Offer training — The Group provides tuition fee subsidy for — Encourage and

EDUCATION

g

program and/or
other tuition fee
subsidy to all
employees and
encourage
lifelong learning
— AzREERM
BRI &3
HiEERIER
B SRR S

e e

employees and scholarship program for all
applicable employee’s children. Apart from
that, the Group also advocates the culture
of lifelong learning. Not only workshops for
mutual learning, but also hiring external
training consultants to conduct training
programs.
AEBEREBRMECRERENRAE
BiEESNFIRHEB S E - thsh
REETRERFBBH XL - FREBA
EIIE AR ESE - JRIMNEGRMERTT
EIERIE o

support employees
taking initiative to
strengthen their
professional
expertise
BLIIESESHSIE
BRI HEEME

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

— Offer career
opportunities
and assist in the

A committee has been established in the
factory of Huizhou which allows employees
to have opportunities to reflect their

Strengthen internal
promotion on
workplace health

1

economic interests in respect to remuneration, and safety,
development of benefits and working conditions environmental
local — BENIRERILEZES  REEAHER protection, and
communities ML SR ET BN - FR A R TYERIE T M AR business integrity
— REHMERE i hneg s B TremfE
Wi B)E it @ REZZ - RIRR
BB R & REERERN
N EBHEE
RESPONSIBLE — Ensure the — The Group has already developed the Facilitate employee

GONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

QO

sustainable use
and effective
management of
resources

— WRERAE
BERARBERE
I8

Sustainability Policy and internal monitoring
mechanism which supports green
manufacturing and apply innovative
production technology. A set of procedures
has also been established for handling
production waste and air pollutants
emissions in order to minimise the impact to
the environment
AEBCHEI I HBERBIEREFHRE
A 7B I PR BRI A E AT A P D B P A

il o BRI EEREY) R ZE RIS R BE ) —
ZIRFERL  EEREHRRNTE

participation in the
promotion of
sustainable
development
through various
means

BB TFERE =
EhiEE 2 - N
A FEER

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Goal Potential impact The Group's status Future direction
BR BIES A E@AR R R )
— Monitor and An internal monitoring program has been — Explore other

1 CLIMATE
ACTION

3 2

reduce the CO,
and waste water
emissions
generated from
the use of
resources and
product
manufacturing
BB RO AR
RERREME
EREREEN
b iR 5K
e

established to closely monitor the emissions
of both hazardous and non-hazardous
waste

EHIEANEEHNE - BUEEREERE
EREEWIHPER

The Group has implemented various energy
conservation measures in order to minimise
the emissions of greenhouse gas, including
using variable-speed drive (VSD) air
compressor, heat recovering system, LED
lighting, and adjusting the air-conditioning
systems to a specific temperature to allow
the users to set at a comfortable
temperature without power waste
REBECBZ AR, ORDIRER
BEBEN, BIEE R IRZE B - sREEIIL
it LEDIREF - WHREERERERTE
BENEERERTRTRERIRNEHE

B

The Group has implemented paperless
operation in the production line already.

— ARECEHAERERER MR -

means to contribute

more to the

environment and
strive to facilitate
the building of a

healthy and

sustainable society

in the future

— SREMEELAN
S8R HIIRIE M AR ER
pAR= VA 3- 9 Ik

BHEER
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Potential impact

The Group's status

A& ER R

Future direction

AT A

— Partner with
non-profit
organisations to
contribute to the
local community

— HBIFEFMES
EREMILR{E

1 PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

Partnering with non-profit organisations
helps to close the gap between the Group
and the community. The Group has
sponsored several non-profit organisations
to organise various events, including:
HIEEFIME S EE R AN R E i (=
MR - AEBECD BB E TIHETHES
M ZEES - B

a)
a)

b)

“World Sight Day” campaign organised by
Orbis;
BT [HRRER

Purchasing tickets of “Care of the Elderly
Charity Ticket Campaign” organised by the
Care for The Elderly Association Limited
through Christian Family Service Centre
EREBHRERBTLBEREEEE
D [HEEZELF]

Participating walkathon for students living
in poverty organised by a local non-profit
organisation in Huizhou

S2EBMNEM —FIEEFRIBRERSE
HBOTITERIEH

— Expand cooperation

with non-profit
organisations in
social investment
programs and
create shared value
PNl
RitREEREE R
A WEEHE
Ba

Figure 33: Environmental performance indicators

33 RIBARIER

Aspect A1: Emissions BEA1: HEBY
HKEx ESG
Reporting
Guide KPI
GAZFTERIE -
2019 2018 e lER
Performance indicator Data Data gl
BERIEE L8 G RSB BUEIR
Emissions Total NOx emissions (g) 20,613.31 18,773.31 KPI A1.1
B E RA LWPEEE (5T) RSB AR IR A1
Total PM emissions (g) 1,517.71 1,382.24 KPIAT.1
N REE () RASR A BUEIR A1
Total SOx emissions (g) 531.02 506.43 KPI'A1.1
el s (=) BREBUEIR AT
Total CO, generated equivalent emissions (ton) 3,977.90 3,933.79 KPI A1.2

B — UL E B (W)

PASEAE IR A1.2

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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HKEx ESG
Reporting
Guide KPI
B PIRIE -
2019 2018 HEkER
Performance indicator Data Data gl
IR e sl RELr e
Hazardous waste Mineral oil contaminated waste rags, organic 1.1179 0.0399 KPI'A1.3
BEEEY solvents contaminated waste rags and
waste batteries (ton)
WY RS RMERME - BHIAEIT AR FRERIEIRA13
EmE R EEEE M (HE)
Used containers for chemical materials 4,899 4,932 KPI A1.3
(barrels/bottles)
fEMRAE (R 0m) RASRAR IR A1.3
Non-hazardous Used A3 and A4 paper (reams) 2,581 2,774 KPI A1.4
waste EFEAMASRALH(S) FRERIERA1.4
BEREEY Used toner cartridge (pieces) 535 628 KPI A1.4
EEANEHE () FRERIEIRA1.4
Used paper towel (boxes/rolls) 34,080 28,910 KPIA1.4
BEANEN(R/5) BAREBIEIRA14
Cardboard (kg) 40,354 55,074 KPI A1.4
WARFE (AT R IEIRA1.4
Industrial waste (kg) 89,458.5 95,105 KPI A1.4
TERBEED(AT) FRERIEIRA1.4
Aspect A2: Use of resources BEA2 . SREH
HKEx ESG
Reporting
Guide KPI
2019 2018 BE X PIRIR
Performance indicator Data Data e RERRE
BERIER & B ESIERERUER
Electricity Total electricity consumption (kWh) 4,650,410 4,493,400 KPI A2.1
£ HEeE (TRE) RSB AR B IR A2.1
Water Total water consumption (cubic meters) 156,637 169,005 KPI A2.2
b/ Fk#E (SL7K) FRERIEIRA2.2
Packaging Total packaging materials (pieces) 20,656,070 27,514,136 KPI A2.5
materials
M BEMEEE () BSRERUEIZA2.5

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Figure 34: Social performance indicators

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Aspect B1: Employment EEB1: EE
HKEx ESG
Reporting
Guide KPI
Bt X FTIRIR -
2019 2018 g RER
Performance indicator Data Data g3l
BERIEE & EIET FASE BUEIR
Number of Gender: KPIB1.1
employees MR RS EIEIE B
as at 31 March — Male employees (person) 805 878
R=A=+—H®%W EMES (AN)
EEAZ — Female employees (person) 1,228 1,290
ZHEE(A)
Staff grading KPIB1.1
E BB RSB AR IEIE B .1
— Workers (person) 1,699 1,873
TACA)
— Supervisors and general staff (person) 270 248
FER—MRET(A)
— Managers or above (person) 64 47
AR E(A)
Age Group KPIB1.1
Fhera R BREBUEIEB1A
— Below 30 years old (person) 849 1,026
305RA T (A)
— Between 30 to 50 years old (person) 1,135 1,115
30E505%(A)
— Over 50 years old (person) 49 27
5058 A £ (A)
Geographical region KPIB1.1
& BASRAEBUIEIEB1 A
— Hong Kong (person) 32 8
BN
— The PRC (person) 2,001 2,160
FEI(A)

-2 EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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HKEx ESG
Reporting
Guide KPI
5B -
2019 2018 raRER
Performance indicator Data Data HwEiEsl
BERIER EE g RASR B BUEIR
Employee Gender KPIB1.2
turnover MR RASR A MIEIE B .2
EBERKLR — Male employees (person) 877 883
SMES(A)
— Female employees (person) 1,019 1,055
ZHEEE (A)
Age KPIB1.2
FiR RS AENIEIEB1.2
— Below 30 years old (person) 1,113 1,259
305 AT (A)
— Between 30 to 50 years old (person) 753 663
30E5075% (A)
— Over 50 years old (person) 30 16
50 %A L (A)

Aspect B2: Health and safety

[EMHEB2 . REHZZE

HKEx ESG

Reporting

Guide KPI

S AR -

2019 2018 e RER

Performance indicator Data Data g3l
BERIEE EE 67 RSR A BUER
Number of work injuries (person) 5 1 KPI B2.1
IEEHEF(A) SR AR IEIE B2.1
Rate of work injury (per hundred employees) 2.5 0.5* KPI B2.1

ITEXR(BEEES)

RS A IE 1R B2.1

* The Group has adopted a different calculation method this year. Therefore,

the figures for 2018 has been amended in order to be comparable.

*

AEBAFEERATRAETE - At - RAGBAL
T \FRURD B -
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Aspect B3: Development and training

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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HKEx ESG

Reporting

Guide KPI

BE X PER IR -

2019 2018 tekER

Performance indicator Data Data H&1E5|

BRIER BE iz BSERUER

Percentage of Gender KPI'B3.1
employees MR RSB RIEIE B3
trained — Male employees (percentage) 75% 80%

FZIETHS BMHEE(BSL)

— Female employees (percentage) 80% 76%

zEE (ADt)
Employee category KPI B3.1
EEER RSB BIEIE B3
— Workers (percentage) 77% 77%

TA(BEDH)
— Supervisors and general staff (percentage) 90% 88%

FER—MET (D)
— Managers or above (percentage) 71% 81%

KB E(Batl)

Average training  Gender KPI B3.2
hours MR BSR4 B B3.2
completed per — Male employees (hours) 33 16
employee SRS (Fg)

SHEEE=RZH — Female employees (hours) 29 15
9 1 B zitfE 8 ()

Employee category KPI B3.2
EEER RSB RIEIRB3.2
— Workers (hours) 31 15
TARE)
— Supervisors and general staff (hours) 34 22
FER—MKRET(KE)
— Managers or above (hours) 24 29

IR A E (B8

-4 EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Time
Interconnect Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 113 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HEBREERAFARR
(RESHSFME LA ERE A])

=R

A BN (VAT R [ 34P9 ) 2 /AT 58N 113
E207 AWEBRMEARAR (A TEEIER
A REMBAR CATHEE5E ) NES
MBHmE  MMBRREER_F-NLF=A
—tHNEAMBEIRAREREZBILFE
MiFEEaMNEMEEKER  HEEaE
KM ERENER  URKAEMBERKH
i BREIESHTEHRME -

BFIRR ZEHAMBRROREFT BT
fag((EBGEAE])BHNCEENE
HBELEAD(BAMBHRELEND D EEMHE
wkiky BEER-_T-NF=A=+—H
&R e M IBAR KB EZ A L FENGEA MBS
RENGARERE  YEERFB(RAFIK
IR RE B R Z BEAE

RRNER

BPEREBEF LS AGRMOCEEET
RN (KEFBETERD ) EITER - WIFIEZ
FEATAENEFCERRE [ZHAHE
FHE AP MRAENEE] o P EE—F
it - RIBEFESMAGRMAN(ERSA
BhERsT R (ATEEITAID - HABT
R EEE - YEETTRIFHNEMERER
BiE - ZMAEE - RPIAESNERTRER
REEENRBMANETBRIEHER

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT




0

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPOR
ERVR R T

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FRENER

FRRETFHEERERMANERHE  RY
AHMEAMBRRNETRABEENER - &
LEHEERMBFBRBEAMHHRER LA
EARETEEN - RMATSHELFREEHR
BERNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
BARESNEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANFTNMHBERENSRETRE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 BRI B E IS

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of management judgement and
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL")
of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

MRESERKFIEY SXEEFaVBERANEEZM
REBERHE BEXRENBERREZRUGIEZ
BEEEEE(TBREEEER]) Ky kA6 kA5
WP E HEBFIAENRENHRERSERESF
18 o

As set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2019, the Group’s trade
receivables amounted to HK$159,827,000 which
represented approximately 18% of total assets of the
Group and out of these trade receivables, HK$15,306,000
and HK$420,000 were past due and past due over 90 days,
respectively.

WMEAVBRRMT7AHE RZE-NAF=A

=t—H  BESENESEWFIAR159,827,000/8
T BEEBEEAENDN18%  REFEHEW

FIE A - Hh15,306,0007% 7T © # B 5 420,000 5 7T
BHEAFRBO0 A o

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

BB E E 2 EUGIAR B ER AR 7 B4

e Obtaining an understanding of how the
management estimates the loss allowance for trade
receivables;

o EBYHEREGLHEEZRWTIABBREENITE
0T RR

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management, including trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 March 2019, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales invoices;

o FEBKOWNPERIER HABMEEETETL
B UHBREENAEEEAEMNTEL
BER-_ZE-NF=ZA=+—HNEZREKIA
EBRER DT



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREETSEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

BERESEHE@E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN FTNAHBERENSRETEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables (continued)

B 5 WA m E G ()

As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group assessed the
trade receivables’ financial background and the historical
settlement records, including the past due dates and
default rates of each trade receivable and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available
without undue costs or effort. Each trade receivable is
assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings to
calculate the ECL. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life of
the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information.

WMiFa B mAMAISMKRE - ESEEERENG
EHORKFENMGERBEENCHE  BRESE
B RKFIBENBRHABPIENEUALBAEIEE T L
ERANE SRR SR AR A IRIE X FEATIE 1L
B RIEE ZRWFIARBEASE ST RED LR
RERAGTHERREEBE - HABEXDREBAE
BIRMSEANERABKFIBTEMFRAESL - I
FATRE M &R TR o

As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has not recognised any impairment
of trade receivables as at 31 March 2019 as amounts
involved are insignificant.

NGRS MG RARM T35 PFTIKEE - R PTP R RBEIL T
EX - BEEEYEER-_FT-ILF=A=+—H
B8 5 FE WK I R ERDRUE o

Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 March 2019, including the
assessment of internal credit rating, basis of
estimated loss rates applied in individual trade
debtors (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and
BEREEEREE_ZT-—NF=A=T—ANE
SRBKRENCEEEBRERNERLAE &
TN ERME & AT AR AT & e A AME 71| e W AR TR A i
AAEEENER(K2BEEEOXRAIELE
B &

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FHERERE S HmEAN ISP BHAE 5 EUGK
HERE L EHEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREETSEE

BEREESEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN FTNAHBERENSRETEE

Assessment of the net realisable value of inventories

7 & o 2B FER L

We identified the assessment of net realisable value of
inventories as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the balance to the consolidated statement of financial
position and the use of judgment and estimates by the
management in the determination of net realisable value.
BME B EEN SR FEN G AMEETEE
EHREREGEMBRARNEZ L AREEE A]
S FE IR0 E IR A A S AT o

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management estimates the net realisable
value with reference to the ageing analysis of inventories
and recent or subsequent usages or sales of the inventories.
WERE MM AM T 4PTIRE - EREL2EFERRK
DITANGE B g M E A E M B 2 1%
B

The Group has inventories of HK$186,623,000 which
represent approximately 30% and 21% of the Group’s
current assets and total assets at 31 March 2019
respectively. As disclosed in notes 4 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, a write off of
HK$3,005,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the

year.
EEENTFEA186,623,00087T  M_E—NF=A
_+ BoaRl&h E£EERBEEREELEN
30% M 21% ° MERE BTSRRI st 4 R OFT I 58 - F

A - RIBZE RSN 3,005,000 87T °

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of the net
realisable value of inventories included:

HPBERFENR R HEFHNREREF 21

e Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
process for identifying slow-moving and obsolete
inventories and determining net realisable value of
inventorieS'

. SHEREEEMNFHELE

mfﬁ@fﬁﬂ’] BIZH) TR

REELEEFEN

e Testing the accuracy of the ageing analysis of
inventories, on a sample basis, to the goods receipt

documents;
o DIMBEERBRBRKEH  ARTFEZERERS
T ZEE 1

e Evaluating the reasonableness of the allowance for
slow-moving and obsolete inventories determined
with reference to the net realisable value by
checking, on a sample basis, recent or subsequent
usages or sales of the inventories; and

o HAKSEFEBRMEELEREFEIHNHER
B PR i 3 86 5 15 B AT A 3R SHE T /B E R 8 KB
ROGFEREZAEILE &

Comparing the actual selling prices of finished goods
subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to their
carrying amounts to check whether the finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value

o IRHKE Hﬁ%zﬁﬁzuuﬂii{éﬂ’],\f‘f%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%
@ﬁi&ﬂtﬁ“ B B 2 B 1R K 2N B A]
SFEFR IR ESER
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ERVR R T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ERVR R T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 June 2019

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEREREMEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B{ZE =T —NE=A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
btaF FE FET

Revenue Wzs 5 1,314,389 1,238,374
Cost of goods sold BEREmAAR (1,035,041) (965,379)
Gross profit EF 279,348 272,995
Other income H A 6 4,844 1,622
Other gains and losses H i as & B8 7 (9,786) 10,161
Distribution and selling expenses DI R EER X (23,227) (20,157)
Administrative expenses 1THF X (57,878) (34,389)
Research and development expenses A 35 f s (45,672) (40,909)
Finance costs BhE RN 8 (1,649) (2,323)
Listing expenses Baliilia b3 - (24,415)
Imputed financial guarantee income  HEE B ISIERITA - 8,429
Profit before taxation [ F5 A1 Y ) 9 145,980 171,014
Taxation g 1" (23,046) (38,894)
Profit for the year F N 122,934 132,120
Other comprehensive (expense) income {2 (FI ) Wk

Item that may be reclassified HEnpeEH 7 HE B

subsequently to profit or loss: HIIEE -
Exchange differences arising on ONEFSIE R E RS H IR
translating foreign operations HEE 5 =58 (4,712) 13,592

Total comprehensive income for FAEZEKREEE

the year 118,222 145,712
Earnings per share FREF 12

— Basic (HK cents) — EARGE) 6.68 8.68

— Diluted (HK cents) — #58 GBIl 6.68 N/A 7~ FA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RN R

AT 31 MARCH 2019 R=ZE—NF=A=+—H

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
et FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B R E 14 175,152 110,059
Prepaid lease payments BRAERRK 15 83,355 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME  BEMRED
property, plant and equipment INpion 2,315 1,607
Rental deposits HEZES 1,064 998
261,886 112,664
Current assets REEE
Inventories ey 16 186,623 195,273
Trade and other receivables B o5 NH i EW I 17 197,755 277,325
Contract assets SEHEE 18 1,644 -
Prepaid lease payments TERHEERRK 15 2,017 -
Tax recoverable AJ Uy [B] £ 18 583 -
Pledged bank deposits BHEMEITER 19 16,260 18,021
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB KRS 19 223,808 279,623
628,690 770,242
Current liabilities nBEE
Trade and other payables B S REMPERFRIA 20 286,084 364,684
Contract liabilities AWaE 21 80 -
Tax payable FEfIHIE 5,284 17,504
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIRIRITIE X 22 49,233 41,525
340,681 423,713
Net current assets TEAEEE 288,009 346,529
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRSEE 549,895 459,193
Non-current liability Bl e =L
Deferred tax liabilities B IEEE 23 817 471
549,078 458,722
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital fi% A< 24 18,400 18,400
Reserves B 530,678 440,322
Total equity pr gk 549,078 458,722

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 207 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cua Tin Yin Simon

MR R

Executive Director

HITEF

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

FIB3E207 BN AN BREREEES
TE-AFERNAZ+—BHENBETZE I

HINIIATRARE

Wong Chi Kuen
Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FaESEER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

Share PRC statutory Special Capital Share options  Translation ~Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
B& RAEE ERE BRIRE EXRfE  BRERG EXfRE S @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEx FET FET FET TET FET TET FET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Wiita) (Hiztb) (Hitc)
At 1 April 2017 RZE—t+ENA—-B 2,000 - 2,872 - 1,783 - (644) 115,251 121,262
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - 132,120 132,120
Bxchange differences on translating /85N EHE R E R I
foreign operations and other NERZBRENEY
comprehensive income for the year 2 E4 - - - - - - 13,592 - 13,592
Total comprehensive income ENeEREERE
for the year - - - - - - 13,592 132,120 145,712
Effect of group reorganisation and  £EEAR—KHBAT
issue of shares of a subsidiary Bakiny e (1,923) - - 42,423 - - - - 40,500
Effect of group reorganisation EEEANYE (77) 146,680 - (146,603) - - - - -
Capitalisation issue BARLET 15,180 (15,180) - - - - - - -
Issue of shares upon the Listing 1A T B17RR 13 3,220 157,780 - - - - - - 161,000
Capital contribution from REZEERA A
ultimate holding company B - - - - 7324 - - - 7324
Expenses incurred in comnection  BEETIRE £ HFER
with the issue of shares - (17,359) - - - - - - (17,359)
Early termination of financial RERIHHEREL
guarantee contract (Note d (Bsta) - - - - - - - 283 283
At 31 March 2018 WZT-\E=A
=t+-A 18,400 271,921 2,872 (104,180) 9,107 - 12,948 247,654 458,722
Adjustments due to adopting FoEREy 2 B
new standards (Note 2) (H2) - - - - - - - 5127 5,127
At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZE-\EMA-H
(&5) 18,400 271,921 2,872 (104,180) 9,107 - 12,948 252,781 463,849
Profit for the year FRER - = - - - - - 122,934 122,934
Exchange differences on translating /&SN £ ERAER 11
foreign operations and other HEREZERENELD
comprehensive expense for 2ERY
the year - - - - - - (4,712) - (4,712)
Total comprehensive (expense) — FRZE (F%) M
income for the year k) - - - - - - @712) 122,934 118,222
Dividends paid (Note 13) BRBRE (M 13) - - - - - - - (36,800) (36,800)
Recognition of equity-settled REREEHRABER
share-ased payments B RA - - - - - 3,807 - - 3,807
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=A
=t-H 18,400 271,921 2,872 (104,180) 9,107 3,807 8,236 338915 549,078

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

us il



o

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mOEEEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") statutory reserve is non-distributable
and the transfer to this reserve is determined according to the relevant laws
in the PRC and by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiary in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the subsidiary. It can be used to make up
for previous year's losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company.

The special reserve represents the difference between the net asset value of
Time Interconnect Limited (“Time Interconnect HK") at the date of which it
was acquired by Time Interconnect Investment Limited (“Time Investment”)
and the share capital of Time Interconnect HK pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 2017.

The amounts represent (i) deemed capital contribution arising from waiver of
current account by a fellow subsidiary, (i) the cash reimbursed for partial
listing expenses by the ultimate holding company upon public offer and
placing.

The Group provided financial guarantees to banks to secure certain general
banking facilities granted to ultimate holding company, the Group and certain
fellow subsidiaries, the fair value of the financial guarantees was recognised
as deemed distribution to the shareholders at initial recognition. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Group early terminated a financial guarantee
contract and a banking facility. The fair value of unamortised financial
guarantee liability of HK$283,000 the date of termination was credited to
accumulated profits. The details of recognition and derecognition of the
financial guarantees are set out in note 28.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Hts -

(a)

(b)

()

(d)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Htaz FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KETEHEANESTE
Profit before taxation BRI T 145,980 171,014
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FE2HA (1,344) (495)
Imputed financial guarantee income  HEE B FEER WA - (8,429)
Interest expense FERAX 1,649 2,323
Depreciation of property, M - BB RERETE
plant and equipment 19,611 11,276
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEL
and equipment Rt - (442)
Write off of inventories FEMH 3,005 2,628
Release of prepaid lease payments FRERTER T ER R 506 -
Share-based payments LARR 1 B ERE A3 3,807 -
Operating cash flows before EEESEHINCERLRE
movements in working capital 173,214 177,875
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERDEM) 14,639 (58,490)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other &5 N EHMEWKZTIENLEE
receivables, rental deposits mEm D (3gm) 74,494 (31,743)
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD 12,429 -
(Decrease) increase in trade and B RHMESZIE (D) &N
other payables (103,289) 105,627
Decrease in contract liabilities BHBERD (6) -
Cash generated from operations KEELMNIRSE 171,481 193,269
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBEN (22,491) (7,761)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRI BEMET (13,429) (13,827)
Net cash generated from KEEBEENESFE
operating activities 135,561 171,681
Cash flows from investing activities REETHEENRERE
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE— KM B A 31 (166,826) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits B HE R TER (35,393) (33,442)
Purchase of property, BEWME - BEKRE
plant and equipment (13,320) (9,777)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WM - BE REEEN
property, plant and equipment bioera (2,420) (1,495)
Release of pledged bank deposits BB EIIRIREI TR 36,013 25,079
Interest received B UF B 1,344 495
Proceeds from disposal of property, KEHEWE  HENERERD
plant and equipment FTiS 38 - 499
Net cash used in investing activities BEEFHENR S FE (180,602) (18,641)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GARERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash flows from financing activities BMEETHELNRENE
Bank borrowings raised EERRITHERK 165,542 295,918
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (157,834) (333,545)
Dividend paid BRI A (36,800) -
Interest paid BERFIE (1,649) (2,323)
Repayment to ultimate holding BRTHEERAR
company - (93,819)
Expense on issue of shares BITRMH B FX - (17,359
Proceeds from issue of shares TR TS 5RIA - 161,000
Issue of shares of a subsidiary —XMB R BTG, - 40,500
Advance from ultimate holding B REIER A RIH N
company - 28,479
Capital contribution from ultimate B RALER AR EE
holding company - 7,324
Net cash (used in) from financing BMEEE (FTE)EENRS
activities R (30,741) 86,175
Net (decrease) increase in cash B RREFEEMRFORD)
and cash equivalents N (75,782) 239,215
Effect of foreign exchange EXEFHHTE
rate changes 19,967 (2,415)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUReRREEEY
beginning of the year 279,623 42,823
Cash and cash equivalents atend of ~ FRBENEEEEY
the year, represented by bank BIRTTHEHBR KRS
balances and cash 223,808 279,623

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

GENERAL

Time Interconnect Technology Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

The immediate holding company of the Company is Time
Interconnect Holdings Limited (“Time Holdings”) which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The
ultimate holding company is Linkz Industries Limited, which
was incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate controlling
shareholder is Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul, who is also the non-
executive director of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 33.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") while the functional currency of the
Company is United States dollars (“US$"). The reason for
selecting HK$ as the Company’s presentation currency is
that the directors of the Company consider that it is more
relevant to the users of the consolidated financial statements
as the Company listed its shares on the Stock Exchange.
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Interconnect Holdings Limited ([ Time
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oo mIEERBRRBEMEBELE BB
RARZIEHITES -

AARB—EREEBR AR - HT BB
NEZ EBEEHPMIFE3S -

RABBHmRABIT (BT 25 - mA
RAMNINEEER AT ([ERT)) - BEE
TTERARBIZINERNRARERAE
ERRUEEVBRERNEREE RSN
B AARARREERNNE R L

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

u



g

AR e B IS SRR b 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) have applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC) -Int 22

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening accumulated profits (or other components of
equity, as appropriate) and comparative information has not
been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to
apply the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18 and
HKAS 11 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of cable assembly
products.

Information about the Group's performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 15 on accumulated profits at 1 April 2018:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERAHIREETERYBRESE
RI(TEBMBHREER D @)

REERF ERAH T REERTE R
BW|ELEA(E)

BEBYBREEAEISRIREETFE

Nz l(#)
BB BB HRELRE 15K 2%
Rt

TEBER-_ZF-\FOA—HRAEER
B BHREEAEISRE R RN
2 .

=

Impact of
adopting
HKFRS 15 at
1 April 2018
R=ZB—-N\F
B —B#&%H
ERMBHREEA
FISHHTE
Note HK$'000
Kzt FET
Increase (decrease)
o Om )
Accumulated profits 2R F
Revenue from sales of cable assembly FEREERAHEE EGANESR
products recognised over time & (@) 14,073
Recognition of contract costs charged ERANENER (a) (7,933)
Tax impact HEpE (a) (1,013)
Impact at 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FHA—HNTE 5,127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &2 =%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 April 2018. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.

Impacts on assets, liabilities and reserve as at 1 April 2018

—NEZA=t+—HILFE

FERAHIREETERUBRESE
RI(TEBMBHREER D @)

NEERB E RV RS B R
B|ELER(E)

BEEMBREENE1SH[RAEFE
Nzl l(#)
BB BB HRELERE 15K 2%
SRt (&)

NIRRT N\FOA—BHEETE
ARKRERN SRR ZHE - REXE
FEMNBAYESEREN

\—F— \EmA—AEE - BEREE
HEE

Carrying Carrying

amount amount

previously under

reported at Impacts of HKFRS 15

31 March adopting at 1 April

2018 HKFRS 15 2018

R=Z—N\&F

S Al KAEE MA—H

R=Z—N\F BHE BHEMBEHRE

=ZR=+—H ERIZE15%  ERIZE15%

2HMEREE V& THEREE

Notes HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000

Hiet FET FEIT FET

(Restated)

(&%)

Inventories 7g (a) 195,273 (7,933) 187,340
Contract assets SHEE (a) - 14,073 14,073
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b fENT 518 (b) 364,684 (86) 364,598
Contract liabilities aHatE (b) - 86 86
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE @) 471 1,013 1,484
Accumulated profits ESpanil (a) 247,654 5,127 252,781
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(continued)

The following table summarises the impact of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
31 March 2019 for each of the line items affected. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have not been

included.

Impact on consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019

FE R FTR] RASIER] BB M B M EHE
RI(TEBMBHREER D @)

REERF ERAH T REERTE R
BW|ELEA(E)

BEBYBREEAEISRIREETFE
Nz l(#)

BB BB HRELRE 15K 2%
LR (&)

TR AEREF MRS ERE 155
HAKBENR_T-NF=ZA=+—HBHER
EUBRAAR BE-_ZT—-NLF=H
=t RLEFENGEBRRELKEMEER
BRUEGEARERERTZTHRENT
B REXEHZENRBVEBRIENA -

BE_ZT-NF=ZA=1—HILFELHF
B B REM 2 ER a7 E

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-hE=A=+—HILEE

Amounts

without

application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15

RER

EBNBRE

ZRAIE 155

28R ik B EXE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Hist T FATE TR

Revenue & (a 1,314,389 (1,644) 1,312,745

Cost of goods sold EmEER A (a) 1,035,041 (865) 1,034,176

Taxation I8 (a) 23,046 (160) 22,886

Profit for the year FEEH (a) 122,934 (619) 122,315
Total comprehensive FAERGERE

income for the year (a) 118,222 (619) 117,603
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019

FERAHIREETERUBRESE
RI(TEBMBHREER D @)

NEERB E RV RS B R
B|ELER(E)

BEBYBREEANEISRIRETFE

Nzl l(#)
BB BB HRELERE 15K 2%
SRt (&)

R-ZB-NF=HA=1+—HHEEHHH®
HRAIZE

Amounts without
application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15

REER

ERMBEHRE

RIS 155

Fr2®k kg HHEEE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

g3 FET FET FAT

Inventories 7E (a) 186,623 865 187,488
Contract assets ENEE @) 1,644 (1,644) -
Trade and other payables 25 NHMENZRE (b) 286,084 80 286,164
Contract liabilities EHAaE (b) 80 (80) -
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBEEE @) 817 (160) 657
Accumulated profits ZEtR M () 338,915 (619) 338,296

Impacts on the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 March 2019

BZE _FE-NF=A=+—HIFEH
BHRERBERNTZE

Amounts without
application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
KIER
EBRERE
ZRIZE 155
2k A BHeE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FEir FET FET
Operating activities RETEH
Profit before taxation A AR F (a), (b) 145,980 5,361 151,341
Operating cash flows before 4iE4 & AT
movements in working reERenE
capital (a), (b) 173,214 5,361 178,575
Decrease in inventories FERD (a), (b) 14,639 7,068 21,707
Decrease in contract assets & HEER D @), (b) 12,429 (12,429) -
Decrease in trade and other 8 5 & H A FE I8
payables (a), (b) (103,289) (6) (103,295)
Decrease in contract liabilities & 418 &5 @), (b) (6) 6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s contracts with certain customers for manufacturing of
cable assembly products are tailor-made based on customers’
specification with no alternative use to the Group. Taking into account
the contract terms, the legal and regulatory environment, certain of
the contracts provide the Group enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date and hence should be recognised over
time upon application of HKFRS 15. As at 1 April 2018,
HK$7,933,000, HK$1,013,000 and HK$5,127,000 have been adjusted
from inventories, deferred tax liabilities and opening accumulated
profits respectively with corresponding adjustment of HK$14,073,000
to contract assets.

As at 31 March 2019, HK$865,000, HK$160,000 and HK$619,000
would have been adjusted to inventories, deferred tax liabilities and
accumulated profits, respectively with corresponding adjustment of
HK$ 1,644,000 to contract assets, and HK$ 1,644,000, HK$865,000,
HK$160,000 and HK$619,000 would have been adjusted from
revenue, cost of sales, taxation, profit for the year and total
comprehensive income for the year respectively for the year ended 31
March 2019 without the application of HKFRS 15.

As at 1 April 2018, advances from customers of HK$86,000 in respect
of purchase orders of goods placed with the Group previously
included in the trade and other payables were reclassified to contract
liabilities as the Group has obligations to transfer goods or services to
its customers for which the Group has received consideration from
the customers.

As at 31 March 2019, advances from customers of HK$80,000
included in trade and other payables would have been reclassified
from contract liabilities without the application of HKFRS 15.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the
related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2)
expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
April 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018
are recognised in the opening accumulated profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

(@)  Classification and measurement

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as
at 1 April 2018 based on the facts and circumstances
that existed at that date. All financial assets previously
classified as loans and receivables are now classified as
financial assets at amortised cost. There is no material
impact on the measurement on the Group's financial
assets as at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B IS SRR b 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related
amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
(continued)

(®)

Impairment under ECL mode/

As at 1 April 2018, the directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group's existing financial
assets for impairment using reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. The results of the
assessment and the impact thereof are detailed in
note 3.

The Group has applied the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL using a lifetime ECL for
trade receivables, trade receivable from a fellow
subsidiary and contract assets. To measure the ECL,
the Group assessed individually for trade receivables,
trade receivable from a fellow subsidiary and contract
assets. ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances, are assessed on 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group's existing financial
assets for impairment using reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. No additional impairment
allowance was recognised at 1 April 2018.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI ER AR AR

—NEZA=t+—HILFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &2 =%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group, and upfront prepaid
lease payments will continue to be presented as investing or
operating cash flows in accordance to the nature, as
appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to
lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B IS SRR b 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$58,535,000 as
disclosed in note 26. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$1,064,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered as
additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance
lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) -Int 4
"Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC) -Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening accumulated profits without restating comparative
information.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition
of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgements. The amendments also
align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April
2020. The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis and in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if the
market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payments”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use
in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when

the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination occurs
as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party. The net assets of the combining
entities or businesses are consolidated using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No
amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this
is a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEFEE (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon REEFEFEHAN K (RBHE2EE
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with FEREBMBREEAE 155E)
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or BIERBIIEREERNF 155 NEH
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” MR BLAEE 2 (St RS
of the goods or services underlying the particular ISR AOSETHEE RSR[5
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. i | B E PR o

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a BAEERS R @RS (3 —4Am
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of fn sk AR TS ) sk — E B K BUR [R B 5 B o
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same. R ©

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised NEA AT R —IE@% - Bl 4 HEpE i
over time by reference to the progress towards complete e - MUKESEIZ2BTE2EBITHEELY
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of TRV R 15 050 e A e R

the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes o REBREAOR  BFRABIREIFE
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as AAREBBAMRHEHAOTE

the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset o AEEMBYHEASNIRA—EEE

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or MZEEENRAEEBNREERP
PR sk

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset o AEEMEBELHVTAELASAEERSR
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group EREEHWEE  BEAEEYHES
has an enforceable right to payment for performance B ek B 49 B A ] 58 i 17 &9 Y ER
completed to date. FRIARER o

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when D WEREPEERIERREREZ

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service. P FERS R o

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to EHEEEBAEEFREPHERAEED

consideration in exchange for goods or services that the A RN REWER BRI RER (&R

Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet B AEEE) - HIEBEE AR EG AR

unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance FOWAHHRE - R - ERGRIEE A E

with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the E UGB B SRR - BN R EEEE

Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the BEREAAEREBZT -

passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

-6 EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

A point in time revenue recognition

The revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in time
except for revenue from certain sales, which are recognised
over time. Under the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS
15, revenue from certain sales of goods to the Group's
customers in connection with the production of cable
assembly products are recognised when the goods are
physically passed to the customers, which is the point of
time when the customer has the ability to direct the use of
the goods and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the goods upon customer acceptance.

Over time revenue recognition

For certain sales of goods of the Group’s customers in
connection with the production of cable assembly products,
revenue is recognised over the time when the performance
does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date based on contract terms.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's
effects or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict
the Group's performance in transferring control of goods or
services.

3.

TEETHE#E)

REEFENHNKE (REME2EE
FERERMBHREENF1SHKR) (E)

AMEEEAEERERESRROAE
(SRBHBOLE) MARARESHE
QRS IRT H H A -

EBRR—AHZENEENANARERF
BEEARKZT -

WA T RE 2 B [
AEBZWERE—KEZER 85
THEEA MW (BER R ) BRI - 1R
EEBMBHREERE 155 N Az HE
BB KARYMEERGETER
MR EE PR E T 85 & AT KAV IR
sRERERERTEFPE(ETF AL
HEEBmmNERLESZERmNBAR
7 RIER | 25 1) S AR ) B ) R

8 B 8 FE R0 U

A EERATERNAEETPH
FTHEMS  REAOKKEERDB
BPSAREHAKREMNTERBRAZLZ
BE - MASE R RS BITEERNE R
AESERRBENRD ZIA - W kEk
fel e eR o

BAIE

TERITENETNER IRBRAIE
B IRBASESETENEENNE
HRAMLEITERENE ERAEHRKR
AMEERFHNEERN S - BHET AR
BE Rt B A S B OB G 7 o S IR TS FE Il AR Y
FE#IEMR ©

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

w7



g

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB I ER R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

n'.R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services rendered in the normal course of
business, net of returns, discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in production of
services, or for administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method or reducing
balance method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the
entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposit, bank balances) and contract assets. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as

the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, trade receivable from a fellow subsidiary and
contract assets. The ECL on these assets is assessed

individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over one year
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. nature of financial instruments;

o past-due status;

. nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o external credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

n'.R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimate
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date of the impairment loss is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group
entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
unsecured bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

(i)  the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1
January 2018)/HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018); and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generated unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generated unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generated unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generated unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the date of grant. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-
settled share-based transactions are set out in note 25.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the date of grant without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to government-managed retirement benefits
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &2 =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB I ER R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

n'.R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4,

AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

(continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC")

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no
deferred tax has been provided for the undistributed profits
in the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$156,423,000
(2018: HK$103,054,000) as the Group is in a position to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, is described below.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on individual
assessment, after considering the financial background and
the historical settlement records, including the past due
dates and default rates of each trade receivable. Estimated
loss rates are based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables
is disclosed in note 35.

As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$159,827,000 and
HK$234,264,000. Details of trade receivables are set out in
note 17. No loss allowance was recognised for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Assessment of the net realisable value of inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
values. The management of the Group is required to
exercise judgement in estimating the net realisable value
with reference to the ageing analysis of inventories and
recent or subsequent usages or sales of inventories. Where
the expectation on net realisable value is lower than the cost
for certain items, a write down of inventories may arise.

The carrying amount of inventories is HK$186,623,000
(2018: HK$195,273,000) for the year ended 31 March
2019. During the year ended 31 March 2019, obsolete
inventories of HK$3,005,000 (2018: HK$2,628,000) are
written off.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment as disclosed in note 14. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.

Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are expected to be shorter than estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Change in these estimations may have a
material impact on the results of the Group.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable by the Group in respect of the manufacturing and
sales of cable assembly products during the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018. For the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment, the chief operating
decision maker (i.e. the chief executive officer of the
Company) reviews the overall results and financial position
of the Group as a whole prepared based on same
accounting policies as set out in note 3. Accordingly, the
Group has only one single operating segment and no further
analysis of this single segment is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The revenue of the Group derives from manufacturing and
sales of cable assembly products. The Group’s revenue is
fixed price and short term contracts.

The revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in time
except for revenue from certain sales, which are recognised
over time. Under the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS
15, revenue from sales of goods to the Group’s customers
in connection with the production of cable assembly
products are recognised when the goods are physically
passed to the customers, which is the point of time when
the customer has the ability to direct the use of the goods
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the
goods upon customer acceptance. For certain sales, revenue
is recognised over time when the performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Revenue from its major products
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
major products:

5.

WERDEER (#)

ZER B U 2R 2R B AR Y R M
& AREWSE RE T ERSLEHEH

REBMZWERE—KEZ®ER B85
THEEL MU (BER R RN - R
BEEBVHRE ERIE 1557 T /4% Hl#E
BRRA KARYREEEBGETE®
AN ER [ P 4 A 5 B TS SR D IR 10
EnERBERTEPB(EXRPRKRSA
EENEEMMNERLESZERNBA
BB BRI 21 1O S AEPF R B ) HERR o B
THEMS  EHEBAOBRETREREY
AEEMFEREREZEE  MAKH
Al SR BT E AR W@ R ES B EXE
#IBBD 2 BOR - U asBERS I RERR o

FIEHEERKNTIN —F AT HREE
1T MRBBUEMEERNE15RML
i WERBESREZFTRERAHINR
HEH -

FEERFBKE
AEEBEFEERMABRAN DTN
T~

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Optical fibres St 4, 584,149 685,576
Copper i 730,240 552,798
1,314,389 1,238,374

2019

HK$’000

FEIT

Over time & A [ 410,254
Point in time NE—rFE 2 904,135
1,314,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical Information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers presented based on the geographical location of
the base of the customers is as follows:

Wz K o R E R ()

38 & R

ERASERRELEAMRNMIEMLEZ
KEIBEFPHREERAT -

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") i AREFE (M4 E ) 785,241 610,956
The United States of America EH 287,002 370,871
Netherlands Gl 178,274 142,809
Hong Kong 5 24,133 32,072
Others Hib 39,739 81,666
1,314,389 1,238,374

Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding
rental deposits) is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets:

BRAAKENERDEE(TEEHER
TINERREENEVER -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
PRC A 256,739 108,411
Hong Kong TN 4,083 3,255
260,822 111,666

Information about major customers FREREFNESR

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years

RBEFE 2 WEBRME AN EBRK S

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are 10% A EBVEPINT
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer A ZEA 410,254 487,680
Customer B ZFB 545,727 457,088

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME Hbyg A
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FE&T
Bank interest income RITF B UL A 1,344 495
Bad debt recovery R E 483 -
Government grants (Note) BB (K7 7E) 1,133 532
Compensation from insurance RigfER 1,831 -
Compensation from customers XPHES - 502
Others HAth 53 93
4,844 1,622

Note: Government grants represent export and other incentive payments

received by the Group from relevant government departments. There

are no unfulfilled conditions attached to these grants.

Bret - BUR R BhIE A S B ARRE IR AT SR P AR B9 1 O %
HAbSRRFOR - AR BN ERETT AT AN o

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hittlh 22 R 18
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain ANEE (fE518 ) W5 58 (9,786) 9,719
Gain on disposal of property, HEMFE - B R&#E W=
plant and equipment - 442
(9,786) 10,161
FINANCE COSTS AME R
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIE TR B 1,649 2,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 iZE—F - NF=A=

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

T—HIEFE

9. BRBIATEAR

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at B %5 Bila FIASFOBR LA NS -
after charging:
Depreciation of property, plant and W BB M REITE
equipment 19,611 11,276
Less: included in cost of goods sold W BEREHEmKARA (14,205) (7,237)
Less: included in research and B BERHERX
development expenses (2,038) (2,087)
3,368 1,952
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EF5WME (Wit 10) 10,590 6,121
Other staff costs Hin 8 TR 174,665 136,057
Retirement benefits schemes contributions Efh 8 T #Y:E (k@ M 5T 2 3
for other staff 13,677 14,570
Share-based payment for other staff Hih B TR D ABERANK 2,625 -
Total staff costs BIKAREE 201,557 156,748
Less: included in cost of goods sold B BERERERKANRN (136,129) (115,413)
Less: included in research and B BERERTA
development expenses (25,386) (19,294)
40,042 22,041
Auditor's remuneration Z SN BN 1,542 1,505
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R AR EFEERKAR 1,035,041 965,379
Release of prepaid lease payments HACSERNEIE=SNEA 506 -
Research and development expenses R 45,672 40,909
Written off of inventories FEME 3,005 2,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(A) Directors’ emoluments

Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon and Mr. Wong Chi Kuen were
appointed as directors of the Company on 15 June
2017 and re-designated as executive directors of the
Company on 10 July 2017. Mr. Paul Lo was appointed
as a director of the Company on 15 June 2017 and re-
designated as a non-executive director of the
Company on 10 July 2017. The independent non-
executive directors were appointed by the Company
on 24 January 2018. The emoluments paid or payable
to these directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services as employee/director of the
group entities prior to becoming directors of the
Company) are as follows:

10. EE - #HELEEMS

(A) EBME

MAREERBEESERER-F
—+ERNA+TEAREZERARAT
B WRZFT—+tF+ATHHA
ERARAMITES - BFELE
RZE—tFRNATEREZER
ARARER TR -_F—tF+A
THRESARRIFATES - 18
YEBTEER _T—N\F—H
"B EARRAFERE  EIHE
NARREZEZME (BREENS
ARAEEMETEEERNE
B/ ERNRBME) HIIMT -

Equity-
Performance settled  Retirement
Salaries related share benefit
and incentive option schemes
Fees  allowances payment expenses  contributions Total
kRs
gEN  BAETN
He HEREN RREBRE BRERX  HEMX @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAr TAr TEx FAr AL
For the year ended BE-E-1nfF
31 March 2019 ZR=t-BLEE
Executive directors: HiEE
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon RRREE - 2,600 2288 454 120 5,462
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen ol Y - 2,080 1,144 412 % 3,732
Non-executive director: FH1ES:
Mr. Paul Lo BiherE 360 - - 79 - 439
Independent non-executive directors: BV H#HTEE
Mr. Ho Hin Shun fBELE 240 - - 79 - 319
Mr. Luk Wai Shing BEREE 240 - - 79 - 319
Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric BRfEEE 240 - - 79 - 319
1,080 4,680 3432 1182 216 10,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 11. E - BB REEME &)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(A) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (A) E=EBE (&)
Equity-

Performance settled  Retirement

Salaries related share benefit

and incentive option schemes

Fees  allowances payment expenses  contributions Total

ERE

gEH  BAER

it FeRRY ZREBRE BRERx  FBER Eh)
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
FET AT TAT AT TAT FAT

For the year ended BE-E-NF
31 March 2018 ZR=T-BLEE

Executive directors: HiEE

Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon WMEARLE - 1,200 2,288 - 55 3,543

Mr. Wong Chi Kuen EnEEE - 1,167 1,144 - 54 2,365

Non-executive director: FHITEE:

Mr. Paul Lo Bihers 120 - - - - 120

Independent non-executive directors: BV H/TEE -

Mr. Ho Hin Shun fBELE 31 - - - - 31

Mr. Luk Wai Shing BEREE 31 - - - - 31

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric RABELE 31 - - - - 31
213 2,367 3432 - 109 6,121

Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon was also appointed as the chief RMARAGRETR =T —+tFLA+

executive officer of the Company on 10 July 2017. BEZER/ARGTTHEH

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above LA TESME AR EEE

were for their services in connection with the REBEBE@ABZRIEHFM - £ X

management of affairs of the Group. The emoluments FIRFRTESRBIIFNTES

of non-executive director and independent non- MEMAFSEEARAESNR

executive directors shown above were for their services & o

as directors of the Company.

The performance related incentive payment is RERERS2BELEEREA
determined with reference to the operating results RIBMERT -
and individual performance.

-4 EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, 2 (2018: 2) were directors and the chief
executives of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of
the remaining 3 (2018: 3) individuals were as follows:

10. EE - BB KEEME (&)

(B) EEM=S
AEELZESTFMALY  MA
ZE-N\F WMB)EARRES
NBE(BEZHMBE SR LR
) EBR=%(ZT—\EF: =%)
ATHEEMT

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF 3,651 1,933

Performance related bonus FRIRAEIEA 1,240 1,020

Equity-settled share option expenses 1R 18 55 4% & 19 5 AR HE R 52 457 -
Retirement benefits schemes RIRTEFIFHEI R

contributions 152 145

5,500 3,098

The performance related bonus is determined with
reference to the operating results and individual
performance.

The number of the five highest paid employees who
are not the directors nor the chief executives of the
Company whose emoluments fell within the following
bands are as follows:

RAMBILAL N2 EREXERBARR
METE -

FARREEFRAHENERRSFHE
g HBeNFToEEA

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 % 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BTE
1,500,000 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BTE
2,000,000 %7 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 &L E
2,500,000 % 7T 1 -
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 10. £ - BB REEME B

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) Employees’ emoluments (continued) (B) EEME (&)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the KEBWERRNAANEZRAEER
directors of the Company and the chief executives of BESIhEHZRHFAT(BEESE
the Group or the five highest paid individuals BERES) IHEABMSIEAMA
(including directors, chief executives and employees) 7N 2 & 3k FE IN A 2N £ [E B Y B2 X
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or BElmE - RAFEE  ERAQ T
as compensation for loss of office. None of the EENAEEENE T M -

directors of the Company nor the chief executives of
the Group waived any emoluments during the year.

11. TAXATION 11. BE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current tax BNEAR I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFE 11,658 16,291
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") o B 1 S FTIS A
([TZEFEH) 15,817 22,403
27,475 38,694
Overprovision of tax in prior years: RBEFERIEBRREE
PRC EIT B EEFTSH (3.762) -
Deferred taxation (credit) charge RERTE (e ) 2 H
(note 23) (Btat23) (667) 200
23,046 38,894
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the RREEE - FEMNESHIZEETERE S
estimated assessable profit for both years. FEI16.5%5HE -
Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law"”) and RIEREPERESRE([DEMRERED
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of LFEEHwME PEBEATNHE A
the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. 25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

TAXATION (continued)

According to relevant laws and regulations promulgated by
the State Tax Bureau of the PRC that was effective from
2008 onwards, enterprises engaging in research and
development activities are entitled to claim an additional
75% for the year ended 31 December 2017 of their
research and development expense so incurred as tax
deductible expenses when determining their assessable
profits for that year (“Super Deduction”). The Group has
made its best estimate for the Super Deduction to be
claimed for the Group’s entities in ascertaining their
assessable profits for the year ended.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

1. HE#E)

BRETBEERGEREAMRNE —TT/\F
EAERMBBAR AR - (EFHEED
MEERETEFERRADUENE - BEE
KEEBE—_T—tF+-_HA=1+—HB1t
FREEENEFNEINTS%IIER
R (TBEERN]) - AEEC RS
B 58 ] ER AR R REMGG
AHETE B E AR B H L FE R ERTRA o

G ERUB B A Bk R R E SR
BB BAT R FIL R T

2019 2018
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Profit before taxation R A5 A v A 145,980 171,014
Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax at 2 16.5% i Rz EHE B RIS
16.5% pgan 24,087 28,217
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for — FLF TS B 89T A] 05 5 L B9 B 7%
tax purposes 2 1,243 4,748
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax IR B DA A BT TS
purposes wa (142) (1,392)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not B FA IF £ fE SR B9 B 18 B 18 B9 B 75
recognised T2 (13) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries &H&EAINGLERER A E AR 2
in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong TRABMENTRE TR 7,159 7,458
Overprovision in respect of prior years WEFERERE (3,762) _
Super Deduction for research and 2 T MR EE RN
development expenses (5.554) -
Others Hi 28 (137)
Taxation for the year FEHRA 23,046 38,894
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. BRER

ARARHEREARESRERAREERN TS
BTBURRTSE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHEIT

Earnings for the purposes of calculating ~ BIAGFEGRERBRF AN BT

basic earnings per share (profit for (FRmF)

the year) 122,934 132,120
Earnings for the purposes of calculating AR AT E&FREE R 2T N/A
diluted earnings per share 122,934 TiEA

Number of shares

RGE B
2019 2018
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary BLUGTESRERAF A
shares for the purpose of calculating TR AN E R BB
basic earnings per share 1,840,000 1,522,407
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: &£ #58 & @AY S22 N/A
— Share options — BRI 1,143 NEM
Weighted average number of ordinary RUGESRESRFNLRR
shares for the purpose of calculating IR 8B N/A
diluted earnings per share 1,841,143 NEA

-8 EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &2 =%

—NEZA=t+—HILFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12. BRER (#)
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the ARstEEEZE_T—-N\F=A=+—HL
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share for the year FEBRERRBR Z LB INEFHRHD
ended 31 March 2018 had been determined on the B E EMRGRERSEHENENMCET(E
assumption that the group reorganisation and the ERMF24)BZE—+tFWA—HED
capitalisation issue (as defined in note 24) had been effective R e
from 1 April 2017.
No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March BRR—E-NEHMEBEE TR
2018 was presented as there were no potential ordinary % - E&@i—g /\ifﬂ =+—HIF
shares in issue for 2018. EiEEY|GRESRN -
DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERBD RS
during the year:
2018 final dividend — HK1 cent per —N\FRBEE —FRE
ordinary share L_Hx 1780 18,400 -
2019 interim dividend — HK1 cent per —NEFEFHERE — 8RE
ordinary share Hx 17810 18,400 -
36,800 -
On 21 June 2019, a final dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary NR-_E-NhENA-+—H xXQFES

share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019, totalling
HK$36,800,000 has been proposed by the board of
directors of the Company. The final dividend is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EZMRER %fjﬁ*ﬂﬂr—at
FREIRE R BB 28 -
%85 36,800,000 87T ° AR EBAR B /8% ZIS
AR EER AT KE & -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

Tools Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and and fixtures and Motor
Building improvements  machinery moulds  equipment vehicles Total
BE HE G- %8
EF EL R#E  IARER R&E RE &t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
& & & &L & & &
CosT R
At 1 April 2017 RIE—1f
mA—A - 87,571 35333 12,787 17,538 2,031 155,260
Currency realignment ~ EHF% - 9,295 3613 1410 2,145 160 16,623
Additions RE - 849 3,385 861 5,057 1,170 11,322
Disposalsiwrite off HE /i - (9,795) - - (357) (791) (10,943)
At 31 March 2018 RZF-/\E=A
=t-H - 87,920 42,331 15,058 24,383 2,570 172,262
Currency realignment S A% 1,261 (5579) (2,481) (958) (1,583) (108) (9,448)
Additions NE - 121 3,783 171 9,168 1,307 15,762
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—FHER
(note 31) (Wizt31) 74,437 - - - - - 74437
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE
=R=t-H 75,698 83,068 43,633 14,877 31,968 3,769 253,013
ACCUMULATED ZitihE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+E
A-H - 29,309 9,863 5387 9,3% 1,499 55,452
Currency realignment ~ SHEE - 341 1,104 648 1,099 99 6,361
Provided for the year EERE - 5,870 1,857 1,235 2,049 265 11,276
Eliminated on disposals/ 1 /i B i
write off - (9,795) - - (321) (770) (10,886)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=R=t+-H - 28,795 12,824 1270 12,221 1,093 62,203
Currency realignment L - (1,873) (758) (466) (790) (66) (3,953)
Provided for the year FERfR 445 11,792 1,91 1,304 3,615 49 19,611
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE
ZR=t+-H 445 38,714 14,027 8,108 15,046 1,521 77861
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE
=ZR=t-H 75,253 44,354 29,606 6,769 16,922 2,248 175,152
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=ZR=1+-H - 59,125 29,507 7,788 12,162 1477 110,059

TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, using straight-line method

14.9% - BERRE )

L - BB MEREIR B LB T Al LA
FHIA B ARV R BIR BRI SH L AR T

or reducing balance method over the following useful lives: RBITE :

Straight-line method: BHARA

Building Over remaining term of lease g #R T 10 HA

Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of the MEWEEE MBAHEH0F(ZE—NF -
improvements lease or 10 years (2018: 15 years) 154F) (ABREERE)

Tools and moulds 5-10 years TEREA 52104

Furniture, fixtures and 5-10 years R EKEBR S5Z=10F
equipment B

Motor vehicles 5 years YRE 54

Reducing balance method: ERERIEIRU

Plant and machinery ~ 10-15 years W= M2 102154

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, the directors of the Company
reviewed the estimated useful life of the leasehold improvements and
considered the average original estimated useful life of the leasehold
improvements have been changed from 15 years to 10 years. The

Kt BEZZ-NF=A=+—HLFE KRAE
EENAEMERENBRATERFEH  YRA
MEMELERANFAGE T ERFHEDH5
FERBI0F - RNEE - WEMERERBETATE

effect of change in estimated useful life of the leasehold
improvements are accounted for on a prospective basis and is
recognised as additional depreciation expense of approximately
HK$5,843,000 in the current year.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

AERESNTERAEEEEARYER AR
HNTEE RIS 495,843,000 8 T

15. FENAHAENR

HK$°000
FET
Land use rights situated in PRC 7 PA HR B Y i (58 A A
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-NFMUA—A -
Currency realignment B 1,433
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Wi —x B AR (HaE31) 84,445
Released to profit or loss BEBn (506)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NF=A=+—H 85,372
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEWE NEE DT
Non-current assets EMEEE 83,355
Current assets REEE 2,017
85,372

The prepaid lease payments are amortised using straight-line
method over the remaining term of lease.

BENHEEMNTRR R THE A EREEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

16. INVENTORIES 16. FE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials ER R 90,283 81,746
Work in progress TR 15,612 29,849
Finished goods YR 80,728 83,678
186,623 195,273
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ESREMERRE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables H 5 IR 159,827 234,264
Trade receivable from a fellow subsidiary  FEW R XN B A RNE 5 FIE 800 3,428
Bills receivables RN ZE % 3,575 -
Trade and bills receivables H SN IE R ER RS 164,202 237,692
Value added tax receivables FEUIZ(E T 29,014 35,680
Other receivables Hih e g g 472 623
Deposits and prepayments e RIERHRIE 4,067 3,330
Deposits, prepayments and other e~ FEA T R H Ath R UL R
receivables 33,553 39,633
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EAME FRIE 197,755 277,325
The Group allows an average credit period of ranging from NREBHLTFHESEP 2 EHEEENF
30 days to 120 days to its trade customers. Before accepting 30HZ120H - EEREEFHEL 27
any new customers, the Group will internally assess the NEBBHEEREZEEE Z/ERNELET
credit quality of the potential customers and define & WEFIE&EEZEREE - BHEWRIE
appropriate credit limits. The ageing analysis of trade and REWZENHEERIZREZ N (EY
bills receivables, based on invoice date which approximates HSERBEHER ) ET BRI T
revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHETT FET
0-30 days 0&30H 108,740 127,914
31-60 days 31260H 21,661 37,658
61-90 days 61290 H 23,887 55,370
91-180 days 912180H 9,914 16,750
164,202 237,692
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 March 2019, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are trade receivables of HK$15,306,000 which are
past due at the end of the reporting period. An amount of
HK$420,000 has been past due 90 days or more and is not
considered as in default based on financial information
available in the market, creditability and good repayment
records of those customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in
note 35.

Before the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, in
determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the end
of the reporting period. The trade receivables that are past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period
were either subsequently settled or had no historical default
of payments and the directors of the Company believe that
no impairment is required.

At 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are trade receivables of HK$20,879,000 which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

17.

B 5 K E WA (4)

R-E-HE=A=1+—8 B8R AE
B2 Z 5 REWERTEL ) 15,306,000 7 7T
EHRWGERRERRE A - A#
420,000 TR R IA 2 8 B 90 K ek JA k-
BIER TS LA SNMBER - EEBRZ
ERPHRIERGTE  ZRBETRAE
4o AEBEBEBZ S AT A E(EE

oA °

BE_Z-NF=A=+—HILHFEEH
Ko EL A FE MR IR B0 BB R R B B M it
35¢

R-ZE—N\FOA—-HERTEMBRE
HRHIZE ISR - NETEE S RIIAMN A
WeEE  AREEFRERLEEEER
THRNE S RWFTENEEETREH -
RBEHR - CAMBERREZE S EK
RIBHZRBREREERBENK - BUK
RAEERRBAELRE -

MW-ZE—-N\E=A=+—08 BEREAE
B v B 5 W FIAE#K 20,879,000 % 7T
B RWFIERRERRE B - A%
B S R EES BB o RSB
ERZE AR EEMERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

n'.R

17.

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. ESRHMEWRIE )
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, T AEBBENRRELE S ERIE
which are past due but not impaired: ZERER AT ¢
2018
HK$°000
FET
Overdue by: BHR -
0-30 days 0£30H 17,683
31-60 days 31&60H 3,023
61-90 days 61£90H 173
20,879
Included in trade and other receivables are the following REBSEERZGEEEIN  BEHRHE
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional MEBFIBEBEIELNTE®EIIBE S
currencies of the respective group entities:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Euro BT 1,219 1,794
CONTRACT ASSETS 18. GHEE

The contract assets from sales of cable assembly to a
customer primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables before the date of report when the rights
become unconditional.

The significant decrease in the current year is the result of
the decrease in purchase order from the customer as at year
ended 31 March 2019.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

AEFHEEREFNESNEEETERAN
SR BN 2 38 T 1M ff R R ) TAR (B EY
R - RERZSEA AR RERKEK
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19. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES

20.

AND CASH

At 31 March 2019, pledged bank deposits represent
deposits placed in a bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group and carry fixed interest rate of 0.3%
(2018: 0.3%) per annum.

At 31 March 2019, bank balances carry interest at prevailing
market rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.10% (2018: 0.01%
to 1.15%) per annum.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional
currencies of the respective group entities:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

19. BEBBRITER RITLEHRERS

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—0 BRI
TFREFHRRITAERE TALE 2 —
MIRTTEEZEFR  XRFL03% (ZF

—N\F 1 0.3%) ZBIEMEER -

RZEBE—HE=A=1+—01 RTEHEK
FENTF001%E2.10%(ZF— N\ F:

0.01% £1.15%) 2 IR{THHF LB o

BREBSEERZINEERI - RITHER

EREBREATEEIEZERER

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FE&T

Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TARE]) 410 2,922

HK$ BT 40,038 190,778

Euro BT 432 3,052

Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(TBEE] 1 1
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EFRHEMENRIEA

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FE&T

Trade payables B S50 201,519 267,141

Trade payables to fellow subsidiaries ERRRWBRRNE ZHHE 239 1,069

Bills payables ERNRE 54,201 60,071

Trade and bills payables B HRNFIBRENER 255,959 328,281

Other payables H e RUR 5,667 6,294

Rental payable to a related company (Note) B —K BB A RIS (A17E) 41 -

Salaries and staff related costs payables e M8 THBKA B RIE 15,740 23,722

Accrued charges laE=:] 8,677 6,387

Accruals and other payables FEETFRIE I L Ath FE 5T FRIE 30,125 36,403

Trade and other payables B 5 M E M IR 286,084 364,684

Note: Mr. Paul Lo, a non-executive director of the Company is the

controlling shareholder of the related company. BRARER -

The average credit period of trade payables ranges from 30
days to 120 days.

120H -

Hfat - ARBISEITERRIVIESL ERZEH A B

BHRNFENFHEEHNFI0RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 20. EFRHEMEBARIEAE)
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on B O REMNFIENEMNERRSREAREZ
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREMAHETZRE ST ¢

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
0-30 days 0%30H 113,586 143,803
31-60 days 31260H 33,448 43,978
61-90 days 61290 H 53,821 53,179
91-180 days 912 180H 54,852 84,396
181 days to 1 year 181HE—F - 2,858
Over 1 year —FE 252 67
255,959 328,281
Included in trade and other payables are the following BREBEETE I EEI)  BERE
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional MENZRIBEAIFATEBE|E S5
currencies of the respective group entities:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHETT FET
HK$ BT 21 770
JPY H 130 1,406
Euro BT 2,295 1,582
21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. BHEE

The amounts represent deposits received from customers in
relation to their purchase orders placed with the Group. At
31 March 2019, the deposits received from customers are
contract liabilities and the Group does not expect to refund
any of the deposits.

The Group applied the limited retrospective method of
transition to HKFRS 15 with comparative figure not restated
and hence the contract liabilities as at 31 March 2018,
which was of the same nature, are not restated but are
presented in the same line item.

The contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018 after the
adjustments from the application of HKFRS 15 is disclosed in
note 2.

The contract liabilities at 1 April 2018 were fully recognised
as revenue in the current year ended 31 March 2019. When
the Group receives a deposit before commencement of the
production activity, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the inception of a contract.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

g

ZEEEREPAAKEEHMRERE
mEREFPEBNES R_T—NF=
A=1—8 BREFRE/EMNAER
AEERHIERETMZFRE

AEBERABERENEBREER LM KR
HFEREI55 - LWERALTEET -
Bt R=ZT—-N\F=A=1+—HEHER
HEZANBELMEES - M5 RE
FIEH -

e & B MRS R H 155 F
BREZR-_ZT-\FOA-BZAHERE
TIRHIFE2 R o

R-ZE-N\FOA-AZAHAEEREE
—E-NFZA= T HLEAFERRE
RN o AN S B A VR B 4R BT I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

22. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 22, \IKFWITHER
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Import/export trade borrowings R OESEH 49,233 41,525
Carrying amount repayable based on RIEERREAEtEEERR

the scheduled repayment dates set out JEEEMERMEE :
in the loan agreements:

Within one year —F R 49,233 41,525
The unsecured bank borrowings are carried variable-rate. EEIRIRITERIRZEFEET B o FIEN
The interest is ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered FEHEBRITAZFE(EBRITRAERF
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1.75% to 2.25% (2018: HIBOR plus BDMEBN175%E2.25% (=T — \F :
1.75% to 2.25%) per annum. EAETREFRENF B1.75% 2

2.25%) °
The unsecured bank borrowings contain a repayable on EERRITERTEEEREREER 2
demand clause. e
The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to REEBRR - NEENERZEEFE(IR
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings as at EEREHFE)HELNT

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
Effective interest rate: BERFE
Variable-rate borrowings TRENRIE Fim 2.44% t0 4.36% 2.72% t0 3.54%
Included in unsecured bank borrowings are the following [@ﬁﬁg%.gg@zm BEEHEAN ﬂ%fﬁﬁ%ﬁ
amounts denominated in currency other than functional TEFEENTEESNE SR8
currency of the respective group entity:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 49,233 41,525
Details of bank borrowings guaranteed by related parties are AR 7 B R 2 SRITIE R Z S IBE 5 A

set out in note 30(b). £ 30(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #iZ= =%
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23.

—NEZA=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

23. EEHEERE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities AT AERERNERAN T RREIETEaE
recognised and movements thereon during the year: N H & &)
Accelerated Other
tax timing
depreciation difference Total
iR Hit
B E REMER LG
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET FET
(Note)
(K1zt)
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FMA—A 271 - 271
Charge to profit or loss (note 11) B8z (HfaL 11) 200 - 200
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—NF
=A=+—H 471 - 471
Adjustments (note 2) AR (K7E2) - 1,013 1,013
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FMA—H 471 1,013 1,484
Charge (credit) to profit or loss B8z (5t A)
(note 11) (HizE11) 186 (853) (667)
At 31 March 2019 RZTE—NEF
=A=+—H 657 160 817
Note: The amount represents the tax effect of timing difference of revenue Bis . e EERAR - — jlg';ﬁ[g(ﬁ%fﬂtﬁﬁgﬁa«]

recognition due to change in accounting standards in 2019.

At the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$1,410,000 (31 March 2018:
HK$1,488,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiary
amounting to HK$156,423,000 (2018: HK$103,054,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2019, as the Group is able to
control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

W R R ROTBZE

RBE-_ZT-NF=ZA=t—BLLFE "
ZER B ] AR 8 AR R0 1 2 - R B A AR

THEEA1,410,0008 T (ZE— N\F=A
=+—8 : 1,488,000 7T) o A KRR

AR AR FEEHE - WE L2 S e 1E
uuLLmEé‘F RE)RTIRE R A ER
/H\Hn\l:l

BIBEFBETCEMSEE - P BB AR
N-_ETENF—A—B2EBABEFIRE
KR BRI MTEN - SR BB A AR
BHE-_ZT—NWE=A=+—HILtEEA
156,423,000 t( = & — J\ F:
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R WENGA M EREIE D EERIE#
% RARNEE T TR ERERED
FIRF B 2 B R R Al se 0 A TE R G AR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. B
The share capital as at 1 April 2017 represented the share RZE—+FIOA—HZIRAIEERT
capital of Time Interconnect HK. BB o
The share capital as at 31 March 2018 and 2019 represents A—TE-NER-_E-NEFE=AR=1+—H
the share capital of the Company. The followings are the ZIRAEARRABRRRAE o« NRAEKRARZ
movements of the share capital of the Company: fE A g
Number
of share Amount
B ot}
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &/%EI{E0.01E 7T
Lk
Authorised: ERE
At 15 June 2017 (date of RZZE—+FHA
incorporation) (Note a) +H B Gtz B
H) (Kfata) 38,000,000 380,000 380
Increased on 24 January 2018 R-ZE—N\F—AH
(Note c) ~— PR
(Htatc) 2,962,000,000 29,620,000 29,620
At 31 March 2018 and 2019 RZFE-NFR
—E-hF
=A=+—H 3,000,000,000 30,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R RA
At 15 June 2017 (date of RZE—+F <A
incorporation) (Note a) +F 8 (FEfaz
HE) (Mata) 1 - -
Issue of shares (Note b) BTG (BFED) 9,999 100 -
Capitalisation Issue (Note d) BEReET (MaEd) 1,517,990,000 15,179,900 15,180
Issue of shares upon the Listing 7 E 18317 %
(Note e) (KizFe) 322,000,000 3,220,000 3,220
At 31 March 2018 and 2019 RZZE-—NEK
—E-NF
=A=+—H 1,840,000,000 18,400,000 18,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 15 June 2017, the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same day, one share was
allotted and issued to the initial subscriber of the Company, which
was subsequently transferred to Time Holdings on 15 June 2017 at
nominal consideration.

The Company allotted and issued 8,649 shares and 1,350 shares to
Time Holdings and Datatech Investment, Inc. respectively, in
consideration for the acquisition of the entire interests in Time
Investment by the Company. The excess of the nominal amount of
the shares over the net assets value of Time Investment was credited
to share premium.

On 24 January 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares to
HK$30,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares by the creation of
an additional 2,962,000,000 shares, ranking pari passu in all respect
with the then existing shares.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the sole shareholder of
the Company on 24 January 2018, upon completion of the public
offer and placing, the Company was authorised to capitalise a sum of
HK$15,179,900 standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company and applied such amount to pay up in full at par of
1,517,990,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Capitalisation
Issue”).

In connection with the listing of its share on the Stock Exchange on
13 February 2018 (the “Listing”), the Company allotted and issued a
total of 322,000,000 new shares at HK$0.5 per share by way of
public offer and placing.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(a)

24. IR A ()
et -

R-E—+EXA+HEB  AARRESRES
AL BB R AR - JAE R A380,000/8 7T
43 /438,000,000 % & IR EIE0.01 & ;LA [
B —BRRMEERETTARRRNIIARE

A HEBERZE—tE X NA+HBREERES
# ¥ Time Holdings °

AR5 Bl Time Holdings } Datatech Investment,
Inc. Bt 3% % %77 8,649 iX 1 1,350 IR AR 1E R AN &
AU EE Time Investment 2 EiiEzs 2 KRB - IR @
B Time Investment $ & EBEBHHB O AR

RZZE—-—NF—A-_+MB #FHEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 24 January 2018 (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participant(s) including employees (full-
time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under
the Share Option Scheme should be (1) not to exceed 1% of
the shares in issue in any 12-month period unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company; and (2) Options
granted to substantial shareholder or independent non-
executive directors or their respective associates in any one
year exceeding 0.1% of the Shares in issue and with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Options granted must be taken up within one month of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the
offer. Options may be exercised at any time during a period
commencing on or after the date on which the option is
accepted and granted and expiring on a date to be notified
by the Board of Directors to each grantee which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
accepted and granted.

In the current year, share options were granted on 24
August 2018 with an aggregate estimated fair value of
HK$14,496,000.

25. URHBHHF

LR 5

ENNGIE O Tes E (F%H&%ﬁiﬂj)aﬁ
BT \F—A-+tHHBBHIRES
XA -

R B E RS MR EREBAR
AAEEEES (2BNMFRE)  EF - &#
AR Dl AR HER R
2 BF - mEBRHIRGHERRHRE
SMNEZ D DA K2 HE B AN 5 B A5 B h =48 -

BIZERETE  SREEKLHEE
BRz&=8E (W)WM EBATMAN+=-EA
BB 21T B 1% (BR IEE AR R 5] i
HHLE)  RQMWRERN—FARTEE
BRRSBLIFATEETKEESENHE
ARBEREBRBAEETRHM0.1% BE
{838 5,000,000 7T + BIZELE AN F R
A o

P IE BB ZA N IR B B RE AT — B A &
B REMBORAIMIAET B8
RiEEEA R REEARERANEES
SHEEARANI A HEA - BiE
AT - ZHIE AT B E BN
KIRH ) B R 4 o

REAFE BRERZZZ—-N\FNA
“tHBEERL  HEGFAFELREAE
14,496,000 7 7T ©

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

i



o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB I ER R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #iZ= =%

n'.R

25.

—NEZA=+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(continued)

1/3 of the options can be exercised after 18 months of the
date of grant (i.e. 24 February 2020), further 1/3 of the
options can be exercised after 30 months of the date of
grant (i.e. 24 February 2021), and the remaining of the
options can be exercised after 42 months of the date of
grant (i.e. 24 February 2022) and will be exercisable until 23
August 2028.

The exercise price should be the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as quoted in the Stock
Exchange on date of grant, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company on the date of
grant.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before 24 August 2018, the date of grant was HK$0.349.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of grant 24 August 2018
Share price at date of grant HK$0.340
Exercise price HK$0.349
Expected volatility 53.86%
Expected life 10 years
Risk-free rate 2.2%

Expected dividend yield 2.94%

Expected volatility was determined by using the annualised
standard deviation of historical share price daily movements
of selected comparable companies in same industry. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The Group recognised the share-based payments of
HK$3,807,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 25. IR NRNRS (#)
(continued)
The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value TIABR B ER A AR EEREN AT
of the options. The variables and assumptions used in the B - ARGt EBRELTENEE RER
computing the fair value of the share options are based on EREENREGRTAEE - ZERER
the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies M BNt B IR A E(E LIRS
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. & o
At 31 March 2019, the number of shares in respect of which NRZTBE—NEFE=A=+—08 ' RIEEIRHE
options had been granted and remained outstanding under HE 2 BB RITERE IR S ML
the Share Option Scheme was, in aggregate, 88,992,000, D8 E A 488,992,000 A% * 1552 HAR
representing 4.84% of the shares of the Company in issue AR ETRNIA84% - R-_TE—AF=
at that date. At 31 March 2019, no share options are vested A=+—8 ZRERELFERITF -
and exercisable.
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TRXBEAATESTLAEEREZRER
share options held by directors of the Company and NA|BIRRENERNRNES
employees of the Group during the year:
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE T NEF=ZA=+—HIFE
Outstanding Granted  Outstanding
Categories of Exercise at during at
participants Date of grant Exercise period price 1.4.2018 the year 31.3.2019
R=Z-N%F R=Z-NF
mA-A =A=t-8
SHEER R AEH T 68 R AT FREH AT
Executive directors  24.8.2018 24.2.2020 - HK$0.349 - 6,672,000 6,672,000
23.8.2028
HTEE —T-)\% e e s s gt = Y 034977
NAZTEA ZEZ\ENAZ+=AH
24.8.2018 24.2.2021 - HK$0.349 - 6,672,000 6,672,000
23.8.2028
TN\ “Z--#-A-tWEZE 034937
NAZ+IA ZEZ\ENA=+=H
24.8.2018 24.2.2022 - HK$0.349 - 6,672,000 6,672,000
23.8.2028
—Z-N\F ZE-CE-ACTNAZ 03497
NAZtmA “E-\ENAZ+=H
Non-executive 24.8.2018 24.2.2020 - HK$0.349 - 608,000 608,000
director 23.8.2028
FHITES 2\ “ECRE-ACTMAZ 0.3497%7C
NAZtTWA ZEZ\ENAZ+=R
24.8.2018 24.2.2021 - HK$0.349 - 608,000 608,000
23.8.2028
—2N\E “Z--#-A-tWEZE 03493
NAZ+TmA ZEZ\ENAZ+=H
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. RO RRINRS (&)

(continued)
Outstanding Granted  Outstanding
Categories of Exercise at during at
participants Date of grant Exercise period price 1.4.2018 the year 31.3.2019
R=B-N\&F R=Z-NF
mA—-A =R=+-H
SEEER BREBH cd d I RATEE FREM I RATE
24.8.2018 24.2.2022 - HK$0.349 - 608,000 608,000
23.8.2028
It SAt:2 it Stk Sl Bl 1 2 0.349%7T
NAZt+mA 2 \ENAZTZH
Independent 24.8.2018 24.2.2020- HK$0.349 - 1,824,000 1,824,000
non-executive 23.8.2028
directors
BUFHTEE TN\F —Z-ZF-A-1WMAZ 034937
NB=tmA “2C)\ENAZTE=R
24.8.2018 24.2.2021 - HK$0.349 - 1,824,000 1,824,000
23.82028
“E-N\F “E--£-AZ1WAZE 0.349%7C
NAZt+mA 2 \E\RZt=H
24.8.2018 24.2.2022 - HK$0.349 - 1,824,000 1,824,000
23.8.2028
“E0\F it Stk Sl Bl 1 2 0.349%7T
NAZ+mA “Z-\F\RZt=H
Employees 24.8.2018 24.2.2020- HK$0.349 - 20,560,000 20,560,000
23.8.2028
= —E)\F “E-TF-ACTMAZ 034937
NB=+mA “2C)\ENAZT=AR
24.82018 24.2.2021 - HK$0.349 - 20,560,000 20,560,000
23.82028
“E-N\F “E--F-AZ+mAZE 0.349%7T
NAZt+mA 2 \E\AZT=H
24.8.2018 24.2.2022 - HK$0.349 - 20,560,000 20,560,000
23.8.2028
“20\F ke Sonn S iy 1] 2 Y 0.349 77
NAZ+mA “Z-\EN\AZT=H
- 88,992,000 88,992,000

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS . REHELH
The Group as lessee rEBRARAA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Minimum lease payments recognised FARERERNREHEENK
in profit or loss during the year 7,993 7,052
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RERLEEATR » ANE R E T A B &
commitments for future minimum lease payments under EFRGE T RREERENZTMOT :
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHEIT
Within one year —E R 8,003 7,169
In the second to fifth year inclusive EoEZERF (REEREMF) 26,376 26,235
Over five years AEFLE 24,156 32,732
58,535 66,136
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the LEHENPTEAEEREEDEREN 2
Group for manufacture premises. Leases are negotiated for Me KEHHEFEN T —Z=2+RF
terms of one to fifteen years (2018: fifteen years). (ZB—\F:+HF)-
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. BEARELE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FEIT
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRENEERTOEBRNGES
acquisition of property, plant and M mRELBE ME -
equipment contracted but not provided — BiE M REHE R X
for in the consolidated financial
statements 3,595 3,287

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT 1-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2017, the Group had given guarantees of
HK$1,080,000,000 to banks to secure certain general
banking facilities granted to ultimate holding company, the
Group and certain fellow subsidiaries. At 31 March 2017,
the aggregate utilised amount of these banking facilities
was approximately HK$284,906,000. Out of the banking
facilities granted, HK$664,077,000 had been designated for
use by the ultimate holding company and the fellow
subsidiaries and the remaining banking facilities of
HK$415,923,000 had been designated for use by the Group
as agreed among the parties as at 31 March 2017.

Financial guarantee contracts were initially recognised at fair
value and calculated by using the default risk method for
the banking facilities obtained by ultimate holding company,
the Group and certain fellow subsidiaries. The fair values
were based on certain key assumptions on credit strength of
the borrowers and default rate. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under
the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policy.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group early
terminated a financial guarantee contract and a banking
facility before maturity of the banking facility. The remaining
carrying amount at the date of termination amounted to
HK$283,000 was credited to equity.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

28. MBEARRIAERE

MNZZE—+FE=A=+—0 KNEEHW
BRFREEZERAR - AEERETHER
B AR ZE T —RIBITHEERTIER
% %8 /4 1,080,000,000 % TTHI EIR « A =
T—+FZA=Z+—H  ZFRTMED
&) 3 48 %5 #7284,906,000/8 L > RN — &
—+E=ZA=+—8 EERFHETR
&rh - Hrh 664,077,000/ TTH & TR =
EEFREERAFERRMBRAE
A E#eIRITRELE ©%415,923,000%
THEFREEEA TASEHA -

MRS OB R EER R R
PR - AEE KA TR RN EQFE
SORTRERAEORRATE - 2F
EBENREEFANEEENMENRNE
TEERRE - RIAHEREK - KN&E
TR mEFEMHEEREHD  VIRE
BEGFEAEITREENANEATE
ENEE R MNHRERN SR (NE
F) RIEU 25 R BUR MR ) R 8H o

REBEE-_ZT—-—NF=A=+—HItEE
W AEEERITRE DR R IE—
DB EREHRIBITEE - PR 1EH
2 2 T BRME{E 283,000 8 LAt A B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE AND CONTINGENT

29.

LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements of financial guarantee liabilities are shown
as below:

8. UBERRIAREE )

MBEREENESHIIMT

2018
HK$'000
FET
At the beginning of the year F1) 8,712
Amortisation of financial guarantee liabilities B RE B (8,429)
Early termination of financial guarantee contract IREBRIEITBEIERED (283)
At the end of the year FR -
2018
HK$'000
FET
Imputed financial guarantee income credited to EHBSRRIRAGIABREEE
profit or loss including:
Guarantee to ultimate holding company, the M&EERAR - AEBRETRE
Group and certain fellow subsidiaries B A RIER M IELR 8,429

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs to the scheme, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 of
employees, which contribution is matched by the employee.
The Group also makes voluntary contribution in addition to
the mandatory contribution.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

29. RIKBERIGHE

AEBESBENMAGEREEZHRS
HREREE - AR EIMNEERASK
BMEENRRR  UFENRXFEAME
HEES - NEBRZTESTEBAR
5% ERER MERBEESAER
ABZ30,00087T - BRAHFIIEER
R — 2 = BRI BIMEHFRSN - REETRE
th B REHER -

AEERTENBEQRNEES /T EK
JiF BT 2 3 ) B 2R B TR AR R AR U A 81 B9 A
8o MBARARIERANIEEADLL
FERRRENET BN A S B RBERAEE -
AEBERAKEMNE S THME—BERIE
HFERE K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB I ER R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

n'.R

29.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (continued)

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of
HK$13,893,000 (2018: HK$14,679,000) for the year ended
31 March 2019 represent contributions paid and payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans.

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the end of
June 2017, the Group failed to promptly make full
contributions to the social insurance plans and the housing
provident fund for their employees of by the PRC subsidiary.
Pursuant to the (& B A R £ F1 B #= & {R B2 /%), the PRC
subsidiary may be ordered to make up for the shortfall in
contribution within a specified time period and be subject to
a daily fine amounting to 0.05% of the outstanding
contributions from the date on which payment is overdue. If
the outstanding contribution is not made within the
specified time period, the Group may be imposed a fine
ranging from one to three times of the amount of shortfall
in contribution. Besides the Group may also be subject to a
fixed fine ranging from RMB10,000 to RMB50,000 in
addition to the outstanding housing provident fund
contributions underpaid if the employer failed to rectify such
non-compliance within a specified period of time.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had made aggregate
provision of HK$1,356,000 (2018: HK$9,500,000) in respect
of the estimated shortfall in social insurance plans and
housing provident fund contributions.

The directors of the Company have, taking into account the
facts that (i) full provision of shortfalls had been made; and
(ii) advice had been sought from the Group’s PRC legal
adviser that the chance of the Group being penalised by
Huizhou Social Insurance Bureau is remote, considered that
it is not probable that the Group will be fined or penalised
and therefore no provision for fines or penalties has been
made, and that the provision of shortfall made as at each
reporting date and for both years is adequate.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

29. RIRFREHE ()

REBEZE-_E—NF=ZA=+—HILFE"
REBIRZEFTEIMRES B L = Mt
ZHEEL BN REMOEHRAIBEER
BB X 4858 /513,893,000 L (ZE— N\
F 1 14,679,00057T) ©

REZE-T—+tF=A=T—HLFEK
BEEZT—+tF AR AEEKREAH
IR B AR MR B M R 8 R E
BRESARIEL 2 EMHRK - mv«#%
RAMBEM ERERE) - PEMEA
%WﬁAW?E%@W%ﬁTWTE
R WAKRE BRBNR BRAZH#
HE0.05% EABFHEIE ° WARENRIEE
HABR A S2 A+ M R AR SR - 2N 52 B AT BE A BE =T
NIRRT REE—BFE2=FENI< - It
N WE ERBENIEE IR AU IET AR
E5 - BRI AR AR A EREAESHNK
SN REETREETNEHEATEI SN T
AR 10,000 2= AR ¥ 50,000 7T °

%:g—nizﬂ—+ H - AEBFE
ZREBFTERERE A B HIM BT TR
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁtﬁamw®ﬂ_f AN
£ 1 9,500,000 7T) °

RAREEZREEUATEE ()BT R
BELEEEE  RiHESRAKETH
ERERNEERR/EMNTEERRBE AR
SEFEHRIINEE T KK w%$§.
PR E B AT 2 S INEE A - F I

B E S A E A M&m%ﬁ%
BH RN MEFEAELNO T EREE
R



30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI ER AR AR

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed (a)
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &2 =%

n'.R

—NEZA=t+—HILFE

30. EEALRS

BREGAVBEBRERBEBENRZ LA
ERON NEBBEBB TN S

entered into the following transactions with related PONNE
parties as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales to fellow subsidiaries (Note a) ETFRANBLAT (MiFa) 2,534 4,573
Sales to a related company (Note b) EY K@ AR (HiEb) - 85
Purchases from fellow subsidiaries KIEBRRWE AR (Mitc)
(Note c) 19,501 15,271
Service fee paid to ultimate holding T FPREERARNREE
company 3,938 3,750
Rental expenses paid to ultimate X FREERARMNEE
holding company B2 1,100 1,000
Rental expenses paid to a related XN T-RK@EBARNEE
company (Note b) Sz (ffaEb) 235
Imputed financial guarantee income HEIBERKA - 8,429
Notes: Ber
(a) Sales to fellow subsidiaries include Linkz Industries (Suzhou) (a) AIEZRMBAREFENTE (BN AR
Limited and Lighthouse Technologies (Huizhou) Limited. ARIRBNTK K A ERERFR A RMED
HISHE -
(b) Mr. Paul Lo, a non-executive director of the Company, is the (b) RATBEHITEESEMEELE BB AT
controlling shareholder of the related company, Huizhou Light BN TENBIRD ER A TR E
Engine Limited.
(e} Purchases from fellow subsidiaries include Linkz Industries (0) ARRMB AR BIEEALESTE(HE)

(Shanghai) Limited, Linkz Industries (Suzhou) Limited and

Lighthouse Technologies (Huizhou) Limited.

BRAT - FATE G ERATRE
NI AR EREER A R AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B IS SRR b 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

30. BBARS (&)

Guarantees given to banks by related parties are as (b)y EEEE T MBITIELAEROT ¢
follows:
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Guarantees from ultimate holding R B RLER A R ER
company - 191,126

As at 31 March 2018, Mr. Paul Lo provided personal
guarantees to banks for the banking facilities granted
to the Group of HK$72,410,000.

RZZE—NF=A=+—8 &
BERERE T AREET2,410,0008
TTRVER TR E M AR 1T IR 1A A &
R o

Compensation of key management personnel © FEEBEAEME
The remuneration of key management personnel was FEERBASHNMEHT :
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Short-term employee benefits RHEERAH 15,217 10,656
Equity-settled share option expenses  1R4E 548 E RIS IRAERT X 1,703 -
Retirement benefits schemes RIRE AT B X
contributions 577 399
17,497 11,055

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined by the remuneration committee and the
executive directors, having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

On 25 December 2018, the Group acquired an asset (d)
through acquisition of a subsidiary, Huizhou
Chuangxiang Technology Limited (“Huizhou
Chuangxiang”) from a related company, which Mr.

Mr. Paul Lo is the shareholder and director of the

vendor. For details of the transaction, please refer to

note 31.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

TEERABNMETAFMESR
ENMTEETREAARENLTSEB
EMETE -

RZE—-NE+-_A=-+EHH K
EEEBWE —RHNB QR ZEMNA
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REHARIKE—BEE  MEMN
REHE  BL2HEWE3 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

31. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 3 August 2018, the Group entered into an agreement
with a vendor, which is a related company of the Company,
to purchase the entire equity interest in Huizhou
Chuangxiang at a consideration of RMB145,250,100
(equivalent to approximately HK$166,826,000) (the
“Purchase Agreement”). The Purchase Agreement is
approved at the extraordinary general meeting held by the
Company on 24 September 2018. Huizhou Chuangxiang is
a company newly established in the PRC for holding a
property comprises a parcel of industrial land with a total
site area of approximately 33,393 square metres and two
5-storey reinforced concrete industrial buildings erected
thereon with an aggregate gross floor area of approximately
34,196 square metres. The transaction was completed on
25 December 2018.

Net identifiable assets of Huizhou Chuangxiang acquired:

31.

ERWEHNBARWBEE

RZZE—-NFENA=H KEBBREH (K
NR 2B AT R M - LB EEM
BlZErz2BE REAARK
145,250,100 7T (18 & 7 49 166,826,000
) ((HBEWwZE])  -BEWBECEARR
MNZZE—-NFAA-+MBERITZRERE
RIKE HEFHUE - BMAIZ AR PBH
PRI REIARSE —IBME - ZWEBE
— RN EIEL A33,393FF KN T
XA ARRZM FEYHAMIEREE
SHHERTTERE  QEA@MBELNA
34196 F FoK e ZRHERZTE—NF
+-A-+HHZTK -

PR EEBMAIZ 2 Al R FEE -

HK$'000
F#T
Property, plant and equipment L/ E Y 74,437
Prepaid lease payments FENEERNRK 84,445
Other receivables H At FEUFRIE 7,944
166,826

Consideration transferred, satisfied by: EEEAE - ATARAM
HK$'000
FET
Cash paid BEffRE 166,826
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

31. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalent in
respect of acquisition of assets through acquisition of a

ZRRENBLARAWBEE &)

FBRWENBLARUBEESRNRE R

REeFEMORDIFEIMN -

subsidiary:
HK$°000
FET
Cash consideration paid EEESKRE 166,826

In the opinion of the directors, the acquisition of the
company does not constitute a business as defined in HKFRS
3 (Revised) “Business Combination”. Therefore, the

EEZRR - WBZLARLTEREBTTE
WEERIZE 35 (KIER]) [RBAHH] R
EZEW - Bt RRFIBARARESE

transaction was determined by the directors of the Company ERWEEE -
to be acquisition of assets.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. & TBMBERRE
COMPANY
The statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 AKRABIRZE—NF=ZA=+—HHIH
March 2019 is as follows: ARRRAT -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEITL
Non-current asset SERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary I B A R E 146,680 146,680
Current assets MENVE E
Other receivables H o fE Y R IE 313 217
Amount due from subsidiaries I ENGIE S 134,672 52,795
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR IR E 21,211 80,951
156,196 133,963
Current liability MENEE
Accruals fERTE A 1,000 993
Net current assets MENEEFE 155,196 132,970
Total assets less current liability BEEERTHEE 301,876 279,650
Net assets BEFE 301,876 279,650
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital A% A 18,400 18,400
Reserves (Note) s () 283,476 261,250
Total equity s 301,876 279,650

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

COMPANY (continued)

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

32. R DR B BRI ()

Note: Wit -
Share  Accumulated
Share Capital options (loss)
premium reserve reserve profit Total
-y
R AR ME BARGRE BRERE (B51#8) &R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
On 15 June 2017 (date of incorporation) HA=-ZE—+&XA+HH
(MBS B8 - - - - -
Issue of shares Bl 146,680 - - - 146,680
Capitalisation Issue (note 24(d)) B BT (fzE 24(0)) (15,180) - - - (15,180)
Issue of shares upon the Listing N BT’ 157,780 - - - 157,780
Capital contribution from ultimate holding 7 B S 432 i A B &)
company TE - 7,324 - - 7,324
Expenses incurred in connection with issue  FLE1TAD E £ MRS
of shares (17,359) - - - (17,359)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for 7k HAft E518 2 2
the period X85 - - - (17,995) (17,995)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE—N\F
ZA=+—H 271,921 7,324 - (17,995) 261,250
Profit and total comprehensive income for 7R 4 [ 3% 7|} % 18 W 2%
the year Fok) - - - 55,219 55,219
Dividends paid BRERE - - - (36,800) (36,800)
Recognition of equity-settled share based IR {EZE &5 E AR D
payments RETEEFIE 2 HER - - 3,807 - 3,807
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NF
=A=+—H 271,921 7,324 3,807 424 283,476

fEE R 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

v



3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries held by the

o= PNEIE S ES
ARRIR—_E—NFE_FT—-—\F=H

Company as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Proportion of

=+ HAFBENNBARNFENT

Place and Nominal nominal value of
date of value issued share capital
incorporation/ of issued held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment share capital Company Principal activities
MR ERT FAEBECRT
MEAR AR BRIz B R B BRANEE KRIAEEzZLS FEEH
2019 2018
Directly held
BEERE
Time Investment BVI US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
KBRABE 10,0005 7T REER
Indirectly held
RERA
Time Interconnect HK Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100% 100% Trading in cable
ERTEERE 0 2,000,000 7T assembly products
BEESRANER
Time Interconnect Technology PRC US$28,600,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and
(Huizhou) Limited (formerly s 28,600,000 % 7T trading in cable
known as Huizhou TIME Wire assembly products
Products Limited) HEREEER
EBRH (BN BR R F (R AHEm
BEMERESHIMBRRF)
Huizhou Chuangxiang (Note) PRC RMB145,250,100 100% N/A Manufacturing and
BMAIZ (FYat) H AR 145,250,100 7T A trading in cable

Note: This subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 March 2019.
For details, please refer to note 31.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of both years.

izt

HE% -

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

assembly products
HEREBESRENE

on

ZHBRARRBE-—T-NF=A=1t—HLLF
AU - BRAFFS -

H2RME3 -

RAEFER - BHENBARBETENE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes unsecured bank borrowings in note 22, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with the capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and raising or repayment of bank
borrowings.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A. Categories of financial instruments

34, EXERERE

RERAEENERHIFERLE K&
BHHEAETER - WHBEERNE
HEFREFER/RREERAROR - K
SENEBRRENEEFERNREFTE

AEBENEARBREGEFH(BEM
AE22 W EEARERITIE ) - HBRRE KR
EFEEMANRKAREE ARE#ER (8
RERTEANER) °

RABEFTEHEHEARE - FRZRE
BIH—#7  ARBESEREARKAN
HERERENER - REARREFHE
& ARESERIRMBE - BITHR
- BRAEERRTERNFOHELERER
BB -

35. €@ T A
A. SBTENSE

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost KA GTEN S REE 404,742 N/A
TEA
Loans and receivables (including cash & R EWTIE (BIER S & N/A 535,959
and cash equivalents) REZEW) TEA
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost BSHAAR 310,900 376,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FI
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and B.

policies

35. @RI R #)

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and
unsecured bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest

rate risk in

relation to variable rate bank balances and variable
rate bank borrowings (see notes 19 and 22 for details
of these balances). Interest charged on the Group’s

borrowings are mainly at variable rates and

are mainly

at the interest rate offered by the HIBOR. The Group
currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges
of interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need

arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to the fixed rate pledged bank deposits.
However, the management considers the fair value
interest rate risk on the fixed deposits is insignificant
as the fixed deposits are relatively short-term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &2 =%

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared
assuming that variable rate bank borrowings
outstanding at the end of each reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. 10 basis point increase
or decrease represents the management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates of
bank borrowings. No sensitivity analysis is presented
for bank balances as the directors of the Company
considered the Group’s exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk is not material.

If interest rate had been 10 basis points higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2019 would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$41,000 (2018: HK$35,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the exposure at the end of each reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

—NEZA=t+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% SR AR B X

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35. @RI R #)

B. Financial risk management objectives and B. HXKEKEBEBEEREXR#E)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) miEEk (&)
Foreign currency risk HNEE [ Bz
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets REREFRAEBENEBEE (X
(mainly including trade and other receivables, pledged EREESREMEBNKFIE . 2
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) and HIRITERARRITEBRRIAS) K
monetary liabilities (mainly including trade and other EEaE(FEREE S NEMERN
payables and unsecured bank borrowings) FRIE K AR AR R AT R R BBRE B A
denominated in currencies other than the respective EHEEEERMNEEEUINNE
group entities’ functional currencies at the end of the WEHE - TN XPTOR
reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F&T
HK$ against US$ BITHETT 40,038 190,778 49,254 42,295
RMB against US$ ARBHZET 410 2,922 - -
Euro against US$ BT AT 1,651 4,846 2,295 1,582
JPY against US$ HERZET 1 1 130 1,406

Other than above, several subsidiaries of the Group
have the following intra-group payables denominated
in HK$ and US$, which are foreign currencies of the
relevant group entities.

B baish ETAEENBARZ
ATEBENENRBERNBTRET
(RERSEERBHINE)FHE -

Amounts due to group entities

Pt mE R IE
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET
HK$ against US$ HBITHETT 175,072 93,194
US$ against RMB ETHARE 83,940 87,846

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency exposure.
However, management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant currency exposure should the need arise.

-8 EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & EZE = —NF=-A=-+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency
risk of HK$, RMB, Euro and JPY. Under the pegged
exchange rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will be
immaterial as most HK$ denominated monetary assets
and liabilities are held by group entities having US$ as
their functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in US$
against RMB, Euro and JPY. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign currency
rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the Group's
monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated
in RMB, Euro, JPY and US$. A positive (negative)
number indicates a decrease (increase) in post-tax
profit when US$ strengthens 5% against RMB, Euro
and JPY. For a 5% weakening of US$ against RMB,
Euro and JPY, there would be an equal but opposite
impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

35. IR #)

B.

BHEREEREREEE)

™5 EkR (&)

SN R\ ()

AEEXF2AZET  AR® K
7T N B Bl H) SN [ g o 7E BE R H 8
HET AREEERRFA A
DB ENEEEERBEIN
XTRENEESE  BLAXTE
RERMMBEERIEXR - At

TXHREDNFAAEEFET
AARYE BTk BELEARTR
5% HIERRE - TR 5% RERERE L
ERREEEHETNAIEA EE
BHAE BRESNMEBELAEH
AARY BT BEIRETIE
MEBEEREERE - E(R)H
RREXRTAARE BTk BE
FH{ES5% B - BR B & R 2 (15
m) o XTHARE - BTk AEE
B5% 0 - Bl@HFEHIBRBR SN
ELESRERRTE -

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F#ET

RMB against US$ AR HZET 17 122
Euro against US$ BT HETT (27) 136
JPY against US$ AEHETT (5) (59)
US$ against RMB ETLHARE (3,148) (3,294)

In the management'’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the year end exposures do not reflect the exposure
during the year.

EEERR  BRESNMTERR
AEIMNEER - BAARFRNER
R RRNFERRRER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB I ER R EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #iZ= =%

n'.R

—NEZA=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, trade receivable from a fellow subsidiary,
contract assets, bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge the
obligations by counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the end of each reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 44% (2018: 48%) and
73% (2018: 79%) of trade receivables were due from
the Group's largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively. The Group’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical location is mainly in the
PRC which accounted for 76% (2018: 71%) of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2019.

Other than the concentration of credit risk of trade
receivables as disclosed above, the Group does not have
any other significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposures spread over a number of counterparties.

Trade balances (including trade receivables, trade
receivable from a subsidiary and contract assets)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred
loss model) on trade balances individually. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &2 =%

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment of
trade balances comprises the following categories:

—NEZA=t+—HILFE

35. IR #)

B.

BHEREEREREEE)

EE R &R ER L (&)

$EIE’JW*BZT &%‘Jnﬂéi

Trade receivables/trade receivable
from a fellow subsidiary/contract

Internal credit rating Description assets
EZRWRE RE—RERMER

RS ERTAR g ANEZRWRE SHNEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
and does not have any past due amounts

{i9ENES RSB FNELORRTE - BXEER 2HBEHREEEE —WEEERAE
BEATIA

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
but usually settle after due date

BxeE BEBAKLERIABRERETIE - BR 2HEHEEEE —IREERE
BRIHRRER

Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or
external resources

Tkt WESINBERRIRFASERBRREE 2HRHAGEEEE —ITEEERE
[E\ Bz B ¥ 4A T SR LA SR A 3 hn

Loss There is evidence indicating the assetsis  Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
credit-impaired

B8 EREBBRTAMEECELEEERE > HIRHEEEE —FERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

i gH EREBBRRNEBABAREMBRE - MHEBRSHE

BAREEY BRI D EL
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. @RI R #)

B. Financial risk management objectives and B. HXKEKBEEEEREXRE)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERRNREEFT (&)
(continued)
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the EAAEEEERBEERN—ID
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers. AEEHHEEFPRAANGSEETR -
The following table provides information about the TREHERZZE-AF=ZA=1+—
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are ARZEHEHEEBE (LEEER
assessed individually as at 31 March 2019 within B) AERIFFHMNE 5 R EIENE
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). ERRHER -
External credit Internal credit 12m ECL or Gross carrying
2019 rating rating lifetime ECL amount
AR 1R2EAEHEEEE
—E-hF IBEETR FEIR RE2HAHEEER HEREE
HK$'000
FHEIT
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit- 159,827
impaired)
B 5 EWRIA TEA {EWEN oy >HITEAEEEE (TR
EERE)
Trade receivable from a N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit- 800
fellow subsidiary impaired)
RE—XRKEARWBAFH TEA 1K 2B 2 HTEAEEEE (r e
H 5 W RIE EERE)
Contract assets N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit- 1,644
impaired)
BREE TEA {iwE oy > HFEEE B & 1E (I &
EERME)

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, trade
receivables, trade receivable from a fellow subsidiary
and contract assets were assessed individually with
considering the financial background and the historical
settlement records, including the past due dates and
default rates of each trade balance and forward-
looking information is reasonable, supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information. No impairment
allowance was recognised as amounts involved are
insignificant.

Other receivables

Other receivables were assessed individually for ECL.
The Group has considered the consistently low
historical default rate in connection with payments
and concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s
other receivables are insignificant and no loss
allowance was recognised.

Pledged bank deposits, bank balances and bill
receivables

For pledged bank deposits, bank balances and bill
receivables, the directors of the Company consider the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of high-
credit-rating issuers as such amounts are receivable
from or placed in banks with high external credit
rating, no loss allowance was recognised as amounts
involved are considered as insignificant.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 B E —ZE—NWF=ZA=+—HItFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations. The management also
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity date for other non-
derivative financial liabilities is based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from current
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

EZERHEEMRAE TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
B.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk tables

35. IR #)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

BHEREEREREEE)

RBEZRERE (&)
MENE & AR

Weighted
average On demand Total
effective  or less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to1year  cash flows amounts
ik B RERS =@A XRFERE
BERRZE  DSR=M@EA E—fF mEHE fREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET THET THET
31 March 2019 —Z—n4F
=A=+—H
Non-derivative JFEfTESRER
financial
liabilities
Trade and other B 5 R EMEN
payables 1B - 165,000 96,667 261,667 261,667
Unsecured bank K IRIRTTE 7R
borrowings (KiaE)
(Note) 3.55 49,233 - 49,233 49,233
214,233 96,667 310,900 310,900
31 March 2018 —Z—/\fF
=A=+—H
Non-derivative {4 SRER
financial
liabilities
Trade and other B S R EfbER
payables | - 262,671 71,904 334,575 334,575
Unsecured bank I IIRITIE K
borrowings (B15%)
(Note) 3.20 41,525 - 41,525 41,525
304,196 71,904 376,100 376,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #iZ= =%

n'.R
—NF=R=1+—BItFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. IR #)

B. Financial risk management objectives and B. HM¥EKREEEEREEE)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) MENE £ B ()
Liquidity risk tables (continued) //\L@Jéi Pk (&)
Note: Bt -
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in WHEEEREBGEROBRITERR LABEE S
the “on demand or less than 3 months” time band in the above WEtA RZE RPN =R | FRRHEEE - K=
maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate principal T—NF=ZA=1+—8 HWERTERNLEE
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to HK$49,233,000 #H /349,233,000 T ( —=ZF — J\ £ : 41,525,000
(2018: HK$41,525,000). Taking into account the Group's financial BIL) e st N AEBERB RN RRAREEHE
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is Z RITTPRAIEITEEBMBEREAZRIIAE
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to R RARNREEME BEERHHMEETE
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe FEH  ZERTEFRERRERAREHN=EA
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within 3 months (2018: N(ZZE-N\F: Z@AR)EE  MIREREE
within 3 months) after the end of the reporting period in accordance RAMEENASBERISRSRHNAT ¢
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements
and the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows according to
the scheduled repayment dates are set out as follows:
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months cash flows amounts
InEEFE15 RERRD RIFRRE
BERA=E R=@EA mEBAE BRTEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Unsecured bank borrowings SFHETEHN
At 31 March 2019 R-B-NE=ZA=+-R 3.55 49,412 49,412 49,233
At 31 March 2018 RZT-)\F=A=1+—H 3.20 41,779 41,779 41,525
C. Fair value measured of financial instruments C RBAVEFEEMIA
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities TMEERERABENAFER
is determined in accordance with generally accepted RIFRASRESNTRELREE
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. RABE -

ARREFRR  RNEATHRE
BREHEKAIENEREER SR
BEZEMERLQAFERS

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 3% #R AR B EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 EHZ=—Z—NE=A=1+—HILFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 36.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

BETBMELREZHER

TERFIAEERE LS (BRRE MIF
ReS8y)MEEZAE BRELDME
FRERASAEBKIRKRERER

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows ERERGEB S RERANYEAMES
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of BIRernEzAE -
cash flows as cash flows from financial activities.
Accrued
expenses
incurred in Amount
connection with  due to ultimate Unsecured
issue of share holding bank Dividend
of the Company company borrowings payable Total
REARRTRE B &A EER
BENERY  ERARNE BITEN ERRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET FAET
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+F
mA—H - 65,340 78,420 - 143,760
Financing cash flows ~ BEBE&RE (17,359) (65,340) (39,950) - (122,649)
Finance cost recognised &R RLE AKX - - 2,323 - 2,323
Share issue costs RN BEITHA 17,359 - - - 17,359
Currency realignment ~ E# A% - - 732 - 732
At 31 March 2018 NZE—-)\F
s e e = - - 41,525 - 41,525
Financing cash flows ~ RIEB4EHRE - - 6,059 (36,800) (30,741)
Finance cost recognised  FERREE A AN - - 1,649 - 1,649
Dividends declared RS - - - 36,800 36,800
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NEF
=R=1+-H - - 49,233 - 49,233
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEBE
For the year ended 31 March
BEZE=ZA=1+—HILEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS ES
Revenue Il ogs 941,482 911,593 864,571 1,238,374 1,314,389
Profit before taxation B RTE T 72,211 83,119 97,344 171,014 145,980
Taxation HiE (5,494)  (11,520)  (15,660)  (38,894)  (23,046)
Profit for the year REEHF 66,717 71,599 81,684 132,120 122,934

At 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
Total assets BEE 659,194 545,944 502,047 882,906 890,576
Total liabilities FE= (518,743)  (352,261) (380,785)  (424,184) (341,498)
Net assets BEFE 140,451 193,683 121,262 458,722 549,078

The result and summary of assets and liabilities for each of the
three years ended 31 March 2017 which were extracted from the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 January 2018 have been
prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group
as if the group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, has been in
existence throughout those years.
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